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To our Stockholders:

In 2003 Humana continued to advance its strategy
of disrupting the industry, transforming the company
and accelerating our growth. In the process, each of our
business segments — serving our diversified customer
base of national accounts, middle-market, small group,
individual, dental, senior products and military — was
profitable, and revenue and membership reached
record levels.

This breakthrough success reaffirms our view that
the marketplace is looking for a company that parts
ways with the industry and offers a sustainable solution
to the problem of skyrocketing health benefit costs that
reduce business investment and limit employee buying
power. Humana saw this scenario unfolding several
years ago, and in response we designed a total solution
that represents the next step after managed care.

This design required replacing old notions with
new ideas.

Michael B. McCallister, Director, President and Chief Executive Officer (left)
David A. Jones, Chairman of the Board (right)

First, we rejected the conventional wisdom that,
given the health care system’s complexity, employees
are destined to remain disengaged from the kind of informed decision-making that they exercise in other aspects
of their economic lives. Second, we determined that even innovative products that stand alone aren’t sufficient.
We surround our plan designs with a process that includes coordinated electronic tools, high-touch member
outreach and consumer education programs throughout the plan year. Finally, we recognized that our role has
changed from a commodity claims-payer to a value-added benefits coordinator, offering expert guidance to our
customers and members — on everything from pretax finance options to predictive modeling — while preserving
their ability to make choices that are right for themselves and their families.

These efforts produced our success in 2003 and established a platform for sustained momentum in 2004.

In the course of the past year, we extended the ongoing improvement in our Commercial business segment,
with substantial increases in membership and profitability. In the government sector, the Medicare
Modernization Act, signed into law in early December, opened new opportunities for us. We were one of the first
Medicare health plan contractors 20 years ago and we have a wealth of successful experience meeting the needs
of our nation’s seniors. Financially, 2003 saw appreciable margin expansion and an increase in both operating
cash flows and balance sheet liquidity.

For the year, our earnings per share of $1.41 increased 66 percent over the $0.85 recorded in 2002.

2003 Milestones
Among Humana’s many accomplishments in 2003 were these highlights:

® We successfully positioned our Commercial segment as a meaningful contributor to our consolidated
results, accounting for 35 percent of our pretax income in 2003, a record for this segment.

® Sales of our unique, consumer-choice Smart product family continued to accelerate. Medical cost trend
for the early adopting customers is averaging in the mid-single digits.



® We launched our individual product, HumanaOne, in 14 states and currently have more than 50,000
members enrolled. Our expectations are for a continuation of this strong trend in growth.

® The Department of Defense awarded us the TRICARE contract for the new South region, recognizing
our leadership and expertise in the specialized business of providing health benefits to military families
and retirees.

® OQur increased administrative efficiency led to the consolidation of seven service centers into four. The
transition was effected seamlessly, with no disruption in service to our members.

® We completed the sales and distribution infrastructure investments necessary to make us a leader in
multiple segments of the health benefits industry.

Leading by Disruption

In terms of our relationship to the industry, in 2003 we continued our drive to redefine value in health
benefits.

Our total solution — uniting wide choice in plan offerings with a robust menu of consumer-engagement
tools, education and programs — is not a product in the traditional sense, but a new process-around-product. It
achieves two breakthrough outcomes: it reduces double-digit health cost inflation to mid-single digits, and it
empowers consumers to choose and use their benefits with confidence, producing a better health-plan experience
for employees and their families.

Success in this new space was recognized in July when Forrester Research named Humana the industry
leader in health benefits consumerism. In rating Humana first for both its strategy and current offerings, Forrester
commented, “Humana positions its CDHP [Consumer Directed Health Plan] offerings as part of a broad
spectrum of employer and employee product options and wraps them all with exceptional online services and
tools.”

This “wrapping” is the essence of the process-around-product in the Smart family of Humana plans. By
providing guidance and actionable information, much of it through Internet technology, Humana transforms
passive health-care users into active health-care consumers. Employees then start for the first time making
informed health spending decisions in their own economic self-interest — and thus by extension in their
employer’s.

This total solution now involves more than 200,000 Smart members. In addition, we have been renewing
100 percent of the eligible early adopters. In a related extension of our consumer expertise, the technology-driven
services that support consumer engagement within the Smart family are increasingly being applied across the
board to our traditional Commercial, Medicare and TRICARE membership.

A Strategic Acquisition

In December, we announced our intent to acquire Ochsner Health Plan of Louisiana, a market leader both in
New Orleans and throughout the state. The addition of Ochsner provides us the opportunity to enter a new market
with critical mass, the support of solid provider contracts and the opportunity to introduce a host of innovative
products to this market.

Ochsner is an excellent fit for us strategically from many perspectives. It provides an opportunity to broaden
our footprint, making us more attractive in the mid-market and national account space. It enables us to leverage
our existing presence in the Texas markets with our new presence in Louisiana — a key attribute due to the
number of companies that have overlap between these two geographies. And it overlays with our soon-to-be-
expanded TRICARE presence in the new South region.



We anticipate the transaction to close early in the second quarter of this year, pending Department of
Insurance approval. We will continue to evaluate opportunities for potential acquisitions that — like Ochsner — fit
strategically and provide an appropriate return on our invested capital, thus adding to shareholder value.

Commercial Segment

While we are increasingly differentiating ourselves from other health benefit companies through our
consumer-choice offerings, we are continuing to compete effectively with our traditional products as well.

Within our traditional book, the mix of our business is beginning to change as we migrate toward individual
and small group, mid-market large group, administrative services only (ASO) and Smart products, while moving
away from larger account insured business in general, and slice business in particular.

Growth in our ASO business has been a keen area of focus and, we believe, will contribute significantly to
membership additions in 2004. This is an area in which employer customers select from an expansive list of
potential services. Their choices can vary among such options as full service, network rentals, pharmacy, dental,
disease management, utilization management, or call center services. We are now positioned to provide any and
all of these services to meet market demand.

Total commercial medical membership — fully insured and ASO combined — has increased by over 200,000
on a net basis in January alone, substantially all of which is ASO.

Though we’re excited about our progress with traditional products, we’re particularly encouraged about the
uptake in our Smart plans. Approximately 70,000 of the January membership additions relate to our innovative
Smart products, with total Smart product membership now exceeding 200,000.

Not only have we transitioned to being a leader in all the traditional lines of business, we’re also succeeding
in changing the rules of the game for the industry as a whole. Humana’s technology-powered “consumer-choice”
offerings position us uniquely and attractively at the center of the commercial segment, between traditional
insurers on the one hand and pure-play consumer-directed start-ups on the other.

Government Segment

We have long been contrarians to many in our industry with respect to Medicare, holding firm on our intent
to continue our participation based on our company’s unique capabilities in administering Medicare HMOs and
the huge scale of the market in the senior population. That commitment has now positioned us well to move
quickly and effectively to respond to new opportunities offered by the Medicare Modernization Act of 2003.

From our perspective, the Medicare Modernization Act is not primarily a means of increasing short-term
earnings. While changes brought about by this law permanently strengthen the traditional Medicare HMO
product, they also introduce a variety of prospects for other areas of participation by the private sector.

As one of the first participants in the Medicare HMO program, we have long believed there would be new
private sector opportunities for those who ‘“stayed the course.” These opportunities are now upon us. For
example, PPOs are the most popular form of health insurance in the United States; and yet, prior to this
legislation, they were not widely available to seniors. Our senior PPO product will be positioned between HMOs
and traditional Medigap policies and we expect will be very appealing to seniors.

Separately, we are complementing our existing array of senior products with the introduction of Medicare
supplement plans. We are in the process of filing rate and benefit packages with approximately 20 states to sell
this medically underwritten product, with plans to double that territory over time. We believe this is a firm step
toward offering another option to the senior population.



With respect to our TRICARE operations, the new “mega-regions” created in 2003 by the Department of
Defense — with Humana awarded the new South Region — become effective during 2004. Our leadership team,
with its breadth and depth of experience in this specialized business, is well positioned to ensure a smooth
transition to the new contract for our TRICARE beneficiaries.

2003 Financial Highlights

We are pleased that our many accomplishments during 2003 have also translated into financial progress for
our shareholders. Some of our significant 2003 financial milestones include:

® Revenues now total more than $12 billion, an increase of more than 8 percent from 2002.

® Medical membership in the commercial segment grew by 2.4 percent during 2003 despite a challenging
economic environment.

® Commercial premiums, net of any benefit changes, increased more than 12 percent on a per-member
basis compared to 2002.

® The Commercial segment contributed a record 35 percent of the company’s pretax earnings.

® Government segment profits held steady, despite a decline in Medicare membership in 2003 and the
impact of increased international conflict upon our TRICARE business.

® Each of our business segments achieved strong operating earnings, evidencing the soundness of our
customer diversification strategy.

® Qur balance sheet became more liquid than ever, with cash and investment securities accounting for
more than 55 percent of total assets at December 31, 2003.

® QOur debt-to-total capitalization ratio decreased by 150 basis points during 2003 to 25.9 percent at the
end of the year.

Corporate Governance

A strong sense of business ethics has always been a priority at Humana. Our Board of Directors represents
the beginning point in the corporate governance process. During 2003, we added two new members to our Board:
Frank A. D’ Amelio, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Lucent Technologies Inc., and Kurt
J. Hilzinger, President and Chief Operating Officer of AmerisourceBergen. Each brings a wealth of experience
and expertise to the oversight and direction of our company.

Shareholders can read more detail about Humana’s corporate governance policies on the Investor Relations
page at www.humana.com.

Leadership in Technology and Innovation

Humana’s leadership in technology and innovation accelerated in 2003. The company’s HumanaAccess
MasterCard was heralded as the first combination health plan ID card and stored value card in the industry.
Cardholders can access funds set aside in a flexible spending account or health-reimbursement account by
swiping their card at their doctor’s office or pharmacy. Funds are then deducted directly from the member’s
account, which eliminates the need for members to pay cash at the point of service, complete forms and await
reimbursement checks.

In January 2003, we launched an improved version of our innovative Personal Nurse service that guides
members through the health-care system, providing information to help them take control of their health
conditions. Available to all of Humana’s commercial members, the Personal Nurse service is staffed by highly
skilled registered nurses, who provide support, information and resources primarily to members who have acute



or chronic health conditions or who have the propensity for illness. Nurses guide members to various Web-based
company and community resources on a variety of topics, including diet control and medications.

Since the program’s inception, the nurses have interacted with nearly 30,000 members. Humana Personal
Nurse differs from many traditional first-call or triage lines in that the majority of Humana calls are outbound to
members. Advanced methodologies and predictive modeling tools are used to help identify and focus on
members with targeted health conditions. Ultimately, we see a time when our high-tech data analysis combined
with the high-touch Personal Nurse program could enable us to predict when someone with a chronic condition is
likely to face hospitalization, and then make suggestions to that person for behavioral changes that could avoid
such outcome.

In Summary

Our progress in 2003 is the result of the dedication, focus and commitment of Humana’s 13,700 associates.
They strive to make a positive difference daily in the lives of our 6.8 million members and take pride in going the
extra mile for the sake of a Humana member’s peace of mind.

2003 was a year of achievements from many perspectives, and we expect 2004 will again demonstrate how
operational discipline, coupled with redoubled dedication to providing our members with “guidance when you
need it most,” effectively translates to continued growth in earnings per share and value for our stockholders.

Sincerely,
David A. Jones Michael B. McCallister
Chairman of the Board Director, President and Chief Executive Officer

Significant Stockholder Significant Stockholder



Humana Inc.

Dollars in thousands, except per share results

Twelve months ended
December 31,

Consolidated Statements of Operations 2003 2002
Revenues:
Premitms . .. ... $11,825,283  $10,930,397
Administrative Services fees . .. ... 271,676 244,396
Investment INCOME . . ... e e e e e e e e 122,041 78,833
Other INCOME . . . . v e e e e e e e e e e e i 7,311 7,555
Total TeVENUES . . . ... 12,226,311 11,261,181
Operating expenses:
Medical . ..... ... 9,879,421 9,138,196
Selling, general and administrative . ........... ... ... .. .. .. ... 1,858,028 1,775,069
Depreciation . ... ...t 115,167 105,006
Other intangible amOrtization . ... ... ..........o.'iiueine .. 11,612 15,724
Total OPErating XPENSES . . v v v v v vt et et et et e et e e e e e 11,864,228 11,033,995
Income from Operations . ..............cuiuiunin e 362,083 227,186
INEEIESt EXPEISE L o v vt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 17,367 17,252
Income before inCOME taxes . .. ... vttt e 344,716 209,934
Provision for iNCOME tAXES . . . ...ttt ettt ettt 115,782 67,179
NELINCOME .« v v v vttt et e e e e e e e $ 228934 $ 142,755
Basic earnings per common share . .......... .. .. .. i i i $ 144 § 0.87
Diluted earnings per common share .............. .. .. i, $ 141§ 0.85
Shares used in computing basic earnings per common share (000’s) ............. 158,968 163,489
Shares used in computing diluted earnings per common share (000’s) ........... 161,960 167,801
Operating Results by Segment
Commercial pretax income (10SS) ... ...ttt $ 121,010 $ (15,174)
Government Pretax INCOME . . .. v v u vt et e et e et et e e e e e et e et eeeeee e 223,706 225,108
Consolidated pretax iNCOME . . .. v v vt vt ettt e e et e et e e e e e e eeen $ 344716 $ 209,934

Humana Inc., headquartered in Louisville, Kentucky, is one of the nation’s
largest publicly traded health benefits companies, with approximately 6.8
million medical members located primarily in 18 states and Puerto Rico.
Humana offers coordinated health insurance coverage and related services—
through traditional and Internet-based plans—to employer groups, government-

sponsored plans, and individuals.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

ERINTS Lt}

Headquartered in Louisville, Kentucky, Humana Inc. referred to throughout this document as “we,” “us,
our,” the “Company” or “Humana,” is one of the nation’s largest publicly traded health benefits companies,
based on our 2003 revenues of $12.2 billion. We offer coordinated health insurance coverage and related services
through a variety of traditional and Internet-based plans for employer groups, government-sponsored programs,
and individuals. As of December 31, 2003, we had approximately 6.8 million members in our medical insurance
programs, as well as approximately 1.7 million members in our specialty products programs. We have
approximately 463,300 contracts with physicians, hospitals, dentists, and other providers to provide health care to
our members. In 2003, approximately 70% of our premiums and administrative services fees resulted from
members located in Florida, Illinois, Texas, Kentucky, and Ohio. We derived approximately 42% of our
premiums and administrative services fees from contracts with the federal government in 2003. Under two
federal government contracts with the Department of Defense, we provide health insurance coverage to the
TRICARE members, accounting for approximately 20% of our total premiums and administrative services fees
in 2003. Under one federal government contract with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS,
we provide health insurance coverage to approximately 229,100 Medicare+Choice members in Florida,
accounting for approximately 15% of our total premiums and administrative services fees in 2003.
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We were organized as a Delaware corporation in 1964. Our principal executive offices are located at
500 West Main Street, Louisville, Kentucky 40202, and the telephone number at that address is (502) 580-1000.
We file annual, quarterly, and current reports, proxy statements, and other documents with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, or SEC, under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act.

We have made available free of charge on or through our Internet web site (http://www.humana.com) our
Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Proxy Statements, and all of our other reports,
and, if applicable, amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act,
as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. Also
available on our Internet web site is information about our Board of Directors, including a determination of
independence for each member, the various committees of our Board of Directors, the charters of these
committees, the name(s) of the Directors designated as a financial expert under Section 11 of the Securities Act
of 1933, the process for designating a lead director to act at executive sessions of the non-management Directors,
the pre-approval process of non-audit services, the process by which stockholders can communicate with
Directors, the process by which stockholders can make Director nominations, the Company’s Corporate
Governance guidelines, the Humana Principles of Business Ethics, and the Code of Ethics for the Chief
Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers. Any waivers or amendments for Directors or Executive Officers
to the Principles of Business Ethics and the Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial
Officers will be promptly displayed on our web site. The Company will provide any of these documents in print
without charge to any stockholder who makes a written request to: Joan O. Lenahan, Corporate Secretary,
Humana Inc., 500 West Main Street, 27t Floor, Louisville, Kentucky 40202. Additional information about these
items can be found in, and is incorporated by reference to, the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held on April 22, 2004.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains both historical and forward-looking information. See the
“Cautionary Statements” section in Item 7—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations for a description of a number of factors that could adversely affect our results.

Business Segments

We manage our business with two segments: Commercial and Government. The Commercial segment
consists of members enrolled in products marketed to employer groups and individuals, and includes three lines
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of business: fully insured medical, administrative services only, or ASO, and specialty. The Government segment
consists of members enrolled in government-sponsored programs, and includes three lines of business:
Medicare+Choice, Medicaid, and TRICARE. We identified our segments in accordance with the aggregation
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, Disclosures About Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information which is consistent with information used by our Chief Executive Officer in
managing our business. The segment information aggregates products with similar economic characteristics.
These characteristics include the nature of customer groups, pricing, benefits, and underwriting requirements.

The results of each segment are measured by income before income taxes. We allocate all selling, general
and administrative expenses, investment and other income, interest expense, and goodwill, but no other assets or
liabilities, to our segments. Members served by our two segments generally utilize the same medical provider
networks, enabling us to obtain more favorable contract terms with providers. Our segments also share overhead
costs and assets. As a result, the profitability of each segment is interdependent.

Strategy

Our business strategy centers on increasing Commercial segment profitability while building on our existing
strength in the Government segment and exploring opportunities under the recently enacted Medicare
Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act, or DIMA. Our strategy to increase Commercial
segment profitability focuses on providing solutions for employers to the rising cost of health care through the
use of innovative and consumer-choice product designs which are supported by service excellence and industry-
leading electronic capabilities, including education, tools, and technologies provided primarily through the
Internet. The intent of our Commercial segment strategy is to enable us to further penetrate high potential
commercial markets and to transform the traditional experience for both employers and members in order to
achieve a high degree of consumer satisfaction and loyalty.

Our Products

The following table presents our segment membership, premiums and ASO fees by product for the year
ended December 31, 2003:

Total Percent of Total
Medical Specialty Premiums and Premiums and
Membership Membership  Premiums ASO Fees ASO Fees ASO Fees
Commercial:
Fully insured:
HMO .................. 1,028,900 —  $ 2,871,697 $ — $ 2,871,697 23.7%
PPO ......... ... ....... 1,323,900 — 3,369,109 — 3,369,109 27.9%
Total fully insured ...... 2,352,800 — 6,240,806 — 6,240,806 51.6%
Administrative services only .. 712,400 — — 122,846 122,846 1.0%
Specialty .................. — 1,668,100 320,206 — 320,206 2.7%
Total Commercial ...... 3,065,200 1,668,100 6,561,012 122,846 6,683,858 55.3%
Government: .. ...............
Medicare+Choice ........... 328,600 — 2,527,446 — 2,527,446 20.9%
Medicaid . ................. 468,900 — 487,100 — 487,100 4.0%
TRICARE ................. 1,849,700 — 2,249,725 — 2,249,725 18.6%
TRICAREASO ............ 1,057,200 — — 148,830 148,830 1.2%
Total Government . . . ... 3,704,400 — 5,264,271 148,830 5,413,101 44.7%
Total ................. 6,769,600 1,668,100 $11,825,283 $271,676 $12,096,959 100.0%




Our Products Marketed to Commercial Segment Employers and Members
New Generation of Products

We have developed a range of innovative products, styled as “Smart” products, that we believe will be a
solution for employers who annually are facing double-digit premium increases driven by medical cost inflation.
Our new generation of products provide more (1), choices for the individual consumer, (2), transparency of
provider costs, and (3), benefit designs that engage consumers in the costs and effectiveness of health care
choices. Innovative tools and technology are available to assist consumers with these decisions, including the
trade-offs between higher premiums and point-of-service costs at the time consumers choose their plans, and to
suggest ways in which the consumers can maximize their individual benefits at the point they use their plans.
These products are sold to employers with Humana as the sole carrier, but are available on either a fully insured
or self-funded basis. As of December 31, 2003, we had enrolled approximately 130,000 members into our Smart
products.

Many of our Smart products, as well as our more traditional products, are offered to employer groups as
“bundles”, where the subscribers are offered various HMO and PPO options, with various employer contribution
strategies as determined by the customer.

HMO

Our health maintenance organization, or HMO, products provide prepaid health insurance coverage to our
members through a network of independent primary care physicians, specialty physicians, and other health care
providers who contract with the HMO to furnish such services. Primary care physicians generally include
internists, family practitioners, and pediatricians. Generally, the member’s primary care physician must approve
access to certain specialty physicians and other health care providers. These other health care providers include,
among others, hospitals, nursing homes, home health agencies, pharmacies, mental health and substance abuse
centers, diagnostic centers, optometrists, outpatient surgery centers, dentists, urgent care centers, and durable
medical equipment suppliers. Because the primary care physician generally must approve access to many of
these other health care providers, the HMO product is considered the most restrictive form of managed care.

An HMO member, typically through the member’s employer, pays a monthly fee, which generally covers,
with some copayments, health care services received from or approved by the member’s primary care physician.
For the year ended December 31, 2003, commercial HMO premium revenues totaled approximately $2.9 billion,
or 23.7% of our total premiums and ASO fees.

PPO

Our preferred provider organization, or PPO, products, which are marketed primarily to commercial groups
and individuals, include some elements of managed health care. However, they typically include more cost-
sharing with the member, through copayments and annual deductibles. PPOs also are similar to traditional health
insurance because they provide a member with more freedom to choose a physician or other health care provider.
In a PPO, the member is encouraged, through financial incentives, to use participating health care providers,
which have contracted with the PPO to provide services at favorable rates. In the event a member chooses not to
use a participating health care provider, the member may be required to pay a greater portion of the provider’s
fees.

In June 2002, we introduced HumanaOne, a major medical product marketed directly to individuals. We
introduced this product in select markets where we can utilize our existing networks and distribution channels.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, commercial and individual PPO premium revenues totaled
approximately $3.4 billion, or 27.9% of our total premiums and ASO fees.
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Administrative Services Only

We offer an administrative services only, or ASO, product to those who self-insure their employee health
plans. We receive fees to provide administrative services which generally include the processing of claims,
offering access to our provider networks and clinical programs, and responding to customer service inquiries
from members of self-funded employers. These products may include all of the same benefit and product design
characteristics of our fully insured PPO and HMO products described above, however, under ASO contracts,
self-funded employers retain the risk of financing the cost of health benefits. For the year ended December 31,
2003, commercial ASO fees totaled $122.8 million, or 1.0% of our total premiums and ASO fees.

Specialty Products

We also offer various specialty products including dental, group life, and short-term disability. At
December 31, 2003, we had approximately 1.7 million specialty members. For the year ended December 31,
2003, specialty product premium revenues were approximately $320.2 million, or 2.7% of our total premiums
and ASO fees.

Our Products Marketed to Government Segment Members and Beneficiaries
Medicare+Choice Product

Medicare is a federal program that provides persons age 65 and over and some disabled persons certain
hospital and medical insurance benefits, which include hospitalization benefits for up to 90 days per incident of
illness plus a lifetime reserve aggregating 60 days. Each Medicare-eligible individual is entitled to receive
inpatient hospital care, known as Part A care, without the payment of any premium, but is required to pay a
premium to the federal government, which is adjusted annually, to be eligible for physician care and other
services, known as Part B care.

We contract with CMS under the Medicare+Choice program to provide health insurance coverage in
exchange for a fixed monthly payment per member for Medicare-eligible individuals residing in the geographic
areas in which our HMOs operate. Individuals who elect to participate in Medicare+Choice programs receive
additional benefits not covered by Medicare and are relieved of the obligation to pay some or all of the
deductible or coinsurance amounts but are generally required to use exclusively the services provided by the
HMO (subject to nominal copayments and coinsurance) and are required to pay a Part B premium to the
Medicare program.

The Medicare+Choice product involves a contract between an HMO and CMS, pursuant to which CMS
makes a fixed monthly payment to the HMO on behalf of each Medicare-eligible individual that chooses to
enroll for coverage in the HMO. The fixed monthly payment, payable on the first day of a month, is determined
by formula established by federal law. We sometimes receive the fixed monthly payment early due to a weekend
or holiday falling on the first day of a month. Since this amount is significant, the timing of its receipt can cause a
material fluctuation in our operating cash flows from period to period. We also collect additional member
premiums from our members in most of our markets.

At December 31, 2003, we provided health insurance coverage under CMS contracts to approximately
328,600 Medicare+Choice members for which we received premium revenues of approximately $2.5 billion, or
20.9% of our total premiums and ASO fees for 2003. One such CMS contract covered approximately 229,100
members in Florida and accounted for premium revenues of approximately $1.8 billion, which represented 70.5%
of our Medicare+Choice premium revenues, or 14.7% of our total premiums and ASO fees for 2003.

Our Medicare+Choice contracts with the federal government are renewed for a one-year term each
December 31 unless terminated 90 days prior thereto. Annual increases in per member premiums from

CMS have ranged from as low as approximately 2% to as high as approximately 10%, with an average of
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approximately 5% for the five-year period beginning January 1, 2000. Over the last several years, our
Medicare+Choice membership has declined as we exited some counties. These exits were a result, in part, of
lower CMS reimbursement rates.

In December 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003, or
DIMA was signed into law. The legislation establishes a new Medicare private health plan program, called
MedicareAdvantage, continuing the health plan options afforded under the former Medicare+Choice program
while adding additional health plan options, including regional PPO options beginning in 2006. DIMA includes
provisions that require the 2004 stabilization funding to be directed toward increased reimbursement for
providers, increased benefits or access for members, or decreased member premiums. Including DIMA funding
and changes in member premiums, we expect an 8% to 10% increase in total per member premiums in 2004 with
a corresponding increase in medical costs due to increased reimbursements for providers and increased benefits
for members.

Medicaid Product

Medicaid is a federal program that is state-operated to facilitate the delivery of health care services to low-
income residents. Each electing state develops, through a state specific regulatory agency, a Medicaid managed
care initiative that must be approved by CMS. CMS requires that Medicaid managed care plans meet federal
standards and cost no more than the amount that would have been spent on a comparable fee-for-service basis.
States currently either use a formal proposal process in which they review many bidders before selecting one or
award individual contracts to qualified bidders who apply for entry to the program. In either case, the contractual
relationship with a state generally is for a one-year period. Under these contracts, we receive a fixed monthly
payment from a government agency for which we are required to provide health insurance coverage to enrolled
members. Due to the increased emphasis on state health care reform and budgetary constraints, more states are
utilizing a managed care product in their Medicaid programs.

We currently have Medicaid contracts with the Puerto Rico Health Insurance Administration through June
30, 2005, subject to each party agreeing upon annual rates. In July 2003, we signed amendments to the Puerto
Rico Medicaid contracts regarding a premium rate increase for the annual period ending June 30, 2004. Our other
Medicaid contracts are in Florida and Illinois, and are annual contracts. For the year ended December 31, 2003,
premium revenues from our Medicaid products totaled $487.1 million, or 4.0% of our total premiums and ASO
fees. At December 31, 2003, we had approximately 394,800 Medicaid members in Puerto Rico, or 84% of total
Medicaid members, and 74,100 Medicaid members in Florida and Illinois, or 16% of total Medicaid members.

TRICARE

TRICARE provides health insurance coverage to the dependents of active duty military personnel and to
retired military personnel and their dependents. In November 1995, the United States Department of Defense
awarded us our first TRICARE contract for Regions 3 and 4 covering approximately 1.1 million eligible
beneficiaries in Florida, Georgia, South Carolina, Mississippi, Alabama, Tennessee and Eastern Louisiana. On
July 1, 1996, we began providing health insurance coverage to these approximately 1.1 million eligible
beneficiaries.

On May 31, 2001, we purchased the entity responsible for administering TRICARE benefits for Regions 2
and 5 to approximately 1.2 million eligible beneficiaries in Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Michigan, North
Carolina, Ohio, Tennessee, Virginia, Wisconsin, West Virginia and a portion of Missouri.

Our current TRICARE contract with the Department of Defense will be in effect until April 30, 2004 for
Regions 2 and 5 and until June 30, 2004 for Regions 3 and 4. Each of the contracts is subject to a one-year
renewal at the Government’s option. We believe these contracts will continue until the TRICARE transition
described below.



On August 21, 2003, the Department of Defense notified us that we were awarded the contract for the South
Region, one of three newly-created regions under the government’s revised TRICARE Program. The current
TRICARE Regions 3 and 4 will become part of the new South Region along with Region 6, which is currently
administered by another contractor. The current Regions 2 and 5 will become part of the North Region, which
was awarded to another contractor.

Pursuant to the Department of Defense’s bid process, each of the three awards was subject to protests by
unsuccessful bidders of prime contracts, however, none of the protests were successful.

Under the Department of Defense’s current schedule for implementation of the new TRICARE contracts,
Regions 2 and 5 will transition to the new North Region for the start of healthcare delivery on July 1, 2004.
Regions 3 and 4 will become part of the new South Region for the start of healthcare delivery on August 1, 2004
and Region 6 will become part of our new South Region for the start of healthcare delivery on November 1,
2004. If this schedule is realized, our TRICARE membership is expected to temporarily decline to 1.5 million in
July 2004, and is expected to increase to 2.8 million in November 2004. This will also result in a decline in
revenues during this period.

In addition, retail pharmacy benefits for TRICARE beneficiaries will be administered separately under the
new Department of Defense TRICARE Retail Pharmacy Program. On September 26, 2003, we were notified that
we were not awarded the retail pharmacy contract and, later, that our protest of this award decision was not
upheld.

Currently, three health benefit options are available to TRICARE beneficiaries. In addition to a traditional
indemnity option, participants may enroll in an HMO-like plan with a point-of-service option or take advantage
of reduced copayments by using a network of preferred providers. We have subcontracted with third parties to
provide various administration and specialty services under the contracts. For the year ended December 31, 2003,
TRICARE premium revenues were approximately $2.2 billion, or 18.6% of our total premiums and ASO fees.

At December 31, 2003, we had 1,057,200 TRICARE ASO beneficiaries for which the Department of
Defense retains the risk of financing the cost of their health benefits. We obtained these beneficiaries from our
acquisition of Regions 2 and 5, and by enrollment in two government programs that allow senior beneficiaries to
continue in the TRICARE program even after becoming Medicare eligible, which normally is age 65. The first of
these programs, called TRICARE Senior Pharmacy, became effective April 1, 2001. Under this government
administrative services program, senior TRICARE beneficiaries receive certain pharmacy benefits not covered
under Medicare. On October 1, 2001, the TRICARE for Life program expanded coverage to include medical
benefits as well. For the year ended December 31, 2003, TRICARE administrative services fees totaled $148.8
million, or 1.2% of our total premiums and ASO fees. Once the Department of Defense’s new contracting
structure is implemented, our responsibility for both of these programs will cease. The TRICARE Senior
Pharmacy program is intended to become part of the previously mentioned TRICARE Retail Pharmacy Program.
The TRICARE for Life program will become the TRICARE Dual-Eligible Fiscal Intermediary Contract
(TDEFIC). The TDEFIC contract, for which we did not bid, was awarded to another contractor on July 25, 2003.
It will become effective when the current regional contracts expire.

We do not believe that these TRICARE contract changes occurring during 2004 will have a material adverse
effect on our financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.



The following table summarizes our total medical membership at December 31, 2003, by market and
product:

Commerecial Government
Medicare+ Percent
HMO PPO ASO Choice Medicaid TRICARE Total of Total
(in thousands)
Florida .................... 179.5 83.8 20.1 229.1 55.3 4294 997.2 14.7%
Ilinois .................... 257.4 214.0 82.9 40.2 18.8 74.7 688.0 10.2
Texas .............. ..., 205.7 3242 41.6 21.3 — — 592.8 8.8
PuertoRico ................ 17.1 67.4 11.1 — 394.8 — 490.4 7.2
Ohio ...................... 157.6 619 1363 — — 73.0 428.8 6.3
Kentucky .................. 34.5 202.6 116.7 — — 67.7 421.5 6.2
Wisconsin . ................ 83.7 51.9 182.9 2.6 — 32.2 353.3 52
Georgia ................... 17.4 34.6 1.8 — — 277.0 330.8 4.9
Virginia ................... — 1.2 — — — 187.8 189.0 2.8
North Carolina . ............. — 12.4 2.6 — — 152.1 167.1 2.5
Arizona ................... 343 66.6 41.0 15.5 — — 157.4 2.3
South Carolina .............. — 3.8 0.6 — — 133.7 138.1 2.0
Tennessee ................. — 35.8  13.1 — — 82.1 131.0 1.9
Michigan .................. — 474 2.6 — — 60.2 110.2 1.6
Alabama .................. — — 0.2 — — 105.8 106.0 1.6
Indiana .................... 0.9 36.7 20.1 — — 448 102.5 1.5
Missouri/Kansas ............ 40.8 22.2 5.4 18.3 — 5.0 91.7 1.4
MisSiSSIppl . v« vvvveee — 2.9 0.3 — — 75.4 78.6 1.2
Colorado .................. — 41.5 — — — — 41.5 0.6
TRICAREASO ............. — — — — — 1,057.2 1,057.2 15.6
Others .................... — 13.0 33.1 1.6 — 48.8 96.5 1.5
Totals ..................... 1,0289 11,3239 7124 328.6 468.9 2,906.9 6,769.6 100.0%

Provider Arrangements

We provide our members with access to health care services through our networks of health care providers
with whom we have contracted, including hospitals and other independent facilities such as outpatient surgery
centers, primary care physicians, specialist physicians, dentists and providers of ancillary health care services and
facilities. We have approximately 463,300 contracts with health care providers participating in our networks,
which consist of approximately 294,400 physicians, 3,300 hospitals, and 165,600 ancillary providers and
dentists. These ancillary services and facilities include ambulance services, medical equipment services, home
health agencies, mental health providers, rehabilitation facilities, nursing homes, optical services, and
pharmacies. Our membership base and the ability to influence where our members seek care generally enable us
to obtain contractual discounts with providers.

We use a variety of techniques to provide access to effective and efficient use of health care services for our
members. These techniques include the coordination of care for our members, product and benefit designs,
hospital inpatient management systems, or HIMS, and enrolling members into various disease management
programs. The focal point for health care services in many of our Medicare+Choice and HMO networks is the
primary care physician who, under contract, provides services, and may control utilization of appropriate
services, by directing or approving hospitalization and referrals to specialists and other providers. Some
physicians may have arrangements under which they can earn bonuses when certain target goals relating to the
provisions of quality patient care are met. Our HIMS programs use specially-trained physicians to effectively
manage the entire range of an HMO member’s medical care during a hospital admission and to effectively
coordinate the member’s discharge and post-discharge care. We have available a variety of disease management
programs related to specific medical conditions such as congestive heart failure, coronary artery disease, prenatal
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and premature infant care, asthma related illness, end stage renal disease, diabetes, and breast cancer screening.
We also may focus on certain rare conditions where disease management techniques benefit members in a more
cost effective manner.

We typically contract with hospitals on either a per diem rate, which is an all-inclusive rate per day, a case
rate, which is an all-inclusive rate per admission, or at a discounted charge for inpatient hospital services.
Outpatient hospital services generally are contracted at a flat rate by type of service or at a discounted charge.
These contracts are often multi-year agreements, with rates that are adjusted for inflation annually based on the
consumer price index or other nationally recognized inflation index. Outpatient surgery centers and other
ancillary providers typically are contracted at flat rates per service provided or are reimbursed based upon a
nationally-recognized fee schedule such as the Medicare allowable fee schedule.

Our contracts with physicians typically are automatically renewed each year, unless either party gives
written notice to the other party of their intent to terminate the arrangement. Most of the physicians in our PPO
networks and some of our physicians in our HMO networks are reimbursed based upon a fixed fee schedule,
which typically provides for reimbursement based upon a percentage of the standard Medicare allowable fee
schedule.

Capitation

For 7.1% of our December 31, 2003 medical membership, we contract with hospitals and physicians to
accept financial risk for a defined set of HMO membership. In transferring this risk, we prepay these providers a
monthly fixed-fee per member, known as a capitation payment, to coordinate substantially all of the medical care
for their capitated HMO membership, including some health benefit administrative functions and claims
processing. For these capitated HMO arrangements, we generally agree to reimbursement rates that target a
medical expense ratio ranging from 82% to 89%. Providers participating in hospital-based capitated HMO
arrangements generally receive a monthly payment for all of the services within their system for their HMO
membership. Providers participating in physician-based capitated HMO arrangements generally have
subcontracted directly with hospitals and specialist physicians, and are responsible for reimbursing such hospitals
and physicians for services rendered to their HMO membership.

For 6.4% of our December 31, 2003 medical membership, we contract with physicians under risk-sharing
arrangements whereby physicians have assumed some level of risk for all or a portion of the medical costs of
their HMO membership. Although these arrangements do include capitation payments for services rendered, we
process substantially all of the claims under these arrangements.

Physicians under capitation arrangements typically have stop loss coverage so that a physician’s financial

risk for any single member is limited to a maximum amount on an annual basis. We remain financially
responsible for health care services to our members in the event our providers fail to provide such services.
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Medical membership under these various arrangements was as follows at December 31, 2003 and 2002:

Medical Membership:

December 31, 2003
Capitated HMO hospital
system based
Capitated HMO physician
group based
Risk-sharing
Other

December 31, 2002
Capitated HMO hospital
system based
Capitated HMO physician
group based
Risk-sharing
Other

Commercial Segment

Government Segment

Medical Membership Distribution:

December 31, 2003
Capitated HMO hospital
system based
Capitated HMO physician
group based
Risk-sharing
All other membership . . ..

December 31, 2002
Capitated HMO hospital
system based
Capitated HMO physician
group based
Risk-sharing
Other

Consol.
Fully Total Medicare+ TRICARE Total Total
Insured ASO Segment Choice Medicaid TRICARE ASO Segment  Medical
128,000 — 128,000 38,800 13,600 — — 52,400 180,400
71,700 — 71,700 5,900 220,000 — — 225,900 297,600
68,000 — 68,000 157,500 204,800 — — 362,300 430,300
2,085,100 712,400 2,797,500 126,400 30,500 1,849,700 1,057,200 3,063,800 5,861,300
2,352,800 712,400 3,065,200 328,600 468,900 1,849,700 1,057,200 3,704,400 6,769,600
147,400 — 147,400 47,100 11,900 — — 59,000 206,400
73,900 — 73,900 10,700 292,900 — — 303,600 377,500
67,700 — 67,700 160,200 164,200 — — 324,400 392,100
2,051,300 652,200 2,703,500 126,100 37,000 1,755,800 1,048,700 2,967,600 5,671,100
2,340,300 652,200 2,992,500 344,100 506,000 1,755,800 1,048,700 3,654,600 6,647,100
5.4% — 42% 11.8% 2.9% — — 1.4% 2.7%
3.0% — 2.3% 1.8% 46.9% — — 6.1% 4.4%
2.9% — 2.2% 47.9% 43.7% — — 9.8% 6.4%
88.7% 100.0% 91.3% 38.5% 6.5% 100.0% 100.0% 82.7% 86.5%
100.0%  100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
6.3% — 4.9% 13.7% 2.4% — — 1.6% 3.1%
3.2% — 2.5% 3.1% 57.9% — — 8.3% 5.7%
2.9% — 2.3% 46.6% 32.4% — — 8.9% 5.9%
87.6% 100.0% 90.3% 36.6% 7.3% 100.0% 100.0% 81.2% 85.3%
100.0%  100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Capitation expense as a percentage of total medical expense was as follows for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Medical Expenses:

Capitated HMO expense
Other medical expense

Consolidated medical expense

2003 2002 2001
(dollars in thousands)
............... $ 597,244 6.0% $ 603,617 6.6% $ 546,594 6.6%
................. 9,282,177 94.0% 8,534,579 93.4% 7,733,250 93.4%
...... $9,879,421 100.0% $9,138,196 100.0% $8,279,844 100.0%
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Accreditation Assessment

Our accreditation assessment program consists of several internal programs such as those that credential
providers and those designed to meet the audit standards of federal and state agencies and external accreditation
standards. We also offer quality and outcome measurement and improvement programs such as the Health Plan
Employer Data Information Sets, or HEDIS, which is used by employers, government purchasers and the
National Committee for Quality Assurance, or NCQA, to evaluate HMOs based on various criteria, including
effectiveness of care and member satisfaction.

Physicians participating in our HMO networks must satisfy specific criteria, including licensing, patient
access, office standards, after-hours coverage, and other factors. Most participating hospitals also meet
accreditation criteria established by CMS and/or the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare
Organizations, or JCAHO.

Recredentialing of participating providers occurs every two to three years, depending on applicable state
laws. Recredentialing of participating physicians includes verification of their medical license; review of their
malpractice liability claims history; review of their board certification, if applicable; and review of any
complaints, including any member appeals and grievances. Committees, composed of a peer group of physicians,
review the applications of physicians being considered for credentialing and recredentialing.

We request accreditation for certain of our HMO plans from NCQA and the American Accreditation
Healthcare Commission/Utilization Review Accreditation Commission, or AAHC/URAC. Accreditation or
external review by an approved organization is mandatory in the states of Florida and Kansas for licensure as an
HMO. Accreditation specific to the utilization review process is also required in the state of Georgia for licensure
as an HMO or PPO. Certain commercial businesses, like those impacted by United Auto Workers contracts and
those where the request comes from the employer, require or prefer accredited health plans.

NCQA performs reviews of standards for quality improvement, credentialing, utilization management, and
member rights and responsibilities. We continue to maintain accreditation in select markets through NCQA. Two
markets maintain NCQA accredited status for all HMO products: Humana Health Plan of Ohio, Inc. in
Cincinnati, Ohio (excellent); and Humana Health Plan, Inc., Kentucky (Commendable). Humana Health Plan,
Inc. in Kansas and Missouri completed the NCQA survey process in November 2003 and awaits its decision.

AAHC/URAC performs reviews of standards for utilization management, and for health plan standards in
quality management, credentialing, rights and responsibilities, and network management. Several markets have
achieved URAC health plan accreditation for all HMO products: Humana Medical Plan, Inc. in north Florida,
south Florida, central Florida (Daytona, Tampa and Orlando), and Humana Health Plan, Inc. in Kansas. The
Atlanta market has URAC utilization management accreditation for HMO and PPO product lines. AAHC/URAC
utilization management accreditation was received by Humana Military Healthcare Services, Inc., which
administers the TRICARE program and for the Green Bay service center.

Some of our HMO entities are unaccredited because we sought accreditation only where regulatory
requirements were in place, such as in Florida, which requires accreditation for HMO licensing, or in market
areas where commercial groups use it as part of the criteria for choosing carriers. We are piloting ISO 9001:2000
certification as an alternative to accreditation. ISO is the international standards organization, which has
developed an international commercial set of certifications as to quality and process, called ISO 9001:2000. At
this time, the following clinical programs have received ISO registration: transplant management, centralized
clinical operations providing personal nurse services, pharmacy management, and disease management.

Sales and Marketing

Individuals become members of our commercial HMOs and PPOs through their employers or other groups
which typically offer employees or members a selection of health insurance products, pay for all or part of the
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premiums and make payroll deductions for any premiums payable by the employees. We attempt to become an
employer’s or group’s exclusive source of health insurance benefits by offering a variety of HMO, PPO and
specialty products that provide cost-effective quality health care coverage consistent with the needs and
expectations of the employees or members. Beginning in June 2002, we also offer health insurance products to
individuals.

We use various methods to market our commercial, Medicare+Choice and Medicaid products, including
television, radio, the Internet, telemarketing, and direct mailings. At December 31, 2003, we used approximately
38,000 licensed independent brokers and agents and approximately 220 licensed employees to sell our
commercial products. Many of our employer group customers are represented by insurance brokers and
consultants who assist these groups in the design and purchase of health care products. We generally pay brokers
a commission based on premiums, with commissions varying by market and premium volume.

At December 31, 2003, we employed approximately 1,280 sales representatives, who are each paid a salary
and/or per member commission, to market our Medicare+Choice and Medicaid products in the continental
United States. We also employed approximately 380 telemarketing representatives who assisted in the marketing
of Medicare+Choice and Medicaid products by making appointments for sales representatives with prospective
members.

Risk Management

Through the use of internally developed underwriting criteria, we determine the risk we are willing to
assume and the amount of premium to charge for our commercial products. In most instances, employer and
other groups must meet our underwriting standards in order to qualify to contract with us for coverage. Small
group reform laws in some states have imposed regulations which provide for guaranteed issue of certain health
insurance products and prescribe certain limitations on the variation in rates charged based upon assessment of
health conditions.

Underwriting techniques are not employed in connection with Medicare+Choice products because CMS
regulations require us to accept all eligible Medicare applicants regardless of their health or prior medical history.
We also are not permitted to employ underwriting criteria for the Medicaid product, but rather we follow CMS
and state requirements. In addition, with respect to our TRICARE business, we do not employ any underwriting
techniques because we must accept all eligible beneficiaries who choose to participate.

Competition

The health benefits industry is highly competitive and contracts for the sale of commercial products are
generally bid or renewed annually. Our competitors vary by local market and include other managed care
companies, national insurance companies, and other HMOs and PPOs, including HMOs and PPOs owned by
Blue Cross/Blue Shield plans. Many of our competitors have larger memberships and/or greater financial
resources than our health plans in the markets in which we compete. Our ability to sell our products and to retain
customers is, or may be, influenced by such factors as benefits, pricing, contract terms, number and quality of
participating physicians and other providers, utilization review, claims processing, administrative efficiency,
relationships with agents, quality of customer service, and accreditation results.

Government Regulation

Government regulation of health care products and services is a changing area of law that varies from
jurisdiction to jurisdiction. Regulatory agencies generally have broad discretion to issue regulations and interpret
and enforce laws and rules. Changes in applicable laws and regulations are continually being considered, and
the interpretation of existing laws and rules also may change periodically. These regulatory revisions could affect
our operations and financial results. Also, it may become increasingly difficult to control medical costs if federal
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and state bodies continue to consider and enact significant and sometimes onerous managed care laws
and regulations.

Enforcement of health care fraud and abuse laws has become a top priority for the nation’s law enforcement
entities. The funding of such law enforcement efforts has increased dramatically in the past few years and is
expected to continue. The focus of these efforts has been directed at participants in federal government health
care programs such as Medicare+Choice, Medicaid, and the Federal Employee Health Benefits Program, or
FEHBP. We participate extensively in these programs and have continued our stringent regulatory compliance
efforts for these programs. The programs are subject to very technical rules. When combined with law
enforcement intolerance for any level of noncompliance, these rules mean that compliance efforts in this area
continue to be challenging.

We are subject to various governmental audits, investigations, and enforcement actions. These include
possible government actions relating to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, as amended, or ERISA,
FEHBP, federal and state fraud and abuse laws, and other laws relating to Medicare+Choice, including adjusted
community rating development, special payment status, and various other areas. Adjusted community rating
development is the government-defined rating formula used to explain the Medicare+Choice benefits we offer
individuals eligible for Medicare benefits based on a particular community and certain other factors. Special
payment status refers to, among others, Medicare+Choice members who are institutionalized, Medicaid-eligible,
or members who have contracted end-stage renal disease. The Medicare+Choice plan receives a higher payment
for members who qualify for one or more of these statuses. We are currently involved in various government
investigations, audits and reviews, some of which are under ERISA, and others under the authority of various
states’ departments of insurance. On May 31, 2000, we entered into a five-year Corporate Integrity Agreement
with the Office of the Inspector General for the Department of Health and Human Services as part of a settlement
of a Medicare overpayment issue arising from an audit by the Office of the Inspector General. Although any of
the pending government actions could result in assessment of damages, civil or criminal fines or penalties, and
other sanctions against us, including exclusion from participation in government programs, we do not believe the
results of any of these actions, individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on our
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Of our seven licensed and active HMO subsidiaries as of February 1, 2004, five are qualified under the
Federal Health Maintenance Organization Act of 1973, as amended. To obtain federal qualification, an HMO
must meet certain requirements, including conformance with benefit, rating, and financial reporting standards.

As of February 1, 2004, Humana Medical Plan, Inc., Humana Health Plan of Texas, Inc., and Humana
Health Plan, Inc. each hold CMS contracts under the Medicare+Choice program to sell Medicare HMO products
in a total of seven states. In addition, Humana Insurance Company holds CMS contracts under a
Medicare+Choice program to sell a private fee-for-service product in eleven states and a pilot PPO product in
three counties in Florida.

CMS conducts audits of HMOs qualified under its Medicare+Choice program at least biannually and may
perform other reviews more frequently to determine compliance with federal regulations and contractual
obligations. These audits include review of the HMOs’ administration and management, including management
information and data collection systems, fiscal stability, utilization management and physician incentive
arrangements, health services delivery, quality assurance, marketing, enrollment and disenrollment activity,
claims processing, and complaint systems.

CMS regulations require submission of quarterly and annual financial statements. In addition, CMS requires
certain disclosures to CMS and to Medicare+Choice beneficiaries concerning operations of a health plan
contracted under the Medicare+Choice program. CMS’s rules require disclosure to members upon request of
information concerning financial arrangements and incentive plans between an HMO and physicians in the
HMOs’ networks. These rules also require certain levels of stop-loss coverage to protect contracted physicians
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against major losses relating to patient care, depending on the amount of financial risk they assume. The
reporting of certain health care data contained in HEDIS is another important CMS disclosure requirement.

Our Medicaid products are regulated by the applicable state agency in the state in which we sell a Medicaid
product and by the Health Insurance Administration in Puerto Rico, in conformance with federal approval of the
applicable state plan, and are subject to periodic reviews by these agencies. The reviews are similar in nature to
those performed by CMS.

Laws in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and each of the states in which we operate our HMOs, PPOs and
other health insurance-related services regulate our operations, including the scope of benefits, rate formulas,
delivery systems, utilization review procedures, quality assurance, complaint systems, enrollment requirements,
claim payments, marketing and advertising. The HMO, PPO and other health insurance-related products we offer
are sold under licenses issued by the applicable insurance regulators. Under state laws, our HMOs and health
insurance companies are audited by state departments of insurance for financial and contractual compliance, and
our HMOs are audited for compliance with health services standards by respective state departments of health.
Most states’ laws require such audits to be performed at least once every three years.

Our licensed subsidiaries are subject to regulation under state insurance holding company and
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico regulations. These regulations generally require, among other things, prior
approval and/or notice of new products, rates, benefit changes, and certain material transactions, including
dividend payments, purchases or sales of assets, intercompany agreements, and the filing of various financial and
operational reports.

Certain of our subsidiaries operate in states that regulate the payment of dividends, loans, or other cash
transfers to Humana Inc., our parent company, require minimum levels of equity, and limit investments to
approved securities. The amount of dividends that may be paid to Humana Inc. by these subsidiaries, without
prior approval by state regulatory authorities, is limited based on the entity’s level of statutory income and
statutory capital and surplus. In most states, prior notification is provided before paying a dividend even if
approval is not required.

As of December 31, 2003, we maintained aggregate statutory capital and surplus of $1,086.5 million in our
state regulated health insurance subsidiaries. Each of these subsidiaries was in compliance with applicable
statutory requirements which aggregated $640.4 million. Although the minimum required levels of equity are
largely based on premium volume, product mix, and the quality of assets held, minimum requirements can vary
significantly at the state level. Certain states rely on risk-based capital requirements, or RBC, to define the
required levels of equity. RBC is a model developed by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners to
monitor an entity’s solvency. This calculation indicates recommended minimum levels of required capital and
surplus and signals regulatory measures should actual surplus fall below these recommended levels. If RBC were
adopted by all states at December 31, 2003, each of our subsidiaries would be in compliance, and we would have
$381.9 million of aggregate capital and surplus above any of the levels that require corrective action under RBC.

One TRICARE subsidiary under the Regions 3 and 4 contract with the Department of Defense is required to
maintain current assets at least equivalent to its current liabilities. We were in compliance with this requirement
at December 31, 2003.

Our management works proactively to ensure compliance with all governmental laws and regulations
affecting our business.

Health Care Reform

There continue to be diverse legislative and regulatory initiatives at both the federal and state levels to affect
aspects of the nation’s health care system.
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Federal

On December 8, 2003, President Bush signed into law the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and
Modernization Act of 2003, or DIMA. DIMA makes many significant changes to the Medicare fee-for-service
and Medicare+Choice programs, as well as other changes to the commercial health insurance marketplace. Most
significantly, DIMA creates a prescription drug benefit for Medicare beneficiaries, establishes a new Medicare
Advantage program to replace the Medicare+Choice program, and enacts health savings accounts, or HSAs, for
non-Medicare eligible individuals and groups.

In 2004 and 2005, older Americans will be eligible to purchase a discount card. Low-income seniors also
will receive an annual subsidy of $600 to further defray drug costs. Distribution of the discount cards is expected
in March or April 2004. Beginning in 2006, Medicare beneficiaries will be able to sign up for a stand-alone drug
plan or join a private health plan that offers drug coverage. DIMA adds a new payment methodology for private
MedicareAdvantage plans in 2004. This methodology provides another basis of payment equal to 100% of
Medicare fee-for-service costs and changes the 2% minimum update to include the greater of 2% or the
MedicareAdvantage growth rate.

The legislation establishes a new Medicare private health plan program, called MedicareAdvantage, to offer
regional PPO options beginning in 2006 and a continuance of HMO, Point-of-Service, PPO (those established
prior to December 31, 2005), and Private-Fee-for-Service options in defined, local service areas.

The legislation also includes a provision establishing HSA’s, tax-advantaged savings accounts that can be
used to pay for medical expenses incurred by individuals, their spouse, and their dependents.

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, includes administrative
provisions directed at simplifying electronic data interchange through standardizing transactions, establishing
uniform health care provider, payer, and employer identifiers and seeking protections for confidentiality and
security of patient data. Under the new HIPAA standard transactions and code sets rules, we have made
significant systems enhancements and invested in new technological solutions. The compliance and enforcement
date for standard transactions and code sets rules was October 16, 2003. We have continued to be in compliance
with this regulation. However, as many providers indicated that they could not yet comply, CMS stated that
covered entities making a good faith effort to comply with HIPAA transactions and code-set standards would be
allowed to implement contingency plans to maintain their operations and cash flows. On October 15, 2003, we
announced implementation of a contingency plan to accept non-compliant electronic transactions from our
providers. We will continue to accept and process transactions sent in pre-HIPAA electronic formats from
providers who are showing a good-faith effort until all providers and clearinghouses are capable of transmitting
fully compliant standards transactions as defined in the HIPAA implementation guidelines or until CMS begins
enforcement of the HIPAA Electronic Data Interchange regulations. We believe that the implementation of our
contingency plans has minimized any disruptions in our business operations during this transition. However, if
entities with which we do business do not ultimately comply with the HIPAA transactions and code set
standards, it could result in disruptions of certain of our business operations.

In addition, Congress is evaluating proposals to include establishing additional protections for personal
health information, tax credits for the uninsured, proposals to reduce the number of medical errors by health care
providers and systems of care, and various state and federal purchasing plans to allow individuals and small
employers to purchase health insurance. Many of these proposals may require additional administrative costs to
ensure compliance and we are currently assessing their cost and impact on premiums for the future.

State

We continue to encounter regulation on health care claims payment practices at the state level. This
legislation and possible future regulation and oversight could expose us to additional liability and penalties.
Supplemental legislation includes, among other provisions, claims submission content and electronic submission.
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We view electronic submission as a favorable development that will simplify claims interactions. A few states
are considering proposals that place new limits on insurer contacts with hospitals and physicians. These
proposals include provisions to expand payment disclosure, limit implementation of claims payment procedures,
and extend an insurer payment liability where intermediaries fail to pay and restrict recoupment.

Some states are proposing the creation of small employer pooled purchasing arrangements. Although these
pooled purchasing arrangements may affect the small group market, most of the proposals require these
purchasing arrangements to comply with the standard small group market regulations. Similar arrangements
enacted in the early 1990s had a very limited affect on the small group insurance market. A limited number of
states are considering additional restrictions on the use of health status in small group rating. Mandate-free
benefit plans are pending in a number of states. Some of these proposals could allow insurers more flexibility in
the use of member cost sharing. There is activity in some states supporting an expansion of disclosure by
hospitals, physicians and other health care providers of quality and charge data either directly to patients or to
state agencies that must make it publicly available.

Medical malpractice reform is receiving significant attention. Pending medical malpractice reform proposals
differ substantially relative to the entities covered by the reforms. Since the substance of the reforms remains
under discussion and the scope of covered entities has not been resolved in most states, management is unable to
predict future activity under these laws.

We are unable to predict how existing federal or state laws and regulations may be changed or interpreted,
what additional laws or regulations affecting our businesses may be enacted or proposed, when and which of the
proposed laws will be adopted or what effect any such new laws and regulations will have on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Other
Captive Insurance Company

We bear general business risks associated with operating our Company such as professional and general
liability, employee workers’ compensation, and officer and director errors and omissions risks. Professional and
general liability risks may include, for example, medical malpractice claims and disputes with members
regarding benefit coverage. We retain these risks through our wholly-owned, consolidated insurance subsidiary.
We reduce exposure to our own general business risks by insuring levels of coverage for losses in excess of our
retained limits with a number of third party insurance companies. We remain liable in the event these insurance
companies are unable to pay their portion of the losses. In an effort to minimize credit risk, we insure our risks
with a number of insurance companies having a long history of strong financial ratings. On January 1, 2002, and
again on January 1, 2003, we reduced the amount of coverage purchased from third party insurance carriers and
increased the amount of risk we retain due to substantially higher insurance rates. We provide a detail of the
significant assets and liabilities related to our captive insurance subsidiary in Note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Centralized Management Services

We provide centralized management services to each health plan from our headquarters and service centers.
These services include management information systems, product administration, financing, personnel,
development, accounting, legal advice, public relations, marketing, insurance, purchasing, risk management,
actuarial, underwriting, and claims processing.

Employees

As of December 31, 2003, we had approximately 13,700 employees. We have not experienced any work
stoppages and believe we have good relations with our employees.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We own our principal executive office, which is located in the Humana Building, 500 West Main Street,
Louisville, Kentucky 40202. In addition, as of December 31, 2003, we own buildings in Louisville, Kentucky,
and Green Bay, Wisconsin, and lease facilities in Cincinnati, Ohio and Puerto Rico, all of which are used for
customer service, enrollment, and claims processing. During 2003, we completed the consolidation of the San
Antonio, Texas, Jacksonville, Florida, and Madison, Wisconsin customer service center operations into the
remaining four locations. Some of these former service center buildings have been sold or are in the process of
being sold. Our Louisville and Green Bay facilities also house other corporate functions.

We also own or lease administrative market offices and medical centers. We no longer operate most of these
medical centers but, rather, lease them to their provider operators. The following table lists the location of
properties we owned or leased at December 31, 2003:

Medical Administrative
Centers Offices

Owned Leased Owned Leased Total
Florida ............................. 2 39 7 50 98
Kentucky .......... ... .. .. ... ... 4 1 11 9 25
INinois . ........ ... i 7 2 — 11 20
Texas ... — — 4 14 18
Georgia . ... — — — 14 14
Ohio ... — — — 13 13
North Carolina ....................... — — — 12 12
PuertoRico . ............ ... ... ... ... — — — 10 10
WISConSin .. ..oo i — — 1 8 9
Missouri/Kansas . ..................... 3 2 — 3 8
Virginia . ... i — — — 8 8
Others ..........cciiiiiiii.. 1 — 1 40 42
Total ........... ... ... .......... 17 44 24 192 277

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Securities Litigation

In late 1997, three purported class action complaints were filed in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of Florida by former stockholders of Physician Corporation of America, or PCA, against PCA
and certain of its former directors and officers. We acquired PCA by a merger that became effective on
September 8, 1997. The three actions were consolidated into a single action entitled /n re Physician Corporation
of America Securities Litigation. The consolidated complaint alleged that PCA and the individual defendants
knowingly or recklessly made false and misleading statements in press releases and public filings with respect to
the financial and regulatory difficulties of PCA’s workers’ compensation business. The Court certified a class on
May 20, 2003. On August 25, 2003, the parties entered into an agreement to settle the case for the amount of
$10.2 million. On November 26, 2003, the settlement received final approval by the Court. A provision for the
settlement was previously made in our financial statements during the fourth quarter of 2002. The Company had
pursued insurance coverage for this matter from two insurers and has settled the matter with one of the insurers
who will pursue coverage against the other insurer.

Managed Care Industry Purported Class Action Litigation

We have been involved in several purported class action lawsuits that are part of a wave of generally similar
actions that target the health care payer industry and particularly target managed care companies. These include a
lawsuit against us and nine of our competitors that purports to be brought on behalf of physicians who have
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treated our members. As a result of action by the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation (“JPML”), the case
was consolidated in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida, and has been styled In re
Managed Care Litigation.

The plaintiffs assert that we and other defendants improperly paid providers’ claims and “downcoded” their
claims by paying lesser amounts than they submitted. The complaint alleges, among other things, multiple
violations under the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act, or RICO, as well as various breaches
of contract and violations of regulations governing the timeliness of claim payments. We moved to dismiss the
complaint on September 8, 2000, and the other defendants filed similar motions thereafter. On March 2, 2001,
the Court dismissed certain of the plaintiffs’ claims pursuant to the defendants’ several motions to dismiss.
However, the Court allowed the plaintiffs to attempt to correct the deficiencies in their complaint with an
amended pleading with respect to all of the allegations except a claim under the federal Medicare regulations,
which was dismissed with prejudice. The Court also left undisturbed the plaintiffs’ claims for breach of contract.
On March 26, 2001, the plaintiffs filed their amended complaint, which, among other things, added four state or
county medical associations as additional plaintiffs. Two of those, the Denton County Medical Society and the
Texas Medical Association, purport to bring their actions against us, as well as against several other defendant
companies. The Medical Association of Georgia and the California Medical Association purport to bring their
actions against various other defendant companies. The associations seek injunctive relief only. The defendants
filed a motion to dismiss the amended complaint on April 30, 2001.

On September 26, 2002, the Court granted the plaintiffs’ request to file a second amended complaint, adding
additional plaintiffs, including the Florida Medical Association, which purports to bring its action against all
defendants. On October 21, 2002, the defendants moved to dismiss the second amended complaint. On December
8, 2003, the Court denied the motion.

Also on September 26, 2002, the Court certified a global class consisting of all medical doctors who
provided services to any person insured by any defendant from August 4, 1990, to September 26, 2002. The class
includes two subclasses. A national subclass consists of medical doctors who provided services to any person
insured by a defendant when the doctor has a claim against such defendant and is not required to arbitrate that
claim. A California subclass consists of medical doctors who provided services to any person insured in
California by any defendant when the doctor was not bound to arbitrate the claim.

On October 10, 2002, the defendants asked the Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit to review the class
certification decision. On November 20, 2002, the Court of Appeals agreed to review the class issue. The
appellate court heard oral argument on September 11, 2003, but no ruling has been issued. Discovery is ongoing,
and the Court has set a trial date of September 13, 2004. Also, on January 15, 2004, the Court filed a notice with
the JPML that will permit the JPML to decide whether the case should remain in Miami, Florida for trial or be
separately remanded for trial to the courts in which the actions were filed prior to their transfer to and
consolidation in Miami, Florida. In the case of the Company, that would be the United States District Court for
the Western District of Kentucky. In the meantime, two of the defendants, Aetna Inc. and Cigna Corporation,
have entered into settlement agreements which have been approved by the Court.

We intend to continue to defend this action vigorously.

Other

The Academy of Medicine of Cincinnati, the Butler County Medical Society, the Northern Kentucky
Medical Society, and several physicians filed antitrust suits in state courts in Ohio and Kentucky against Aetna
Health, Inc., Humana Health Plan of Ohio, Inc., Anthem Blue Cross Blue Shield, and United Healthcare of Ohio,
Inc., alleging that the defendants violated the Ohio and Kentucky antitrust laws by conspiring to fix the
reimbursement rates paid to physicians in the Greater Cincinnati and Northern Kentucky region. Each suit sought
class certification, damages and injunctive relief. Plaintiffs cited no evidence that any such conspiracy existed,
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but based their allegations on assertions that physicians in the Greater Cincinnati region are paid less than
physicians in other major cities in Ohio and Kentucky.

On October 23, 2003, we entered into a settlement agreement with the plaintiffs that specified an increase in
future reimbursement we pay to a class consisting of physicians in a 12-county area in Southern Ohio and
Northern Kentucky over the next three years. We agreed to increase the reimbursement, in the aggregate, subject
to certain contingencies, that will increase the amounts paid for physician services over the amounts paid in 2003
as follows: $20 million in 2004, an additional $15 million in 2005 and an additional $10 million in 2006. The
agreement also provides for a committee to monitor our contracting practices for the period 2007 through 2010,
with reporting to us if any anticompetitive behavior is believed to have occurred. The agreement was approved
by the courts on December 30, 2003.

Government Audits and Other Litigation and Proceedings

In July 2000, the Office of the Florida Attorney General initiated an investigation, apparently relating to
some of the same matters that are involved in the managed care industry purported class action litigation
described above. On September 21, 2001, the Texas Attorney General initiated a similar investigation. No actions
have been filed against us by either state. These investigations are ongoing, and we have cooperated with the
regulators in both states.

On May 31, 2000, we entered into a five-year Corporate Integrity Agreement, or CIA, with the Office of
Inspector General, or OIG, of the Department of Health and Human Services. Under the CIA, we are obligated
to, among other things, provide training, conduct periodic audits and make periodic reports to the OIG.

In addition, our business practices are subject to review by various state insurance and health care regulatory
authorities and federal regulatory authorities. There has been increased scrutiny by these regulators of the
managed health care companies’ business practices, including claims payment practices and utilization
management practices. We have been and continue to be subject to such reviews. Some of these have resulted in
fines and could require changes in some of our practices and could also result in additional fines or other
sanctions.

We also are involved in other lawsuits that arise in the ordinary course of our business operations, including
claims of medical malpractice, bad faith, nonacceptance or termination of providers, failure to disclose network
discounts, and various other provider arrangements, as well as challenges to subrogation practices. We also are
subject to claims relating to performance of contractual obligations to providers, members, and others, including
failure to properly pay claims and challenges to the use of certain software products in processing claims.
Pending state and federal legislative activity may increase our exposure for any of these types of claims.

In addition, several courts, including several federal appellate courts, recently have issued decisions which
have the effect of eroding the scope of ERISA preemption for employer-sponsored health plans, thereby
exposing us to greater liability for medical negligence claims. This includes decisions which hold that plans may
be liable for medical negligence claims in some situations based solely on medical necessity decisions made in
the course of adjudicating claims. In addition, some courts have issued rulings which make it easier to hold plans
liable for medical negligence on the part of network providers on the theory that providers are agents of the plans
and that the plans are therefore vicariously liable for the injuries to members by providers.

Personal injury claims and claims for extracontractual damages arising from medical benefit denials are
covered by insurance from our wholly owned captive insurance subsidiary and excess carriers, except to the
extent that claimants seek punitive damages, which may not be covered by insurance in certain states in which
insurance coverage for punitive damages is not permitted. In addition, insurance coverage for all or certain forms
of liability has become increasingly costly and may become unavailable or prohibitively expensive in the future.
On January 1, 2002 and again on January 1, 2003, we reduced the amount of coverage purchased from third party
insurance carriers and increased the amount of risk we retain due to substantially higher insurance rates.
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We do not believe that any pending or threatened legal actions against us or any pending or threatened
audits or investigations by state or federal regulatory agencies will have a material adverse effect on our financial
position, results of operations, or cash flows. However, the likelihood or outcome of current or future suits, like
the purported class action lawsuits described above, or governmental investigations, cannot be accurately
predicted with certainty. In addition, the potential for increased liability for medical negligence arising from
claims adjudication, along with the increased litigation that has accompanied the negative publicity and public
perception of our industry, adds to this uncertainty. Therefore, such legal actions and government audits and
investigations could have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations, and cash
flows.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
Not applicable.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
a) Market Information

Our common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol HUM. The following table
shows the range of high and low closing sales prices as reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite
Tape for each quarter in the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002:

High Low

Year Ended December 31, 2003

First quarter ... ...ttt $10.71 $ 8.68

Second qUArter .. ...t $16.00 $ 9.09

Third quarter ......... ... $18.50  $15.30

Fourth quarter ........... . ... it $23.29  $18.42
Year Ended December 31, 2002

First quarter ... ...ttt $13.60  $11.46

Second qUArter .. ... ...t $17.09  $13.57

Third quarter ......... ... $15.04 $11.35

Fourth quarter ........... . ... i, $14.15 $ 9.87

b) Holders of our Capital Stock

As of March 1, 2004, there were approximately 6,300 holders of record of our common stock.

¢) Dividends

Since February 1993, we have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We do not
presently intend to pay dividends, and we plan to retain our earnings for future operations and growth of our
businesses.

d) Equity Compensation Plan

The information required by this part of Item 5 is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held on April 22, 2004 appearing under the
caption “Equity Compensation Plan Information” of such Proxy Statement.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

2003(a) 2002(b)(c) 2001 2000 1999(d)
(in thousands, except per share results, membership and ratios)

Summary of Operations

(b)

(©)

(d)

Revenues:
Premiums .. ... $11,825,283  $10,930,397 $ 9,938,961  $10,394,631 $ 9,958,582
Administrative services fees ............. ... .. .. ... 271,676 244,396 137,090 86,298 97,940
Investment and other income . ....................... 129,352 86,388 118,835 115,021 155,013
Total revenues . ............oueiieinnennnnn.. 12,226,311 11,261,181 10,194,886 10,595,950 10,211,535
Operating expenses:
Medical ...... .. 9,879,421 9,138,196 8,279,844 8,781,998 8,533,090
Selling, general and administrative ................... 1,858,028 1,775,069 1,545,129 1,524,799 1,466,181
Depreciation and amortization ... .................... 126,779 120,730 161,531 146,548 123,858
Goodwill impairment and other expenses .............. — — — — 459,852
Total operating eXpenses . ...................... 11,864,228 11,033,995 9,986,504 10,453,345 10,582,981
Income (loss) from operations ........................... 362,083 227,186 208,382 142,605 (371,446)
Interest eXpense ... ........oiuiin i 17,367 17,252 25,302 28,615 33,393
Income (loss) before incometaxes .. ...................... 344,716 209,934 183,080 113,990 (404,839)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ...................... 115,782 67,179 65,909 23,938 (22,419)
Net income (I0SS) .. oottt e $ 228934 $ 142,755 $ 117,171 $ 90,052 $ (382,420)
Basic earnings (loss) per common share ................... $ 144 $ 087 $ 071 $ 054 $ (2.28)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share .. ................ $ 141  $ 085 $ 070 $ 054 $ (2.28)
Financial Position
Cash and investments ... .............uiineinnennn.... $ 2927213 $ 2415914 $ 2,327,139  $ 2,312,399 $ 2,785,702
TOtal @SSELS .+« v v v et 5,293,323 4,879,937 4,681,693 4,597,533 4,951,578
Medical and other expenses payable ...................... 1,272,156 1,142,131 1,086,386 1,181,027 1,756,227
Debt . 642,638 604,913 578,489 599,952 686,213
Stockholders’ equity ........... ... i 1,835,949 1,606,474 1,507,949 1,360,421 1,268,009
Key Financial Indicators
Medical eXpense ratio .. ...........oiiiiiiiiiii. 83.5% 83.6% 83.3% 84.5% 85.7%
SG&A eXpense 1atio .. .....uueet it 15.4% 15.9% 15.3% 14.5% 14.6%
Medical Membership by Segment
Commercial:
Fullyinsured .............. oo, 2,352,800 2,340,300 2,301,300 2,545,800 3,083,600
Administrative servicesonly ........................ 712,400 652,200 592,500 612,300 648,000
Medicare supplement . .............. .. — — — — 44,500
Total Commercial ............................ 3,065,200 2,992,500 2,893,800 3,158,600 3,776,100
Government:
Medicare+Choice .. ....ovviie e 328,600 344,100 393,900 494,200 488,500
Medicaid ........ ... .. 468,900 506,000 490,800 575,600 616,600
TRICARE ... 1,849,700 1,755,800 1,714,600 1,070,300 1,058,000
TRICARE ASO . ... e 1,057,200 1,048,700 942,700 — —
Total Government . ...............coovueunn.n.. 3,704,400 3,654,600 3,542,000 2,140,100 2,163,100
Total Medical Membership ..................... 6,769,600 6,647,100 6,435,800 5,298,700 5,939,200
Commercial Specialty Membership
Dental .. ... 1,147,400 1,094,600 1,123,300 1,148,100 1,146,000
Other ... 520,700 545,400 571,300 678,900 1,333,100
Total specialty membership ..................... 1,668,100 1,640,000 1,694,600 1,827,000 2,479,100
(a) Includes expenses of $30.8 million pretax ($18.8 million after tax, or $0.12 per diluted share) for the writedown of building and

equipment and software abandonment expenses. These expenses were partially offset by a gain of $15.2 million pretax ($10.1 million
after tax, or $0.06 per diluted share) for the sale of a venture capital investment. The net impact of these items reduced pretax income by
$15.6 million ($8.7 million after tax, or $0.05 per diluted share).

Includes expenses of $85.6 million pretax ($58.2 million after tax, or $0.35 per diluted share) for severance and facility costs related to
reducing our administrative cost structure with the elimination of three customer service centers and an enterprise-wide workforce
reduction, reserves for liabilities related to a previous acquisition and the impairment in the fair value of certain private debt and equity
mvestments.

As described in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements included herein, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, as of January 1, 2002. We ceased amortizing goodwill upon adopting Statement 142 on
January 1, 2002. Note 5 identifies goodwill amortized in 2001 and the estimated impact on our reported net income and earnings per
common share had amortization been excluded from 2001 results.

Includes expenses of $584.8 million pretax ($499.3 million after tax, or $2.97 per diluted share) primarily related to goodwill
impairment, losses on non-core asset sales, professional liability reserve strengthening, premium deficiency and medical reserve
strengthening.
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The consolidated financial statements of Humana Inc. in this document present the Company’s financial
position, results of operations and cash flows, and should be read in conjunction with the following discussion
and analysis. References to “we,” “us,” “our,” “Company,” and “Humana” mean Humana Inc. and its
subsidiaries. This discussion includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. When used in this filing and in future filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, in our press releases, investor presentations, and in oral statements made by or with the approval
of one of our executive officers, the words or phrases like “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “likely will
result,” “estimates,” “projects” or variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify
such forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance
and are subject to risks, uncertainties, and assumptions, including, among other things, information set forth in
the “Cautionary Statements” section of this document. Because our pending acquisition has not yet occurred,
these forward looking statements exclude its impact. In light of these risks, uncertainties, and assumptions, the
forward-looking events discussed in this document might not occur. There may also be other risks that we are
unable to predict at this time. Any of these risks and uncertainties may cause actual results to differ materially
from the results discussed in the forward-looking statements.

» e

Overview

Headquartered in Louisville, Kentucky, Humana Inc. is one of the nation’s largest publicly traded health
benefits companies, based on our 2003 revenues of $12.2 billion. We offer coordinated health insurance coverage
and related services through a variety of traditional and Internet-based plans for employer groups, government-
sponsored programs, and individuals. As of December 31, 2003, we had approximately 6.8 million members in
our medical insurance programs, as well as approximately 1.7 million members in our specialty products
programs. In 2003, approximately 70% of our premiums and administrative services fees resulted from members
located in Florida, Illinois, Texas, Kentucky, and Ohio. During 2003, we derived approximately 42% of our
premiums and administrative services fees from contracts with the federal government including two federal
government contracts with the Department of Defense to provide health insurance coverage to TRICARE
beneficiaries and our contracts with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS, to provide health
insurance coverage for our Medicare+Choice members.

We manage our business with two segments: Commercial and Government. The Commercial segment
consists of members enrolled in products marketed to employer groups and individuals, and includes three lines
of business: fully insured medical, administrative services only, or ASO, and specialty. The Government segment
consists of members enrolled in government-sponsored programs, and includes three lines of business:
Medicare+Choice, Medicaid, and TRICARE. Our Government segment has produced consistent profits and
relatively stable margins for many years. Our business strategy largely revolves around increasing our
Commercial segment profitability while building on our existing strength in the Government segment.

Our strategy to increase Commercial segment profitability focuses on providing solutions for employers to
the rising cost of health care through the use of innovative and consumer-choice product designs which are
supported by service excellence and industry-leading electronic capabilities, including education, tools and
technologies provided primarily through the Internet. To that end, we have developed an innovative suite of
products styled as “Smart” products. We believe that these Smart products offer the best solution for many
employers to the problem of fast rising health care costs for their employees. Although enrollment in our Smart
products is a relatively modest 130,000 members at December 31, 2003, we believe that substantial growth in
these products, which may be competitively priced to produce higher margins, is the key for our continuing
improvement in the Commercial segment. January 2004 sales were approximately 70,000 in our Smart products.

Other important elements which impact our Commercial segment profitability are the competitive pricing
environment and market conditions. With respect to pricing, there is the balancing act between sustaining or
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increasing underwriting margins versus achieving enrollment growth. With respect to market conditions, there is
the impact of economies of scale on administrative overhead. As a result of the decline in popularity of tightly
managed HMOs and intensive utilization review procedures, medical costs become increasingly comparable
among the larger competitors, with product design and consumer involvement then becoming the more important
drivers of medical services consumption. As a result, administrative expense efficiency is becoming a primary
driver of commercial margin sustainability. In line with that philosophy, we continue to reduce our
administrative expense structure, realize administrative expense savings through technology tools, and look at
acquisition opportunities that align with our geographic presence and Commercial strategy.

In December 2003, we announced that we had reached a definitive agreement with the Ochsner Clinic
Foundation of New Orleans, Louisiana to acquire Ochsner Health Plan. We believe that this acquisition will
enhance our presence in the Southern United States, an area growing in population and commercial activity. In
addition to creating a new Humana market in New Orleans, the Ochsner Health Plan acquisition is expected to
facilitate sales opportunities in our existing Houston market and is anticipated to make us more attractive to
national accounts.

In our Government segment, there were two significant developments in 2003. First, in August 2003, our
subsidiary, Humana Military Healthcare Services, or HMHS, was awarded the Department of Defense’s
TRICARE contract to support healthcare delivery to active duty and retired service members and their families in
the South Region beginning in 2004. The South Region is one of the three regions in the United States as defined
by the Department of Defense’s new contract alignment. Under the terms of the award, HMHS will be the
Managed Care Support Contractor serving approximately 2.8 million TRICARE beneficiaries in Tennessee,
South Carolina, Georgia, Alabama, Mississippi, Florida, Arkansas, Louisiana, Oklahoma and Texas. Most
importantly, procurement of the South Region contract positions us to continue our TRICARE operating margins
consistent with the levels we have enjoyed since beginning the TRICARE program in July 1996.

Second, in December 2003 President Bush signed Medicare modernization legislation that provides
stabilization funding for the Medicare+Choice program and may provide longer-term opportunities for Humana,
including the potential to (1), expand the Company’s current Medicare+Choice market presence, (2), become a
MedicareAdvantage Regional PPO, (3), add an Interim Drug Discount Card, and (4), become a Prescription Drug
Standalone Plan. We are evaluating these potential opportunities and anticipate completing our analysis during
2004. We believe the new Medicare legislation demonstrates the federal government’s financial commitment to
the private payor program and the commitment to providing health benefits and options to seniors, which should
translate to stable, if not increasing, participation from Humana in this sector.

During 2003, our revenue increased by almost $1 billion to $12.2 billion versus $11.3 billion the previous
year. 80% of the revenue increase was derived from our Commercial segment, primarily a result of underwriting
our premiums commensurate with underlying medical cost inflation. The leveraging of this increase in
underwriting dollars in excess of administrative and overhead expenses was the primary driver of the increase in
our commercial and consolidated pretax profits. During the second quarter of 2003, we completed a transition
from seven service centers to four, which has resulted in continuing administrative efficiencies.

Cash flows from operations generated $413.1 million during 2003, $44.1 million of which was used to
purchase 3.7 million shares of our common stock at an average price of $12.03 per share. We invested
$101.3 million on capital expenditures during 2003.

We intend for the discussion of our financial condition and results of operations that follows to assist in the
understanding of our financial statements and related changes in certain key items in those financial statements
from year to year, and the primary factors that accounted for those changes, as well as how certain critical
accounting principles and estimates impact our financial statements.
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Pending Acquisition

In December 2003, we reached a definitive agreement to purchase Ochsner Health Plan from Ochsner Clinic
Foundation having approximately 152,000 Commercial medical members, primarily in fully insured large group
accounts, and approximately 36,000 members in the Medicare+Choice program. This transaction, which is
subject to state regulatory approval, is expected to close in the second quarter of 2004.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes, which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial
statements and accompanying notes requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. We continuously evaluate our estimates and those
critical accounting policies related primarily to medical cost and revenue recognition as well as accounting for
impairments related to our investment securities, goodwill, and long-lived assets. These estimates are based on
knowledge of current events and anticipated future events, and accordingly, actual results ultimately may differ
from those estimates. We believe the following critical accounting policies involve the most significant
judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Medical Expense Recognition

Medical expenses are recognized in the period in which services are provided and include an estimate of the
cost of services which have been incurred but not yet reported, or IBNR. IBNR represents a substantial portion of
our medical and other expenses payable as follows:

December 31, Percentage of December 31, Percentage of
2003 Total 2002 Total
(dollars in thousands)

IBNR .................... $1,034,858 81.3% $ 863,432 75.6%
Reported claims in process . .. 183,962 14.5% 197,722 17.3%
Pharmacy and other medical

expenses payable ......... 53,336 4.2% 80,977 7.1%
Total medical and other

expenses payable ......... $1,272,156 100.0% $1,142,131 100.0%

Estimating IBNR is complex, involves a significant amount of judgment and represents a material portion of
our medical and other expenses payable. Accordingly, it represents a critical accounting estimate. Changes in this
estimate can materially affect, either favorably or unfavorably, our results from operations and overall financial
position. For example, a 100 basis point, or 1 percent, change in the estimate of our medical and other expenses
payable at December 31, 2003, which represents approximately 40% of total liabilities, would require an
adjustment of approximately $13 million in a future period in which a revision in the estimate became known.

We develop our estimate for IBNR using actuarial methodologies and assumptions, primarily based upon
historical claim payment and claim receipt patterns, as well as historical medical cost trends. Depending on the
period for which incurred claims are estimated, we apply a different method in determining our estimate. For
periods prior to the most recent three months, the key assumption used in estimating our IBNR is that the
completion factor pattern remains consistent over a rolling 12-month period after adjusting for known changes in
claim inventory levels or known changes in claim payment processes. The completion factor is a calculation of
the percentage of claims incurred during a given period that have historically been adjudicated as of the reporting
period. For the most recent three months, the incurred claims are estimated primarily from a trend analysis based
upon per member per month claims trends developed from our historical experience in the preceding months,
adjusted for known changes in estimates of recent hospital and drug utilization data, provider contracting
changes, changes in benefit levels, product mix, and weekday seasonality.
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The completion factor method is used for the months of incurred claims prior to the most recent three
months because the historical percentage of claims processed for those months is at a level sufficient to produce a
consistently reliable result. Conversely, for the most recent three months of incurred claims, the volume of claims
processed historically is not at a level sufficient to produce a reliable result, which therefore requires us to
examine historical trend patterns as the primary method of evaluation.

Medical cost trends potentially are more volatile than other segments of the economy. The drivers of
medical cost trends include increases in the utilization of hospital and physician services, prescription drugs, and
new medical technologies, as well as the inflationary effect on the cost per unit of each of these expense
components. Other external factors such as government-mandated benefits or other regulatory changes,
catastrophes, and epidemics also may impact medical cost trends. Additionally, as we realign our commercial
strategy, we continue to reduce the level of traditional utilization management functions such as pre-
authorization of services, monitoring of inpatient admissions, and requirements for physician referrals. Other
internal factors such as system conversions and claims processing interruptions also may impact our ability to
accurately predict estimates of historical completion factors or medical cost trends. All of these factors are
considered in estimating IBNR and in estimating the per member per month claims trend for purposes of
determining the reserve for the most recent three months. Each of these factors requires significant judgment by
management.

The completion and claims per member per month trend factors are the most significant factors impacting
the IBNR estimate. The following table illustrates the sensitivity of these factors and the estimated potential
impact on our operating results caused by changes in these factors based on December 31, 2003 data:

Completion Factor (a): Claims Trend Factor (b):
Increase Increase
(Decrease) in (Decrease) in
(Decrease) Medical and (Decrease) Medical and
Increase Other Expenses Increase Other Expenses
in Factor Payable in Factor Payable
(dollars in thousands)
(3%) $ 136,000 (3%) $(59,000)
(2%) $ 88,000 (2%) $(41,000)
(1%) $ 43,000 (1%) $(22,000)
1% $ (40,000) 1% $ 14,000
2% $ (79,000) 2% $ 33,000
3% $(116,000) 3% $ 51,000

(a) Reflects estimated potential changes in medical and other expenses payable caused by changes in
completion factors for incurred months prior to the most recent three months.

(b) Reflects estimated potential changes in medical and other expenses payable caused by changes in
annualized claims trend used for the estimation of per member per month incurred claims for the most
recent three months.

Most medical claims are paid within a few months of the member receiving service from a physician or
other health care provider. As a result, these liabilities generally are described as having a “short-tail”, which
causes less than 2% of our medical and other expenses payable as of the end of any given period to be
outstanding for more than 12 months. As such, we expect that substantially all of the 2003 estimate of medical
and other expenses payable will be known and paid during 2004.

Our reserving practice is to consistently recognize the actuarial best point estimate within a level of
confidence required by actuarial standards. Actuarial standards of practice generally require a level of confidence
such that the liabilities established for IBNR have a greater probability of being adequate versus being
insufficient, or such that the liabilities established for IBNR are sufficient to cover obligations under an
assumption of moderately adverse conditions. Adverse conditions are situations in which the actual claims are
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expected to be higher than the otherwise estimated value of such claims at the time of the estimate. Therefore, in
many situations, the claim amounts ultimately settled will be less than the estimate that satisfies the actuarial
standards of practice.

IBNR established in connection with our TRICARE contracts is typically more difficult to estimate than
with our other operations, as a result of having more variables which impact the estimate. Such variables include
continual changes in the number of eligible beneficiaries, changes in the utilization of military treatment facilities
and changes in levels of benefits versus the original contract provisions. Many of these variables are impacted
significantly by an increase or decrease in military activity involving the United States armed forces.

Our TRICARE contracts contain risk-sharing provisions with the Department of Defense and with
subcontractors, which effectively limit profits and losses when actual claim experience varies from the medical
claim amounts included in our annual bids. Additionally, other factors impacting medical claims expenses such
as changes in the number of eligible beneficiaries and changes in the level of usage of military treatment facilities
result in equitable revenue adjustments through the change order and bid price adjustment process. As a result of
the above contract provisions, the impact of changes in estimates for prior year TRICARE medical claims
payable on our results of operations is reduced substantially, whether positive or negative.

The following table provides a reconciliation of changes in medical and other expenses payable for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

2003 2002 2001
(in thousands)
Balances at January 1 ................... $ 1,142,131 $ 1,086,386  $ 1,181,027
Acquisitions .. ........ . i — — 85,052
Incurred related to:
Currentyear ..............c..ouu.... 9,955,491 9,125,915 8,303,256
Prioryears .......... .. ... ... .. .. (76,070) 12,281 (23,412)
Total incurred ................. 9,879,421 9,138,196 8,279,844
Paid related to:
Currentyear .............couvuvnon.. (8,710,393) (8,002,610) (7,291,541)
Prioryears ............. ... ... .... (1,039,003) (1,079,841) (1,167,996)
Totalpaid . .................... (9,749,396) (9,082,451) (8,459,537)
Balances at December 31 . ............... $ 1,272,156  $ 1,142,131 $ 1,086,386

Amounts incurred related to prior years vary from previously estimated liabilities as the claims are
ultimately settled. Negative amounts reported for incurred related to prior years result from claims being
ultimately settled for amounts less than originally estimated (favorable development). Positive amounts reported
for incurred related to prior years result from claims ultimately being settled for amounts greater than originally
estimated (unfavorable development).

As summarized in the previous table, claim reserve balances at December 31, 2000 ultimately settled during
2001 for $23.4 million less than the amounts originally estimated, representing 0.3% of medical claim expenses
recorded in 2000. During 2002, claim reserve balances at December 31, 2001 ultimately settled for $12.3 million
more than the amounts originally estimated, representing 0.1% of medical claim expenses recorded in 2001. This
$35.7 million increase in the amounts incurred related to prior years was substantially all attributable to our
TRICARE operations and resulted primarily from enhanced benefits enacted for TRICARE beneficiaries as a
result of Congressional legislation, the impact of which was not fully determinable at December 31, 2001. As
these additional medical expenses were recognized during 2002, we also recognized and received commensurate
revenues from the Department of Defense as a result of change orders and bid price adjustments, or BPAs.
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During 2003, claim reserve balances at December 31, 2002 ultimately settled for $76.1 million less than the
amounts originally recorded, representing 0.8% of medical claim expenses recorded in 2002. This $88.4 million
decline in the amounts incurred related to prior years consists of $68.3 million attributable to our TRICARE
operations with the remaining $20.1 million primarily resulting from fourth quarter 2002 utilization in our
commercial medical products ultimately being lower than originally estimated. The $68.3 million increase in
TRICARE incurred related to prior years resulted from establishing the reserves resulting from the enhanced
benefits for TRICARE beneficiaries as discussed above as well as lower than originally estimated utilization of
medical services by TRICARE beneficiaries in the second half of 2002.

Revenue Recognition

We generally establish one-year contracts with commercial employer groups, subject to cancellation by the
employer group’s 30-day written notice. Our contracts with federal or state governments are generally multi-year
contracts subject to annual renewal provisions with the exception of our Medicare+Choice contracts with the
federal government which renew annually. Our commercial contracts establish rates on a per member basis for
each month of coverage. Except for TRICARE contracts discussed in the following section, our government
contracts also establish monthly rates per member but may have additional amounts due to us based on items
such as age, working status, or specific health issues of the member.

Premium revenues and ASO fees are estimated by multiplying the membership covered under the various
contracts by the contractual rates. In addition, we adjust revenues for, estimated changes in an employer’s
enrollment and customers that ultimately may fail to pay. Enrollment changes not yet reported by an employer
group, an individual, or the government, also known as retroactive membership adjustments, are based on
historical trends. We monitor the collectibility of specific accounts, the aging of receivables, as well as prevailing
and anticipated economic conditions, and reflect any required adjustments in the current period’s revenue.

We bill and collect premium and ASO fee remittances from employer groups, the federal and state
governments, and individual Medicare+Choice members monthly. Premium and ASO fee receivables are
presented net of allowances for estimated uncollectible accounts and retroactive membership adjustments.
Premiums and ASO fees received prior to the period members are entitled to receive services are recorded as
unearned revenues.

TRICARE Revenues

Base premium revenues as originally specified in our TRICARE contracts are recognized ratably throughout
each contract year as eligible beneficiaries are entitled to receive services. TRICARE revenues also include
amounts recoverable from the federal government as a result of BPAs and change orders.

Under our TRICARE contracts, we retain the financial risk of contractual discounts in the provider
networks, same-store utilization of services, and administrative overhead. However, the federal government
retains the financial risk associated with changes in usage levels at military treatment facilities, or MTFs, changes
in the number of persons eligible for TRICARE benefits, and medical unit cost inflation. BPAs are utilized to
retroactively adjust premium revenues for the impact of the items for which the federal government retains risk.
We work closely with the federal government to obtain and review eligibility and MTF workload data, and to
quantify and negotiate amounts recoverable or payable under our contractual BPA requirements. We record
revenues applicable to BPAs when these amounts are determinable and the collectibility is reasonably assured.
Because final settlement of BPAs occurs only at specified intervals, typically in excess of 6 months after the end
of a contract year for our largest regions, cumulative amounts receivable or payable under BPAs may be
outstanding in excess of a year. Amounts receivable or payable within a year are classified as premiums
receivable or trade accounts payable and accrued expenses, respectively, in our consolidated balance sheets.
Amounts receivable or payable for longer than one year are classified as other long-term assets or other long-
term liabilities, respectively. The increase in activity and deployments surrounding military conflicts in the
Middle East has significantly impacted BPA activity in recent years.
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TRICARE change orders occur when we perform services or incur costs under the directive of the federal
government that were not originally specified in our contracts. Under federal regulations we are entitled to an
equitable adjustment to the contract price, which results in additional premium revenues. Examples of items that
have necessitated substantial change orders in recent years include congressionally legislated increases in the
level of benefits for TRICARE beneficiaries and the administration of new government programs such as
TRICARE for Life and TRICARE Senior Pharmacy. Like BPAs, we record revenue applicable to change orders
when these amounts are determinable and the collectibility is reasonably assured. Unlike BPAs, where settlement
only occurs at specified intervals, change orders may be negotiated and settled at any time throughout the year.

Total TRICARE premium and ASO fee receivables were as follows at December 31, 2003 and 2002:

2003 2002
(in thousands)

TRICARE premiums receivable:

Basereceivable . ........ . ... $254,688  $190,339

Bid price adjustments (BPAs) . .......... ... .. L. 92,875 104,044

Change orders . ...........o.inininn i 7,073 1,400
Subtotal . ...... ... .. 354,636 295,783

Less: long-term portion of BPAs ....................... (38,794) (86,471)
Total TRICARE premiums receivable ............... $315,842  $209,312

TRICARE ASO fees receivable:

Base receivable ... ...t $ — $ 7,205

Change orders . ............uuiinininnnnnan. 11,968 56,230
Total TRICARE ASO fees receivable ............... $ 11,968 $ 63,435

Our TRICARE contracts also contain risk-sharing provisions with the federal government to minimize
any losses and limit any profits in the event that medical costs for which we are at risk differ from the levels
targeted in our contracts. Amounts receivable from the federal government under such risk-sharing provisions
are included in the BPA receivable above, while amounts payable to the federal government under these
provisions of approximately $17.3 million at December 31, 2003 are included in medical and other expenses
payable in our consolidated balance sheets.

Investment Securities

Investment securities totaled $1,995.8 million, or 38% of total assets at December 31, 2003. Debt securities
totaled $1,960.6 million, or 98% of our total investment portfolio. More than 94% of our debt securities were of
investment-grade quality, with an average credit rating of AA by Standard & Poor’s at December 31, 2003. Most
of the debt securities that are below investment grade are rated at the higher end (B or better) of the non-
investment grade spectrum. Our investment policy limits investments in a single issuer and requires
diversification among various asset types.

Duration is indicative of the relationship between changes in market value to changes in interest rates,
providing a general indication of the sensitivity of the fair values of our debt securities to changes in interest
rates. However, actual market values may differ significantly from estimates based on duration. The average
duration of our debt securities was approximately 3.5 years at December 31, 2003. Based on this duration, a 1%
increase in interest rates would generally decrease the fair value of our debt securities by approximately
$70 million.

Our investment securities are categorized as available for sale and, as a result, are stated at fair value. Fair

value of publicly traded debt and equity securities are based on quoted market prices. Non-traded debt securities
are priced independently by a third party vendor. Fair value of venture capital debt securities that are privately
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held, or where an observable quoted market price does not exist, are estimated using a variety of valuation
methodologies. Such methodologies include reviewing the value ascribed to the most recent financing,
comparing the security with securities of publicly traded companies in a similar line of business, and reviewing
the underlying financial performance including estimating discounted cash flows. Unrealized holding gains and
losses, net of applicable deferred taxes, are included as a component of stockholders’ equity until realized from a
sale or impairment.

Gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual
securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2003, included the following:

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(in thousands)
U.S. Government obligations ........... $251,218  $(2,125) $ — $ — $251,218 $ (2,125)
Tax exempt municipal securities . ........ 90,705 (1,566) 21,979 (494) 112,684 (2,060)
Corporate and other securities ........... 121,184 (3,674) 714 4 121,898 (3,678)
Mortgage-backed securities .. ........... 47,060 (1,295) — — 47,060 (1,295)
Redeemable preferred stocks . ........... — — 21,348 (734) 21,348 (734)
Debt securities . .................. 510,167 (8,660) 44,041 (1,232) 554,208 (9,892)
Equity securities ..................... — — 7,162 (285) 7,162 (285)
Long-term investment securities . . . . . $510,167  $(8,660) $51,203  $(1,517) $561,370 $(10,177)

We regularly evaluate our investment securities for impairment. We consider factors affecting the investee,
factors affecting the industry the investee operates within, and general debt and equity market trends. We
consider the length of time an investment’s fair value has been below carrying value, the near term prospects for
recovery to carrying value and our intent and ability to hold the investment until maturity or market recovery is
realized. If and when a determination is made that a decline in fair value below the cost basis is other than
temporary, the related investment is written down to its estimated fair value through earnings. The risks inherent
in assessing the impairment of an investment include the risk that market factors may differ from our
expectations; facts and circumstances factored into our assessment may change with the passage of time; or we
may decide to subsequently sell the investment. The determination of whether a decline in the value of an
investment is other than temporary requires us to exercise significant diligence and judgment. The discovery of
new information and the passage of time can significantly change these judgments. The status of the general
economic environment and significant changes in the national securities markets influence the determination of
fair value and the assessment of investment impairment.

Unrealized losses at December 31, 2003 resulted from 96 positions. Less than 3% of the carrying value of
our consolidated investment securities have been in an unrealized loss position greater than one year. The
unrealized losses at December 31, 2003 generally can be attributed to changes in interest rates. All securities
trading at an unrealized loss remain current on all contractual payments and we believe it is probable that we will
be able to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the debt securities. After taking into
account these and other factors, including our ability and intent to hold these securities until recovery or maturity,
we determined the unrealized losses on these investment securities were temporary.

We recorded impairment losses of $3.2 million in 2003, $27.2 million in 2002, and $2.4 million in 2001
after an evaluation indicated that a decline in fair value below the cost basis was other than temporary.

Goodwill and Long-lived Asset

At December 31, 2003, goodwill and other long-lived assets represented 23% of total assets and 65% of
total stockholders’ equity.

31



In accordance with the adoption of an accounting standard on January 1, 2002, as discussed in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, goodwill is no longer amortized but must be tested at least annually for
impairment at a level of reporting referred to as the reporting unit and more frequently if adverse events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the asset may be impaired. A reporting unit is one level below our
Commercial and Government segments. The Commercial segment’s two reporting units consist of fully and self-
insured medical and specialty. The Government segment’s three reporting units consist of Medicare+Choice,
TRICARE and Medicaid. Goodwill was assigned to the reporting unit that was expected to benefit from a
specific acquisition. If goodwill was expected to benefit multiple reporting units, we allocated goodwill in
connection with our transitional impairment test as of January 1, 2002 based upon the reporting units’ relative
fair value. This process resulted in the allocation of $633.2 million of goodwill to the Commercial segment and
$143.7 million of goodwill to the Government segment.

Our strategy, long-range business plan, and annual planning process supports our goodwill impairment tests.
These tests are based primarily on an evaluation of future discounted cash flows under several scenarios. We
used a range of discount rates that correspond to our weighted-average cost of capital. Key assumptions including
changes in membership, premium yields, medical cost trends and certain government contract extensions are
consistent with those utilized in our long-range business plan and annual planning process. If these assumptions
differ from actual, the estimates underlying our goodwill impairment tests could be adversely affected.

Long-lived assets consist of property and equipment and other intangible assets. These assets are
depreciated or amortized over their estimated useful life, and are subject to impairment reviews. We periodically
review long-lived assets whenever adverse events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of the
asset may not be recoverable. In assessing recoverability, we must make assumptions regarding estimated future
cash flows and other factors to determine if an impairment loss may exist, and, if so, estimate fair value. We also
must estimate and make assumptions regarding the useful life we assign to our long-lived assets. If these
estimates or their related assumptions change in the future, we may be required to record impairment losses or
change the useful life, including accelerating depreciation for these assets. We recognized losses due to
impairment and accelerated depreciation from changes in estimated useful life of $30.8 million in 2003,
$2.4 million in 2002 and none in 2001. See Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

On December 17, 2003, the Staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC” or the “Staff”) issued
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue Recognition, or SAB 104, which supercedes Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 101, Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements, or SAB 101. SAB 104’s primary purpose is to
rescind accounting guidance contained in SAB 101 related to multiple element revenue arrangements,
superceded as a result of the issuance of EITF 00-21, “Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables.” Additionally, SAB 104 rescinds the SEC’s Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements
Frequently Asked Questions and Answers, or the FAQ, issued with SAB 101 that had been codified in SEC Topic
13, Revenue Recognition. Selected portions of the FAQ have been incorporated into SAB 104. While the wording
of SAB 104 has changed to reflect the issuance of EITF 00-21, the revenue recognition principles of SAB 101
remain largely unchanged by the issuance of SAB 104. The provisions of SAB 104 do not have an impact on our
current revenue recognition policies.

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 46,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB 51, or FIN 46. The primary objectives of
FIN 46 are to provide guidance on the identification of entities for which control is achieved through means other
than through voting rights (variable interest entities, or VIEs) and how to determine when and which business
enterprise should consolidate the VIE (the primary beneficiary). In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46-R,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities—an interpretation of ARB 51 (revised December 2003), which
replaces FIN 46. FIN 46-R incorporates certain modifications to FIN 46 adopted by the FASB subsequent to the
issuance of FIN 46, including modifications to the scope of FIN 46. Additionally, FIN 46-R incorporates much of
the guidance previously issued in the form of FASB Staff Positions.
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For all special purpose entities (“SPEs”) created prior to February 1, 2003, public entities must apply either
the provisions of FIN 46 or early adopt the provisions of FIN 46-R at the end of the first interim or annual
reporting period ending after December 15, 2003. If a public entity applies FIN 46 for such period, the provisions
of FIN 46-R must be applied as of the end of the first interim or annual reporting period ending after March 15,
2004. For all non-SPEs created prior to February 1, 2003, public entities will be required to adopt FIN 46-R at
the end of the first interim or annual reporting period ending after March 15, 2004. For all entities (regardless of
whether the entity is an SPE) that were created subsequent to January 31, 2003, public entities were already
required to apply the provisions of FIN 46, and should continue doing so unless they elect to early adopt the
provisions of FIN 46-R as of the first interim or annual reporting period ending after December 15, 2003. If they
do not elect to early adopt FIN 46-R, public entities would be required to apply FIN 46-R to those post-
January 31, 2003 entities as of the end of the first interim or annual reporting period ending after March 15,
2004.

As part of our ongoing business, we do not participate or knowingly seek to participate in transactions that
generate relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as
structured finance or SPEs, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet
arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. As of December 31, 2003, we are not involved
in any SPE transactions. The adoption of FIN 46 or FIN 46-R is not expected to have a material impact on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Comparison of Results of Operations for 2003 and 2002

Certain financial data for our two segments was as follows for the years ended December 31, 2003

and 2002:
Change
2003 2002 Dollars Percentage
(in thousands, except ratios)
Premium revenues:
Fullyinsured ........ .. ... .. .. . . ... $ 6,240,806 $ 5,499,033 $ 741,773 13.5%
Specialty . ........ . 320,206 337,295 (17,089) 5.D)%
Total Commercial ........................ 6,561,012 5,836,328 724,684 12.4%
Medicare+Choice ........... ..., 2,527,446 2,629,597  (102,151) 3.9%
TRICARE . ... . i 2,249,725 2,001,474 248,251 12.4%
Medicaid ......... ... .. .. . 487,100 462,998 24,102 5.2%
Total Government . ....................... 5,264,271 5,094,069 170,202 3.3%
Total ...... ... . .. $11,825,283 $10,930,397 $ 894,886 8.2%
Administrative services fees:
Commercial .......... ... .. 0 i $ 122,846 $ 103,203 $ 19,643 19.0%
GOVEINMENt . . ...ttt e 148,830 141,193 7,637 5.4%
Total ..... ... . . $ 271,676 $ 244396 $ 27,280 11.2%
Income (loss) before income taxes:
Commercial . . ... $ 121,010 $ (15,174) $ 136,184 897.5%
GOVEINMENT . . ..ttt 223,706 225,108 (1,402) (0.6)%
Total ... ... . . $ 344716 $ 209,934 $ 134,782 64.2%
Medical expense ratios:
Commercial ........... ... ... .. 82.9% 83.5% 0.6)
GOVEINMENE . . . oo e et 84.3% 83.8% —05
Total ....... .. . . . 83.5% 83.6% —(0.1)
SG&A expense ratios:
Commercial .......... ... . . 16.9% 18.0% (1.1)
GOVEINMENt . . ...ttt e 13.4% 13.5% —(()1 )
Total ... ... 15.4% 15.9% 0.5)
Medical membership was as follows at December 31, 2003 and 2002:
Change
2003 2002 Members Percentage
Commercial segment medical members:
Fullyinsured ........ ... . .. i 2,352,800 2,340,300 12,500 0.5%
ASO . 712,400 652,200 60,200 9.2%
Total Commercial ............. .. ... . ... ..... 3,065,200 2,992,500 72,700 2.4%
Government segment medical members:
Medicare+Choice . ........ ..ot 328,600 344,100 (15,500) 4.5)%
Medicaid ....... ... . . 468,900 506,000 (37,100) (7.3)%
TRICARE . ... . 1,849,700 1,755,800 93,900 5.3%
TRICARE ASO . .. ... . e 1,057,200 1,048,700 8,500 0.8%
Total Government . ..............uuiiiiiiinnnnn. 3,704,400 3,654,600 49,800 1.4%
Total medical membership ............ ... ... ... .. ....... 6,769,600 6,647,100 122,500 1.8%




Overview

Net income was $228.9 million, or $1.41 per diluted share, in 2003 compared to net income of $142.8
million, or $0.85 per diluted share, in 2002. The increase in earnings resulted primarily from significant
improvement in operating earnings for the Commercial segment and a decrease in expenses for asset
impairments and other unusual items.

Premium Revenues and Medical Membership

Premium revenues increased 8.2%, to $11.8 billion, for 2003 compared to $10.9 billion for 2002. Higher
premium revenues resulted primarily from increases in fully insured commercial per member premiums and an
increase in TRICARE premiums. Items impacting per member premiums include changes in premium and
government reimbursement rates, as well as changes in geographic mix of membership, the mix of product
offerings, and the mix of benefit plans selected by our membership.

Commercial segment premium revenues increased 12.4%, to $6.6 billion, for 2003 compared to $5.8 billion
for 2002. This improvement resulted primarily from increases in per member premiums in the 12% to 14% range
for 2003 on our fully insured commercial business. Additionally, our fully insured commercial medical
membership increased 0.5% or 12,500 members, to 2,352,800 at December 31, 2003 compared to 2,340,300 at
December 31, 2002.

We anticipate 2004 Commercial fully insured per member premiums will increase approximately 8% to
10%. This reduction in the rate of increase in Commercial fully insured per member premiums is expected to
occur as a result of a changing mix of business, reductions in the level of benefits purchased by our customers,
and a more competitive pricing environment. The change in the mix of business, which is expected to result from
growth in our individual products and changes in the products purchased by our large group customers, and
reductions in the level of benefit purchased will result in a commensurate reduction in medical cost trends. We
expect Commercial fully insured and ASO medical membership to achieve a combined increase for all of 2004 of
between 6% and 9%, with most of the growth occurring in the ASO business.

Government segment premium revenues increased 3.3%, to $5.3 billion, for 2003 compared to $5.1 billion
for 2002. This increase primarily was attributable to our TRICARE business, partially offset by a reduction in our
Medicare+Choice membership. Rates were increased upon annual renewal of our base TRICARE contract and
led to an increase in TRICARE premium revenues of $248.3 million, or 12.4%, compared to 2002.
Medicare+Choice membership was 328,600 at December 31, 2003 compared to 344,100 at December 31, 2002, a
decline of 15,500 members, or 4.5%. This decline resulted as we exited several counties in some of our markets
effective January 1, 2003 and general attrition in certain markets as a result of annual changes to benefit designs.
Per member premiums increased in the 4% to 6% range for 2003. Due to DIMA, we are expecting a return to
growth, with MedicareAdvantage membership increasing to approximately 340,000 to 360,000 members by the
end of 2004 and increases in per member premiums in the range of 8% to 10%.

Administrative Services Fees

Administrative services fees for 2003 were $271.7 million, an increase of $27.3 million from $244.4 million
for 2002. For the Commercial segment, administrative services fees increased $19.6 million, or 19.0%, to $122.8
million. This increase corresponds to the higher level of ASO membership at December 31, 2003, which was
712,400 members, compared to 652,200 members at December 31, 2002 and also reflects an increase in the
average fees received per member. Administrative services fees for the Government segment increased
$7.6 million when comparing 2003 to 2002. This increase resulted from contractual adjustments related to
TRICARE for Life, a program for seniors in which we provide medical benefit administrative services.
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Investment and Other Income

Investment and other income totaled $129.4 million in 2003, an increase of $43.0 million from $86.4
million in 2002. This increase resulted primarily from an increase in net realized capital gains due to a $15.2
million gain from the sale of a venture capital investment and lower investment impairment losses, a result of an
improving market. We recorded investment impairment losses of $3.2 million in 2003 compared to $27.2 million
in 2002. Higher average invested balances offset lower interest rates. The average yield on investment securities
was 3.5% in 2003, declining from 4.6% in 2002.

Medical Expense

Total medical expenses as a percentage of premium revenues, or medical expense ratio (MER), for 2003
were 83.5%, decreasing 10 basis points from 83.6% for 2002.

The Commercial segment medical expense ratio for 2003 was 82.9%, decreasing 60 basis points from
83.5% for 2002. The improvement in the MER primarily resulted from per member premium rate increases in
excess of medical cost trends for our large group customers and the attrition of groups with higher medical
expense ratios. We expect the Commercial segment MER to increase between 100 to 130 basis points in 2004
primarily due to competitive pricing pressures and the pass through of increased administrative expense
efficiencies to customers in the form of lower rates.

The Government segment medical expense ratio for 2003 was 84.3%, increasing 50 basis points from 83.8%
for 2002. This increase primarily was attributable to TRICARE as a result of having a higher level of BPA
activity in the prior year.

SG&A Expense

Total selling, general and administrative, or SG&A, expenses as a percentage of premium revenues and
administrative services fees, or SG&A expense ratio, decreased 50 basis points in 2003 primarily because of a
decrease in severance and related employee benefit costs of $29.0 million, the absence of 2002 expenses of $30.1
million associated with a contingent contractual provider dispute and other items, offset by an increase in
building impairments of $14.8 million.

Increased operating efficiency led to the consolidation of seven service centers into four and an enterprise-
wide workforce reduction affecting administrative expenses in both 2003 and 2002 by recording expenses for
severance and related employee benefit costs and building impairments. Severance and related employee benefit
costs, more fully described in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements, amounted to $11.2 million in
2003 and $40.2 million in 2002. The 2002 severance amount primarily related to the service center consolidation.
Building impairments, more fully described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, amounted to $17.2
million in 2003 and $2.4 million in 2002.

During 2002, we recorded $30.1 million of administrative expenses for a contingent contractual provider
dispute and other items associated with our 1997 acquisition of Physician Corporation of America, or PCA. The
$30.1 million of expenses in 2002 resulted from three issues. First, on January 28, 2003, we settled a dispute with
a provider for $8.3 million primarily regarding old claims of PCA subsidiaries dating prior to Humana’s 1997
acquisition. Second, during the fourth quarter of 2002, as a December 2, 2002 trial date approached, efforts
intensified to reach settlement of an old PCA shareholder dispute for periods prior to Humana’s 1997 acquisition
of PCA. As aresult, we accrued $15.7 million because the loss was probable and the amount could be reasonably
estimated. We reversed $1.8 million of this reserve when the final settlement was paid during the third quarter of
2003. Third, in connection with an agreement reached in November 2002, we partially wrote-off a note
receivable of $6.1 million from the purchaser of our workers’ compensation business which was sold in 2000.
The agreement with the purchaser resulted when a significant customer contract was terminated in the fourth
quarter of 2002. We acquired the workers’ compensation business in connection with the 1997 PCA acquisition.
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The Commercial and Government segments’ SG&A expense ratios likewise were impacted by the same
items described previously. Operational efficiencies gained from completing the consolidation of the service
centers and workforce reductions, as well as increases in premiums in excess of inflationary trends on
administrative expenses, are expected to decrease the Commercial segment’s SG&A expense ratio to a range of
15.5% to 16.5% and the Government segment’s SG&A expense ratio to a range of 11.0% to 12.0% in 2004.

Depreciation and amortization was $126.8 million in 2003, an increase of $6.1 million, or 5.0%, from
$120.7 million in 2002. The increase results from accelerated depreciation of software in 2003 of $13.5 million,
as more fully described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, partially offset by lower amortization
related to other intangible assets as costs associated with the government contract acquired with the TRICARE 2
and 5 transaction became fully amortized in the second quarter of 2003.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $17.4 million in 2003, an increase of $0.1 million from $17.3 million in 2002. This
increase primarily resulted from higher average outstanding debt due to the issuance of $300 million senior notes
in August 2003 offset by lower interest rates.

Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate in 2003 of 33.6% increased 1.6% compared to the 32% effective tax rate in 2002. The
increase in the effective tax rate primarily resulted from a lower proportion of tax-exempt investment income to
pretax income. During 2002, the Internal Revenue Service completed their audit of all open years prior to 2000
which resulted in a favorable adjustment to the estimated accrual for income taxes of approximately $32.6
million. This was offset by an increase of approximately $24.5 million in the capital loss valuation allowance
after we reevaluated probable capital gain realization in the allowable carryforward period based upon our capital
gain experience beginning in 2000 and consideration of alternative tax planning strategies. See Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements for a complete reconciliation to the federal statutory rate.
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Comparison of Results of Operations for 2002 and 2001

Certain financial data for our two segments was as follows for the years ended December 31, 2002

and 2001:
Change
2002 2001 Dollars Percentage
(in thousands, except ratios)
Premium revenues:
Fullyinsured .......... ... .. .. .. . . ... $ 5,499,033 $4,941,888 $ 557,145 11.3%
Specialty . ... o 337,295 304,714 32,581 10.7%
Total Commercial ......................... 5,836,328 5,246,602 589,726 11.2%
Medicare+Choice . ...t 2,629,597  2,909478  (279,881) (9.6)%
TRICARE .. ... . .. i 2,001,474 1,341,557 659,917 49.2%
Medicaid ....... .. . 462,998 441,324 21,674 4.9%
Total Government . ........................ 5,094,069 4,692,359 401,710 8.6%
Total ... $10,930,397 $9,938,961 $ 991,436 10.0%
Administrative services fees:
Commercial ............. ... i $ 103,203 $ 84,204 $ 18,999 22.6%
GOVEINMENT . .o vttt et e e 141,193 52,886 88,307 167.0%
Total . ... $ 244396 $ 137,090 $ 107,306 78.3%
Income (loss) before income taxes: ....................
Commercial ........ .. ..., $ (15174 $ (2,013) $ (13,161) 653.8%
GOVEINMENT . .t vttt ettt e e eee 225,108 185,093 40,015 21.6%
Total . ... $ 209,934 $ 183,080 $ 26,854 14.7%
Medical expense ratios:
Commercial ............ .. ... .. ... . .. 83.5% 83.1% 0.4
Government . ........... ...ttt 83.8% 83.6% 0.2
Total ... 83.6% 83.3% 0.3
SG&A expense ratios:
Commercial ........... .. ... i 18.0% 17.6% 04
GOVernment . ...........uouiiieineeneaneannann. 13.5% 12.8% 0.7
Total . ... 15.9% 15.3% 0.6
Medical membership was as follows at December 31, 2002 and 2001:
Change
2002 2001 Members Percentage
Commercial segment medical members:
Fullyinsured ........ ... . .. i 2,340,300 2,301,300 39,000 1.7%
ASO 652,200 592,500 59,700 10.1%
Total Commercial ............. .. ..., 2,992,500 2,893,800 98,700 3.4%
Government segment medical members: ....................
Medicare+Choice ............ ..., 344,100 393,900 (49,800) (12.6)%
Medicaid . ..... ... 506,000 490,800 15,200 3.1%
TRICARE . ... . e 1,755,800 1,714,600 41,200 2.4%
TRICAREASO . ... ... i 1,048,700 942,700 106,000 11.2%
Total Government . ..............oouturenenenn.. 3,654,600 3,542,000 112,600 3.2%
Total medical membership ............ ... ... ... .. ....... 6,647,100 6,435,800 211,300 3.3%




Overview

Net income was $142.8 million, or $0.85 per diluted share, in 2002 compared to net income of $117.2
million, or $0.70 per diluted share, in 2001. The increase in earnings primarily resulted from premium revenues
increasing more than operating costs in both our Commercial and Government segments and the non-
amortization of goodwill partially offset by expenses for asset impairments and other unusual items.

Premium Revenues and Medical Membership

Premium revenues increased 10.0%, to $10.9 billion, for 2002 compared to $9.9 billion for 2001. Higher
premium revenues resulted primarily from significant increases in fully insured commercial per member
premiums and an increase in TRICARE premiums. Items impacting per member premiums include changes in
premium and government reimbursement rates, as well as changes in geographic mix of membership, the mix of
product offerings, and the mix of benefit plans selected by our membership.

Commercial segment premium revenues increased 11.2%, to $5.8 billion, for 2002 compared to $5.2 billion
for 2001. This increase primarily resulted from increases in fully insured commercial per member premiums in
the 12% to 14% range for 2002. Additionally, our fully insured commercial medical membership increased 1.7%
or 39,000 members, to 2,340,300 at December 31, 2002 compared to 2,301,300 at December 31, 2001.

Government segment premium revenues increased 8.5%, to $5.1 billion, for 2002 compared to $4.7 billion
for 2001. This increase was primarily attributable to our TRICARE business, partially offset by a reduction in our
Medicare+Choice membership.

TRICARE premium revenues were $2.0 billion, an increase of $660 million or 49.2% compared to 2001.
$334 million of the increase in TRICARE premium revenues is attributable to the acquisition of TRICARE
Regions 2 and 5 on May 31, 2001, with the remainder of the increase attributable to the annual increase in our
contractually determined base revenues and increases in premium revenues recorded as a result of bid price
adjustments, or BPAs, and change orders.

Increasing premium revenues recorded in connection with BPAs resulted from an increase in the number of
eligible TRICARE beneficiaries and a decrease in the use of military treatment facilities, or MTFs, by TRICARE
beneficiaries. The number of TRICARE beneficiaries increased in 2002 as a result of the events of September 11,
2001, the subsequent build-up of military personnel to support military operations in Afghanistan, and the
continuing build-up of military personnel surrounding other international tensions. A decline in the usage of
MTFs occurred for some periods after September 11, 2001 when certain MTFs were restricted by the Department
of Defense resulting in a greater use of our provider network by retired military personnel and the dependents of
both active duty and retired military personnel. Increasing premium revenues recorded in connection with change
orders primarily resulted from expanded benefits for TRICARE beneficiaries as mandated by Congress which
includes, among other items, a reduction of the beneficiary out-of-pocket maximum cost and the elimination of
certain copayments.

Collectively, all of these actions resulted in higher medical expenses during 2002. Since these actions were
not originally specified in our contracts, we were entitled to equitable revenue adjustments via the change order
and BPA process. We recognized revenues related to these adjustments when the settlement amount became
determinable and the collectibility was reasonably assured.

Medicare+Choice premium revenues were $2.6 billion in 2002, a decrease of 9.6% from $2.9 billion in
2001. Medicare+Choice membership was 344,100 at December 31, 2002, compared to 393,900 at December 31,
2001, a decline of 49,800 members, or 12.6%. Medicare+Choice per member premiums increased 5.6% in 2002.
The decrease in membership was due to our exit of various counties on January 1, 2002, as well as attrition in
certain markets as a result of annual changes to benefit designs.
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Administrative Services Fees

Administrative services fees for 2002 were $244.4 million, an increase of $107.3 million from $137.1
million for 2001. For the Commercial segment, administrative services fees increased $19.0 million, or 22.6%, to
$103.2 million. This increase corresponds to the higher level of ASO membership at December 31, 2002, which
was 652,200 members, compared to 592,500 members at December 31, 2001 and also reflects an increase in the
average fees received per member. Administrative services fees for the Government segment increased $88.3
million when comparing 2002 to 2001. The TRICARE Regions 2 and 5 acquisition accounted for $51 million of
this increase, with the remainder attributable to the implementation of the TRICARE for Life benefits program
effective October 1, 2001. TRICARE for Life is a program for seniors where we provide medical benefit
administrative services.

Investment and Other Income

Investment and other income totaled $86.4 million in 2002, a decrease of $32.4 million from $118.8 million
in 2001. Net realized losses of $10.1 million in 2002 compared to net realized gains of $13.9 million in 2001. Net
realized losses in 2002 included impairment losses of $27.2 million primarily related to privately held venture
capital investment securities after an evaluation indicated that a decline in fair value below the cost basis was
other than temporary. Lower interest rates also decreased investment income $10.9 million in 2002 compared to
2001. The average yield on investment securities was 4.6% in 2002, declining from 5.1% in 2001.

Medical Expense

The medical expense ratio for 2002 was 83.6%, increasing 30 basis points from 83.3% in 2001.

The Commercial segment medical expense ratio for 2002 was 83.5%, increasing 40 basis points from 83.1%
in 2001. This increase primarily was due to the shift in the mix of our fully insured commercial medical
membership to a heavier concentration of larger group sizes. Large group commercial membership represented
approximately 65% of our fully insured commercial membership at December 31, 2002 compared to 62% at
December 31, 2001. Large group membership traditionally experiences a higher medical expense ratio and a
lower selling, general and administrative expense ratio than does our small group membership.

The Government segment medical expense ratio for 2002 was 83.8%, increasing 20 basis points from 83.6%
in 2001. This increase primarily was attributable to TRICARE. As discussed previously, TRICARE medical
expense increased due to expanded benefits for TRICARE beneficiaries mandated by Congress, an increase in
eligible beneficiaries, and an increase in the use of Humana’s provider network rather than MTFs. Since these
actions were not originally specified in our contracts or were for items that the Department of Defense retains
financial risk, we were entitled to equitable revenue adjustments through the change order and BPA processes.
These higher medical expenses combined with the associated higher premium revenues resulted in an overall
increase in the Government medical expense ratio.

SG&A Expense

The SG&A expense ratio for 2002 was 15.9%, increasing 60 basis points from 15.3% for 2001. This
increase primarily resulted from an increase in severance and related employee benefit expenses of $36.0 million,
long-lived asset impairments of $2.4 million, and the establishment of reserves for a contingent contractual
provider dispute and other items associated with our 1997 acquisition of Physician Corporation of America, or
PCA of $30.1 million.

The Commercial segment’s SG&A expense ratio was 18.0% for 2002, increasing 40 basis points from 2001
of 17.6%. This increase was the result of the items discussed above.
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The Government segment’s SG&A expense ratio was 13.5% for 2002, increasing 70 basis points compared
to 12.8% in 2001. This increase resulted from the items discussed above and a change in the mix of revenues. A
higher proportion of revenues was generated from administrative services fees, primarily from the TRICARE
Regions 2 and 5 acquisition and the implementation of the TRICARE for Life benefit programs effective October
1,2001. ASO business carries a much higher SG&A ratio than fully insured business.

Depreciation and amortization was $120.7 million in 2002, a decrease of $40.8 million, or 25.3%, from
$161.5 million in 2001. As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, we ceased amortizing
goodwill on January 1, 2002 in accordance with adopting a new accounting standard. This decreased goodwill
amortization by $55 million. On a comparable basis, depreciation and amortization was $106.5 million in 2001,
excluding goodwill amortization expense. The $14.2 million increase in 2002 compared to 2001, as adjusted,
resulted from capital expenditures primarily related to our technology initiatives and a full year of amortization
of other intangible assets related to the acquisition of TRICARE Regions 2 and 5 on May 31, 2001.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $17.3 million in 2002, a decrease of $8.0 million from $25.3 million in 2001. This
decrease primarily resulted from lower interest rates.

Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate in 2002 of 32% decreased 4% compared to the 36% effective tax rate in 2001. The
lower effective tax rate in 2002 primarily resulted from the cessation of non-deductible goodwill amortization on
January 1, 2002, partially offset by higher state income taxes and a lower proportion of tax-exempt investment
income to pretax income. In addition, during 2002, the Internal Revenue Service completed their audit of all open
years prior to 2000, which resulted in a favorable adjustment to the estimated accrual for income taxes of
approximately $32.6 million. This was offset by an increase of approximately $24.5 million in the capital loss
valuation allowance after we reevaluated probable capital gain realization in the allowable carryforward period
based upon our capital gain experience beginning in 2000 and consideration of alternative tax planning strategies.
See Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements for a complete reconciliation to the federal statutory rate.

Liquidity

Our consolidated liquidity continued to strengthen in 2003, with cash and cash equivalents increasing to
$931.4 million at December 31, 2003 from $721.4 million at December 31, 2002. Because we operate as a
holding company, our parent company is dependent upon dividends and administrative expense reimbursements
from our subsidiaries, most of which are subject to regulatory restrictions. Our parent company liquidity also
improved during 2003. Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments at our parent company amounted to
$399.4 million at December 31, 2003, increasing $212.4 million from $187.0 million at December 31, 2002. The
primary source for the increase in cash and cash equivalents has been the increase in our net income.

The change in cash and cash equivalents for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 is
summarized as follows:

2003 2002 2001
(in thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities ........... $ 413,140 $ 321,408 $ 148,958
Net cash used in investing activities ............... (373,163) (128,157) (118,807)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . . . 170,070  (123,314) (36,293)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . . .. $ 210,047 $ 69,937 $ (6,142)
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The primary drivers of operating cash flow in our business are premium collections and medical claim
payments. Because premiums generally are collected in advance of claims payments by a period up to several
months in many instances, our business should normally produce strong cash flows during a period of increasing
enrollment. Conversely, cash flows would be negatively impacted during a period of shrinking enrollment, as
was the case for us during 2001. The exception to this general rule is the collection of TRICARE BPAs and
change orders, which may occur up to six months after the end of a contract year. Other activities that impact our
cash flows are the collection of ASO fees and investment income and the payment of operating expenses, interest
expense and taxes.

During 2003, our operating cash flows were not substantially impacted by a change in the timing of
premium and ASO fee collections or medical claim payments, as both amounts generally increased with inflation
and membership growth. However, during 2002, our operating cash flows were negatively impacted by slower
cash collections of premium and ASO fee receivables when TRICARE receivables increased by $174 million as
detailed in the following table:

December 31, Change
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
(in thousands)
TRICARE:

Basereceivable ................... $266,656 $197,544 $166,763 $ 69,112 $ 30,781

Bid price adjustments (BPAs) ........ 92,875 104,044 — (11,169) 104,044
Changeorders .................... 7,073 57,630 18,423  (50,557) 39,207
366,604 359,218 185,186 7,386 174,032
Less: long-term portion of BPAs ... .. (38,794) (86,471) — 47,677 (86,471)
TRICARE subtotal ............ 327,810 272,747 185,186 55,063 87,561
Commercial andother .. ................ 178,577 146,882 148,784 31,695 (1,902)
Allowance for doubtful accounts ......... (40,400) (30,178) (38,539) (10,222) 8,361
Total net receivables ........... $465,987 $389,451 $295431 $ 76,536 $ 94,020

TRICARE base receivables, which are collected monthly in the ordinary course of business, increased in
2003 as rates under our base TRICARE contract increased upon the annual renewal of the contracts for Regions
3 and 4 and Regions 2 and 5. Total TRICARE receivables significantly increased from 2001 to 2002 primarily
due to change orders and BPAs due to an increase in activity and deployments surrounding military conflicts in
the Middle East.

The timing of payments for claims can significantly impact comparisons of our operating cash flows
between years. During 2001, operating cash flows were reduced by $132.0 million as a result of our paying down
unprocessed claim inventories. Since then, the level of claims inventory has stabilized. The following table
presents the estimated valuation and number of unprocessed claims on hand, performance metrics we regularly
review. Claims on hand represent the estimated number of provider requests for reimbursement that have been
received but not yet processed.

Number of
Estimated Claims on Days Claims
Valuation Hand On-hand
(dollars in thousands)
December 31,2000 .......................... $257,400 1,157,900 11.0
December 31,2001 .......................... $125,400 518,100 5.0
December 31,2002 ........ ... ... $ 92,300 424,200 4.5
December 31,2003 ............. ... ... ....... $109,700 443,000 4.9



Medical and other expenses payable increased during 2003 and 2002 due primarily to medical claims
inflation and increases in membership. The timing of claim payments did not significantly impact 2003 or 2002
cash flows from operations. The detail of medical and other expenses payable was as follows at December 31,
2003, 2002, and 2001:

Change
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002
(in thousands)

IBNR(L) ..o $1,034,858 $ 863,432 $ 802,574 $171,426 $ 60,858
Unprocessed claim inventories(2) ............ 109,700 92,300 125,400 17,400  (33,100)
Processed claim inventories(3) .............. 74,262 105,422 102,622 (31,160) 2,800
Payable to pharmacy benefit administrator and

other(4d) . ... .. . 53,336 80,977 55,790  (27,641) 25,187
Total medical and other expenses payable .. ... $1,272,156  $1,142,131 $1,086,386 $130,025 $ 55,745

(1) IBNR represents an estimate of medical expenses payable for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) at the
balance sheet date. The level of IBNR is primarily impacted by membership levels, medical claim trends
and the receipt cycle time, which represents the length of time between when a claim is initially incurred
and when the claim form is received (i.e. a shorter time span results in a lower IBNR).

(2) Unprocessed claim inventories represent the estimated valuation of claims received but not yet fully
processed. Further detail regarding unprocessed claim inventories is provided below.

(3) Processed claim inventories represent the estimated valuation of processed claims that are in the post claim
adjudication process, which consists of administrative functions such as audit and check batching and
handling.

(4) The balance due to our pharmacy benefit administrator fluctuates due to bi-weekly payments and the month-
end cutoff and other medical expenses payable.

The timing of Medicare+Choice premium receipts may significantly impact our cash flows from operations
in a particular period as the Medicare+Choice premium receipt is payable to us on the first day of each month.
When the first day of a month falls on a weekend or holiday, we receive this payment at the end of the previous
month. Since this amount is significant, the timing of its receipt can cause a material fluctuation in our operating
cash flows from period to period. The Medicare+Choice premium receipts for January 2004 of $211.9 million
and for January 2003 of $205.8 million were received early in December 2003 and December 2002, respectively,
because January 1 is a holiday. This timing accounts for a significant portion of the unearned revenues balance
on our consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2003 and 2002.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

During 2003, we reinvested a portion of our operating cash flows in investment securities, primarily short-
duration fixed income securities, totaling $283.1 million. During 2003, 2002 and 2001, we also made capital
expenditures as discussed below.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

During 2003, we converted our short-term commercial paper debt to long-term borrowings and repurchased
common shares as discussed below. The cash used in financing activities in 2002 resulted primarily from
common share repurchases while the use of cash in 2001 resulted from reductions in borrowings.

Capital Expenditures

Our ongoing capital expenditures primarily relate to our technology initiatives and administrative facilities
necessary for activities such as claims processing, billing and collections, medical utilization review, and
customer service. Total capital expenditures, excluding acquisitions, were $101.3 million in 2003, $112.1 million
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in 2002, and $115.5 million in 2001. Excluding acquisitions, we expect our total capital expenditures in 2004 to
be approximately $100 million, most of which will be used for our technology initiatives and improvement of
administrative facilities.

Stock Repurchase Plan

For the year ended December 31, 2003, we acquired 3.7 million of our common shares at an aggregate cost
of $44.1 million, or an average of $12.03 per share. Of these shares, 1.4 million were acquired in connection with
employee stock plans at an aggregate cost of $23.3 million, or an average of $16.27 per share, and the remaining
2.3 million shares were acquired in open market transactions at an aggregate cost of $20.8 million, or an average
of $9.31 per share. In July 2003, the Board of Directors authorized an additional use of up to $100 million for the
repurchase of our common shares exclusive of shares repurchased in connection with employee stock plans. The
shares may be purchased from time to time at prevailing prices in the open market or in privately negotiated
transactions. As of February 24, 2004, $94.2 million of the July 2003 authorization remains available for share
repurchases.

Debt

Short-term and long-term debt outstanding was as follows at December 31, 2003 and 2002:
2003 2002

(in thousands)

Short-term debt:
Conduit commercial paper financing program ............. $ — $265,000

Long-term debt:
6.30% senior, unsecured notes due 2018, net of unamortized
discount of $838 at December 31,2003 ................ $299,162 $§ —
7.25% senior, unsecured notes due 2006, net of unamortized
discount of $376 at December 31, 2003 and $521 at

December 31,2002 . ... ... 299,624 299,479
Fair value of interest rate swap agreements ............... 12,754 34,889
Deferred gain from interest rate swap exchange . ........... 26,175 —

Total SENIOr NOLES . . v v v oo e 637,715 334,368
Other long-term borrowings . .............c.couvuvnen... 4,923 5,545
Total long-termdebt . ............................ $642,638  $339,913

Senior Notes

In order to term-out our short-term debt and take advantage of historically low interest rates, we issued
$300 million 6.30% senior notes due August 1, 2018 on August 5, 2003. Our net proceeds, reduced for the cost
of the offering, were approximately $295.8 million. The net proceeds were used for general corporate purposes,
including the funding of our short term cash needs.

In order to hedge the risk of changes in the fair value of our $300 million 6.30% senior notes and our
$300 million 7.25% senior notes attributable to fluctuations in interest rates, we entered into interest rate swap
agreements. Interest rate swap agreements, which are considered derivatives, are contracts that exchange interest
payments on a specified principal amount, or notional amount, for a specified period. The interest rate swap
agreements have the same critical terms as our 6.30% senior notes and our 7.25% senior notes. Changes in the
fair value of the 6.30% or 7.25% senior notes and the swap agreements due to changing interest rates are
assumed to offset each other completely, resulting in no impact to earnings from hedge ineffectiveness. Our swap
agreements are recognized in our consolidated balance sheet at fair value with an equal and offsetting adjustment
to the carrying value of our senior notes. The fair value of our interest rate swap agreements are estimated based
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on quoted market prices of comparable agreements, and reflect the amounts we would receive (or pay) to
terminate the agreements at the reporting date.

Our interest rate swap agreements exchange the fixed interest rate under our 6.30% and 7.25% senior notes
for a variable interest rate. At December 31, 2003, the variable interest rate was 2.03% for the 6.30% senior notes
and 6.26% for the 7.25% senior notes. The $300 million swap agreements for the 6.30% senior notes mature on
August 1, 2018, and the $300 million swap agreements for the 7.25% senior notes mature on August 1, 2006, and
each has the same critical terms as the related senior notes.

In June 2003, we recorded a deferred gain and received proceeds of $31.6 million in exchange for new swap
agreements discussed above related to our 7.25% senior notes. The corresponding deferred swap gain of
$31.6 million is being amortized to reduce interest expense over the remaining term of the 7.25% senior notes.
The carrying value of our 7.25% senior notes has been increased $26.2 million by the remaining deferred swap
gain balance at December 31, 2003.

At December 31, 2003, the $12.8 million fair value of our swap agreements is included in other long-term
assets. Likewise, the carrying value of our senior notes has been increased $12.8 million to reflect its fair value.
The counterparties to our swap agreements are major financial institutions with which we also have other
financial relationships.

Credit Agreements

We maintain two unsecured revolving credit agreements consisting of a $265 million, 4-year revolving
credit agreement and a $265 million, 364-day revolving credit agreement with a one-year term-out option. A one-
year term-out option converts the outstanding borrowings, if any, under the credit agreement to a one-year term
loan upon expiration. The 4-year revolving credit agreement expires in October 2005. In October 2003, we
renewed the 364-day revolving credit agreement which expires in October 2004, unless extended.

There were no balances outstanding under either agreement at December 31, 2003 or 2002. Under these
agreements, at our option, we can borrow on either a competitive advance basis or a revolving credit basis. The
revolving credit portion of both agreements bears interest at either a fixed rate or floating rate based on LIBOR
plus a spread. The spread, which varies depending on our credit ratings, ranges from 80 to 125 basis points for
our 4-year agreement, and 85 to 137.5 basis points for our 364-day agreement. We also pay an annual facility fee
regardless of utilization. This facility fee, currently 25 basis points, may fluctuate between 15 and 50 basis
points, depending upon our credit ratings. The competitive advance portion of any borrowings under either credit
agreement will bear interest at market rates prevailing at the time of borrowing on either a fixed rate or a floating
rate basis, at our option.

These credit agreements, and the agreement relating to the conduit commercial paper program described
below, contain customary restrictive and financial covenants as well as customary events of default, including
financial covenants regarding the maintenance of net worth, minimum interest coverage, and maximum leverage
ratios. At December 31, 2003, we were in compliance with all applicable financial covenant requirements. The
terms of each of these credit agreements also include standard provisions related to conditions of borrowing,
including a customary material adverse effect clause which could limit our ability to borrow. We have not
experienced a material adverse effect and we know of no circumstances or events which would be reasonably
likely to result in a material adverse effect. We do not believe the material adverse effect clause poses a material
funding risk to Humana in the future.

Commercial Paper Programs

We maintain indirect access to the commercial paper market through our conduit commercial paper
financing program. Under this program, a third party issues commercial paper and loans the proceeds of those
issuances to us so that the interest and principal payments on the loans match those on the underlying commercial
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paper. The $265 million, 364-day revolving credit agreement supports the conduit commercial paper financing
program of up to $265 million.

We also maintain and may issue short-term debt securities under a commercial paper program when market
conditions allow. The program is backed by our credit agreements described above. Under the terms of our credit
agreements, aggregate borrowings under both the credit agreements and commercial paper program cannot
exceed $530 million.

At December 31, 2003, we had no direct or indirect (conduit) commercial paper borrowings outstanding.

Other Borrowings

Other borrowings of $4.9 million at December 31, 2003 and $5.5 million at December 31, 2002 represent
financing for the renovation of a building, bear interest at 2% per annum, are collateralized by the building, and
are payable in various installments through 2014.

Shelf Registration

On April 1, 2003, our universal shelf registration became effective with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. This allows us to register debt or equity securities, from time to time, with the amount, price and
terms to be determined at the time of the sale. After the issuance of our $300 million, 6.30% senior notes in
August 2003, we have up to $300 million remaining from a total of $600 million under the universal shelf
registration. The universal shelf registration allows us to use the net proceeds from any future sales of our
securities for our operations and for other general corporate purposes, including repayment or refinancing of
borrowings, working capital, capital expenditures, investments, acquisitions, or the repurchase of our outstanding
securities.

Contractual Obligations

We are contractually obligated to make payments for years subsequent to December 31, 2003 as follows:

Payments Due by Period
Less than More than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
(in thousands)

Debt(1) ... $642,638 $ 635 $327,163 $ 1,080 $313,760
Operating leases(2) ..., 257,222 63,392 93,070 54,969 45,791
Purchase and other obligations(3) .................. 48,983 24,344 18,235 4,651 1,753
Total ... ... $948,843 $88,371 $438,468 $60,700 $361,304

(1) Debt payments could be accelerated upon violation of debt covenants. We believe the likelihood of a debt
covenant violation is remote.

(2) We lease facilities, computer hardware, and other equipment under long-term operating leases that are
noncancelable and expire on various dates through 2017. We sublease facilities or partial facilities to third
party tenants for space not used in our operations which partially mitigates our operating lease
commitments. An operating lease is a type of off-balance sheet arrangement. Assuming we acquired the
asset, rather than leased, we would have recognized a liability for the financing of these assets. See also
Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

(3) Purchase and other obligations include agreements to purchase services, primarily information technology
related services, or to make improvements to real estate that are enforceable and legally binding on us and
that specify all significant terms, including: fixed or minimum levels of service to be purchased; fixed,
minimum or variable price provisions; and the appropriate timing of the transaction. Purchase obligations
exclude agreements that are cancelable without penalty.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Our 5-year and 7-year airplane operating leases provide for a residual value payment of no more than
$9.2 million at the end of the lease terms, which expire December 29, 2004 for the 5-year lease and January 1,
2010 for the 7-year lease. We have the right to exercise a purchase option with respect to the leased airplanes or
the airplanes can be sold to a third party. If we decide not to exercise our purchase option at the end of the lease,
we must pay the lessor a maximum amount of $4.4 million related to the 5-year lease and $4.8 million related to
the 7-year lease. The amount will be reduced by the net sales proceeds of the airplanes to a third party. After
considering the current fair value of the airplanes, we recorded a $1.5 million provision during 2003 for the
exposure from the residual value guarantee. During 2003, we terminated two 5-year airplane leases early. The
impact of these transactions was not material.

Indemnifications and Guarantees

Through indemnity agreements approved by the state regulatory authorities, certain of our regulated
subsidiaries generally are guaranteed by Humana Inc., our parent company, in the event of insolvency for
(1), member coverage for which premium payment has been made prior to insolvency; (2), benefits for members
then hospitalized until discharged; and (3), payment to providers for services rendered prior to insolvency. Our
parent also has guaranteed the obligations of our TRICARE subsidiaries.

In the ordinary course of business, we enter into contractual arrangements under which we may agree to
indemnify a third party to such arrangement from any losses incurred relating to the services they perform on
behalf of us, or for losses arising from certain events as defined within the particular contract, which may
include, for example, litigation or claims relating to past performance. Such indemnification obligations may not
be subject to maximum loss clauses. Historically, payments made related to these indemnifications have been
immaterial.

Other Liquidity Factors

Our investment-grade credit rating at December 31, 2003 was Baa3 according to Moody’s Investors
Services, Inc., or Moody’s, and BBB, according to Standard & Poor’s Corporation, or S&P. A downgrade to Ba2
or lower by Moody’s and BB or lower by S&P would give the counterparties of three of our interest rate swap
agreements with a $300 million notional amount, the right, but not the obligation, to cancel the interest rate swap
agreement. If cancelled, we would pay or receive an amount based on the fair market value of the swap
agreement. Assuming these swap agreements had been cancelled on December 31, 2003, we would have received
$8.7 million. Other than the swap agreements, adverse changes in our credit ratings will not create, increase, or
accelerate any liabilities. Adverse changes in our credit rating will increase the rate of interest we pay and may
impact the amount of credit available to us in the future.

Related Parties

No related party transactions had a material effect on our financial position, results of operations, or cash
flows. Certain immaterial related party transactions are discussed in our Proxy Statement for the meeting to be
held April 22, 2004—see “Certain Transactions with Management and Others.”

Regulatory Requirements

Certain of our subsidiaries operate in states that regulate the payment of dividends, loans, or other cash
transfers to Humana Inc., our parent company, require minimum levels of equity as well as limit investments to
approved securities. The amount of dividends that may be paid to Humana Inc. by these subsidiaries, without
prior approval by state regulatory authorities, is limited based on the entity’s level of statutory income and
statutory capital and surplus. In most states, prior notification is provided before paying a dividend even if
approval is not required.
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As of December 31, 2003, we maintained aggregate statutory capital and surplus of $1,086.5 million in our
state regulated health insurance subsidiaries. Each of these subsidiaries was in compliance with applicable
statutory requirements which aggregated $640.4 million. Although the minimum required levels of equity are
largely based on premium volume, product mix, and the quality of assets held, minimum requirements can vary
significantly at the state level. Certain states rely on risk-based capital requirements, or RBC, to define the
required levels of equity. RBC is a model developed by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners to
monitor an entity’s solvency. This calculation indicates recommended minimum levels of required capital and
surplus and signals regulatory measures should actual surplus fall below these recommended levels. If RBC were
adopted by all states at December 31, 2003, each of our subsidiaries would be in compliance and we would have
$381.9 million of aggregate capital and surplus above any of the levels that require corrective action under RBC.

One TRICARE subsidiary under the Regions 3 and 4 contract with the Department of Defense is required to
maintain current assets at least equivalent to its current liabilities. We were in compliance with this requirement
at December 31, 2003.

Future Liquidity Needs

Because of the items discussed in this Liquidity section, we believe that funds from future operating cash
flows and funds available under our credit agreements and commercial paper program are sufficient to meet short
and intermediate-term liquidity needs. We also believe these sources of funds are adequate to allow us to fund
selected expansion opportunities, as well as to fund capital requirements.

Market Risk-Sensitive Financial Instruments and Positions

The level of our pretax earnings is subject to risk due to changes in investment income from our fixed
income portfolio which is partially offset by both our debt position and the short-term duration of the fixed
income investment portfolio.

We evaluated the impact on our investment income and debt expense resulting from a hypothetical change
in interest rates of 100, 200 and 300 basis points over the next twelve-month period, as reflected in the following
table. The modeling technique used to calculate the pro forma net change in pretax earnings considered the cash
flows related to fixed income investments and debt, which are subject to interest rate changes during a
prospective twelve-month period. This evaluation measures parallel shifts in interest rates and may not account
for certain unpredictable events that may effect interest income, including, among others, unexpected changes of
cash flow into and out of the portfolio, shifts in the asset mix between tax and tax-exempt securities, and spread
changes specific to various investment categories. In the past ten years, changes in 3 month LIBOR rates during
the year have exceeded 300 basis points twice, have not changed between 200 and 300 basis points, have
changed between 100 and 200 basis points once and have changed by less than 100 basis points seven times.
LIBOR was 1.15% at December 31, 2003. Our model assumed the maximum possible reduction in LIBOR could
not exceed 115 basis points.

Increase (decrease) in pretax Increase (decrease) in pretax
earnings given an interest rate earnings given an interest rate
decrease of X basis points increase of X basis points
(300) (200) (100) 100 200 300
(in thousands)
2003
Fixed income portfolio ................... $(13,105) $(11,977) $(9,757) $ 9,169 $ 18,068 $ 26,844
DEbE .o e e 5,567 5567 5,567  (5,567) (11,134) (16,700)
TOtal oo $ (7,538) $ (6,410) $(4,190) $3,602 $ 6,934 $ 10,144
2002
Fixed income portfolio .. ................. $(21,793) $(15,708) $(8.848) $9,229 $ 17,253 $ 24,876
DEDE - oo 4019 4019 4019 (4,019) (8,038) (12,057)
Total ......... .. ... .. $(17,774) $(11,689) $(4,829) $ 5,210 $ 9,215 $ 12,819

48



Government Contracts

Our MedicareAdvantage contracts with the federal government are renewed for a one-year term each
December 31 unless notice of termination is received at least 90 days prior thereto. In December 2003, the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act, or DIMA, was signed into law. DIMA
includes provisions that require the 2004 stabilization funding to be directed toward increased reimbursement for
providers, increased benefits or access for members, or decreased member premiums. We believe DIMA will
open new opportunities for us. However, we do not believe that the benefit to our 2004 financial position, results
of operations, or cash flows will be material.

Our current TRICARE contract with the Department of Defense will be in effect until April 30, 2004 for
Regions 2 and 5 and until June 30, 2004 for Regions 3 and 4. Each of the contracts is subject to a one-year
renewal at the Government’s option. We believe these contracts will continue until the TRICARE transition
described below.

On August 21, 2003, the Department of Defense notified us that we were awarded the contract for the South
Region, one of three newly-created regions under the government’s revised TRICARE Program. The current
TRICARE Regions 3 and 4 will become part of the new South Region along with Region 6, which is currently
administered by another contractor. The current Regions 2 and 5 will become part of the North Region, which
was awarded to another contractor.

Pursuant to the Department of Defense’s bid process, each of the three awards was subject to protests by
unsuccessful bidders of prime contracts, however, none of the protests were successful.

Under the Department of Defense’s current schedule for implementation of the new TRICARE contracts,
Regions 2 and 5 will transition to the new North Region for the start of healthcare delivery on July 1, 2004.
Regions 3 and 4 will become part of the new South Region for the start of healthcare delivery on August 1, 2004
and Region 6 will become part of our new South Region for the start of healthcare delivery on November 1,
2004. If this schedule is realized, our TRICARE membership is expected to temporarily decline to 1.5 million in
July 2004, and is expected to increase to 2.8 million in November 2004. This will also result in a decline in
revenues during this period.

In addition, retail pharmacy benefits for TRICARE beneficiaries will be administered separately under the
new Department of Defense TRICARE Retail Pharmacy Program. On September 26, 2003, we were notified that
we were not awarded the retail pharmacy contract and, later, that our protest of this award decision was not
upheld.

We currently have Medicaid contracts with the Puerto Rico Health Insurance Administration through
June 30, 2005, subject to each party agreeing upon annual rates. In July 2003, we signed amendments to the
Puerto Rico Medicaid contracts regarding a premium rate increase for the annual period ending June 30, 2004.
Our other Medicaid contracts are in Florida and Illinois, and are annual contracts. As of December 31, 2003,
Puerto Rico accounted for approximately 84% of our total Medicaid membership.

Other than as described herein, the loss of any of our existing or pending government contracts or
significant changes in these programs as a result of legislative action, including reductions in premium payments
to us, or increases in member benefits without corresponding increases in premium payments to us, may have a
material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations, and cash flows.

Legal Proceedings

We are party to a variety of legal actions in the ordinary course of business, including employment matters,
breach of contract actions, tort claims, and shareholder suits involving alleged securities fraud. A description
of material legal actions in which we are currently involved is included under “Legal Proceedings” of Item 3 in
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Part 1. We cannot predict the outcome of these suits with certainty, and we are incurring expenses in defense of
these matters. In addition, recent court decisions and legislative activity may increase our exposure for any of
these types of claims. Therefore, these legal actions could have a material adverse effect on our financial
position, results of operations and cash flows.

Cautionary Statements

This document includes both historical and forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements are
made within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. We intend such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions
for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and we are
including this statement for purposes of complying with these safe harbor provisions. We have based these
forward-looking statements on our current expectations and projections about future events, trends and
uncertainties. These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks,
uncertainties and assumptions, including, among other things, the information discussed below. In making these
statements, we are not undertaking to address or update each factor in future filings or communications regarding
our business or results. Our business is highly complicated, regulated and competitive with many different
factors affecting results.

If the premiums we charge are insufficient to cover the cost of health care services delivered to our
members, or if our estimates of medical claim reserves based upon our estimates of future medical claims are
inadequate, our profitability could decline.

We use a significant portion of our revenues to pay the costs of health care services delivered to our
members. These costs include claims payments, capitation payments, allocations of some centralized expenses
and various other costs incurred to provide health insurance coverage to our members. These costs also include
estimates of future payments to hospitals and others for medical care provided to our members. Generally,
premiums in the health care business are fixed for one-year periods. Accordingly, costs we incur in excess of our
medical cost projections generally are not recovered in the contract year through higher premiums. We estimate
the costs of our future medical claims and other expenses using actuarial methods and assumptions based upon
claim payment patterns, medical inflation, historical developments, including claim inventory levels and claim
receipt patterns, and other relevant factors. We also record medical claims reserves for future payments. We
continually review estimates of future payments relating to medical claims costs for services incurred in the
current and prior periods and make necessary adjustments to our reserves. However, increases in the use or cost
of services by our members, competition, government regulations and many other factors may and often do cause
actual health care costs to exceed what was estimated and reflected in premiums.

These factors may include:
e increased use of medical facilities and services, including prescription drugs;
¢ increased cost of such services;

e the Company’s membership mix;

e termination of capitation arrangements resulting in the transfer of membership to fee-for-service
arrangements;

e changes or reductions of our utilization management functions such as preauthorization of services,
concurrent review or requirements for physician referrals;

e catastrophes, including acts of terrorism or epidemics;

e the introduction of new or costly treatments, including new technologies;
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e medical cost inflation; and

e new government mandated benefits or other regulatory changes.

Failure to adequately price our products or estimate sufficient medical claim reserves may result in a
material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

If we do not design and price our products properly and competitively, our membership and profitability
could decline.

We are in a highly competitive industry. Many of our competitors are more established in the health care
industry and have a larger market share and greater financial resources than we do in some markets. In addition,
other companies may enter our markets in the future, including emerging competitors in the MedicareAdvantage
program, in e-commerce insurance or benefit programs and in consumer-directed health plans. Contracts for the
sale of commercial products are generally bid upon or renewed annually. While health plans compete on the
basis of many factors, including service and the quality and depth of provider networks, we expect that price will
continue to be a significant basis of competition. In addition to the challenge of controlling health care costs, we
face competitive pressure to contain premium prices.

Premium increases, introduction of new product designs, and our relationship with our providers in various
markets, among other issues, could affect our membership levels. Other actions that could affect membership
levels include the possible exit of or entrance to MedicareAdvantage or Commercial markets. If we do not
compete effectively in our markets, if we set rates too high or too low in highly competitive markets to keep or
increase our market share, if membership does not increase as we expect, or if it declines, or if we lose accounts
with favorable medical cost experience while retaining or increasing membership in accounts with unfavorable
medical cost experience, our business and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

If we fail to effectively implement our operational and strategic initiatives, our business could be
materially adversely affected.

Our future performance depends in large part upon our management team’s ability to execute our strategy to
position the company for the future. This strategy includes the growth of our Commercial segment business,
introduction of new products and benefit designs, including our Smart products, the successful implementation of
our e-business initiatives and the selection and adoption of new technologies. We believe that the adoption of
new technologies will contribute toward a reduction in administrative costs as we more closely align our
workforce with our membership. This alignment is achieved through reductions in workforce or by employing
additional people in certain strategic operating areas such as sales and underwriting. Additionally, we have
consolidated our service centers and their related systems as part of our operational initiatives. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to successfully implement our operational and strategic initiatives that are intended
to position the company for future growth. Failure to implement this strategy may result in a material adverse
effect on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

If we fail to properly maintain the integrity of our data, or to strategically implement new information
systems, or to protect our proprietary rights to our systems, our business could be materially adversely
affected.

Our business depends significantly on effective information systems and the integrity and timeliness of the
data we use to run our business. Our business strategy involves providing members and providers with easy to
use products that leverage our information to meet their needs. Our ability to adequately price our products and
services, provide effective and efficient service to our customers, and to timely and accurately report our
financial results depends significantly on the integrity of the data in our information systems. As a result of our
past and on-going acquisition activities, we have acquired additional systems. We have been taking steps to
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reduce the number of systems we operate, have upgraded and expanded our information systems capabilities, and
are gradually migrating existing business to fewer systems. If the information we rely upon to run our businesses
was found to be inaccurate or unreliable or if we fail to maintain effectively our information systems and data
integrity, we could have operational disruptions, have problems in determining medical cost estimates and
establishing appropriate pricing, have customer and physician and other health care provider disputes, have
regulatory problems, have increases in operating expenses, lose existing customers, have difficulty in attracting
new customers, or suffer other adverse consequences. Our information systems require an ongoing commitment
of significant resources to maintain, protect and enhance existing systems and develop new systems to keep pace
with continuing changes in information processing technology, evolving industry and regulatory standards, and
changing customer preferences.

We depend on independent third parties for significant portions of our systems-related support, equipment,
facilities, and certain data, including data center operations, data network, voice communication services and
pharmacy data processing. This dependence makes our operations vulnerable to such third parties’ failure to
perform adequately under the contract, due to internal or external factors. Due to continued consolidation in the
industry, there are a limited number of service organizations with the size, scale and capabilities to effectively
provide certain of these services, especially with regard to pharmacy benefits processing and management.
However, we believe that other organizations could provide similar services on comparable terms. A change in
service providers, however, could result in a decline in service quality and effectiveness or less favorable contract
terms which could adversely affect our operating results.

We rely on our agreements with customers, confidentiality agreements with employees, and our trade
secrets and copyrights to protect our proprietary rights. These legal protections and precautions may not prevent
misappropriation of our proprietary information. In addition, substantial litigation regarding intellectual property
rights exists in the software industry. We expect software products to be increasingly subject to third-party
infringement claims as the number of products and competitors in this area grows.

There can be no assurance that our process of improving existing systems, developing new systems to
support our operations, integrating new systems, protecting our proprietary information, and improving service
levels will not be delayed or that additional systems issues will not arise in the future. Failure to adequately
protect and maintain the integrity of our information systems and data may result in a material adverse effect on
our financial positions, results of operations and cash flows.

If we fail to manage prescription drug costs successfully, our financial results could suffer.

In general, prescription drug costs have been rising over the past few years. These increases are due to the
introduction of new drugs costing significantly more than existing drugs, direct to consumer advertising by the
pharmaceutical industry that creates consumer demand for particular brand-name drugs, and members seeking
medications to address lifestyle changes. In order to control prescription drug costs, we have implemented multi-
tiered copayment benefit designs for prescription drugs, including our four-tiered copayment benefit design, Rx4
and an Rx allowance program. We are also evaluating other multi-tiered designs. We cannot assure that these
efforts will be successful in controlling costs. Failure to control these costs could have a material adverse effect
on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

We are involved in various legal actions, which, if resolved unfavorably to us, could result in substantial
monetary damages.

We are a party to a variety of legal actions that affect our business, including employment and employment
discrimination-related suits, employee benefit claims, breach of contract actions, and tort claims.

We, together with some of our competitors in the health benefits business are defendants in a number of
purported class action lawsuits. These include an action against us and nine of our competitors that purports to
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be brought on behalf of health care providers. This suit alleges breaches of federal statutes, including ERISA
and RICO.

In addition, because of the nature of the health care business, we are subject to a variety of legal actions
relating to our business operations, including the design, management and offering of products and services.
These include and could include in the future:

e claims relating to the methodologies for calculating premiums;
* claims relating to the denial of health care benefits;
e challenges to the use of some software products used in administering claims;

* medical malpractice actions based on our medical necessity decisions or brought against us on the
theory that we are liable for our providers’ alleged malpractice;

e allegations of anti-competitive and unfair business activities;

» provider disputes over compensation and termination of provider contracts;

e disputes related to self-funded business, including actions alleging claim administration errors;
» claims related to the failure to disclose some business practices; and

e claims relating to customer audits and contract performance.

In some cases, substantial non-economic or punitive damages as well as treble damages under the federal
False Claims Act, RICO and other statutes may be sought. While we currently have insurance coverage for some
of these potential liabilities, other potential liabilities may not be covered by insurance, insurers may dispute
coverage or the amount of insurance may not be enough to cover the damages awarded. Additionally, the cost of
business insurance coverage has increased significantly. As a result, we have increased the amount of risk that we
self-insure, particularly with respect to matters incidental to our business. We believe that we are adequately
insured for claims in excess of our self-insurance. However, some types of damages, like punitive damages, may
not be covered by insurance, particularly in those jurisdictions in which coverage of punitive damages is
prohibited. Insurance coverage for all or some forms of liability may become unavailable or prohibitively
expensive in the future.

A description of material legal actions in which we are currently involved is included under “Legal
Proceedings” of Item 3 in Part I. We cannot predict the outcome of these suits with certainty, and we are
incurring expenses in the defense of these matters. In addition, recent court decisions, including some that erode
protections under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, or ERISA, and legislative activity may increase
our exposure for any of these types of claims. Therefore, these legal actions could have a material adverse effect
on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

As a government contractor, we are exposed to additional risks that could adversely affect our business or
our willingness to participate in government health care programs.

A significant portion of our revenues relates to federal, state and local government health care coverage
programs, including the TRICARE, Medicare+Choice, and Medicaid programs. These programs involve various
risks, including:

e the possibility of reduced or insufficient government reimbursement in the future;

* the possibility that we will not be able to extend or renew any of the contracts relating to these
programs. These contracts also are generally subject to frequent change, including changes that may
reduce the number of persons enrolled or eligible to enroll, reduce the revenue we receive or increase
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our administrative or health care costs under those programs. Our current TRICARE contract with the
Department of Defense will be in effect until April 30, 2004 for Regions 2 and 5 and until June 30, 2004
for Regions 3 and 4. Each of the contracts is subject to a one-year renewal at the Government’s option.
We believe these contracts will continue until the TRICARE transition described below. On August 21,
2003, the Department of Defense notified us that we were awarded the contract for the South Region,
one of three newly-created regions under the government’s revised TRICARE Program. The current
TRICARE Regions 3 and 4 will become part of the new South Region along with Region 6, which is
currently administered by another contractor. The current Regions 2 and 5 will become part of the North
Region, which was awarded to another contractor. Pursuant to the Department of Defense’s bid process,
each of the three awards was subject to protests by unsuccessful bidders of prime contracts, however,
none of the protests were successful.

under the Department of Defense’s current schedule for implementation of the new TRICARE contracts,
Regions 2 and 5 will transition to the new North Region for the start of healthcare delivery on July 1,
2004. Regions 3 and 4 will become part of the new South Region for the start of healthcare delivery on
August 1, 2004 and Region 6 will become part of our new South Region for the start of healthcare
delivery on November 1, 2004. If this schedule is realized, our TRICARE membership is expected to
temporarily decline to 1.5 million in July 2004, and is expected to increase to 2.8 million in November
2004. This will also result in a decline in revenues during this period.

in the event government reimbursement were to decline from projected amounts, our failure to reduce
the health care costs associated with these programs could have a material adverse effect on our
business. Changes to these government programs in the future may also affect our ability or willingness
to participate in these programs. Other than as described herein, the loss of our current or future
TRICARE contracts, would have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of
operations and cash flows;

at December 31, 2003, under one of our contracts with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services,
or CMS, we provided health insurance coverage to approximately 229,100 members in Florida. This
contract accounted for approximately 15% of our total premiums and ASO fees for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2003. The loss of this and other CMS contracts or significant changes in the
MedicareAdvantage program as a result of legislative action, including reductions in payments to us or
increases in benefits to members without corresponding increases in payments, may have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows;

in December 2003, The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act, or DIMA,
was signed into law. DIMA includes provisions that require the 2004 stabilization funding to be directed
toward increased reimbursement for providers, increased benefits or access for members or decreased
member premiums. We believe DIMA will open new opportunities for us. However, DIMA may
intensify competition in the seniors’ health services market. We do not believe that the benefit to our
2004 financial position, results of operations or cash flows will be material;

higher comparative medical costs;
government regulatory and reporting requirements;

higher marketing and advertising costs per member as a result of marketing to individuals as opposed to
groups; and

the possibility of temporary or permanent suspension from participating in government health care
programs, including Medicare and Medicaid, if we are convicted of fraud or other criminal conduct in
the performance of a health care program or if there is an adverse decision against us under the federal
False Claims Act.
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Our industry is currently subject to substantial government regulation, which, along with possible
increased governmental regulation or legislative reform, increases our costs of doing business and could
adversely affect our profitability.

The health care industry in general, and health insurance, particularly health maintenance organizations, or
HMOs, and preferred provider organizations, or PPOs, are subject to substantial federal and state government
regulation, including:

e regulation relating to minimum net worth;

e licensing requirements;

e approval of policy language and benefits;

* mandated benefits and processes;

e provider compensation arrangements;

¢ member disclosure;

e approval of acquisitions;

e approval of entry, withdrawal or re-entry into a state or market;
e premium rates; and

e periodic examinations by state and federal agencies.

State regulations require our licensed, operating subsidiaries to maintain minimum net worth requirements

and restrict some investment activities. Additionally, those regulations restrict the ability of our subsidiaries to
make dividend payments, loans, loan repayments or other payments to us.

In recent years, significant federal and state legislation affecting our business has been enacted. State and
federal governmental authorities are continually considering changes to laws and regulations applicable to us and
are currently considering regulations relating to:

* mandatory benefits and products;

e rules tightening time periods in which claims must be paid;

e medical malpractice reform;

e defining medical necessity;

¢ health insurance access;

e provider compensation and contract language;

e disclosure of provider fee schedules and other data impacting payments to providers;
e product flexibility and use of innovative technology;

e disclosure of provider quality information;

e health plan liability to members who fail to receive appropriate care;

e disclosure and composition of physician networks;

» formation of regional/national association health plans for small employers;

* physicians’ ability to collectively negotiate contract terms with carriers, including fees; and

e mental health parity.
All of these proposals could apply to us.
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There can be no assurance that we will be able to continue to obtain or maintain required governmental
approvals or licenses or that legislative or regulatory changes will not have a material adverse effect on our
business. Delays in obtaining or failure to obtain or maintain required approvals could adversely affect our
revenue or the number of our members, increase costs or adversely affect our ability to bring new products to
market as forecasted.

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners, or NAIC, has adopted risk-based -capital
requirements, also known as RBC, which is subject to state-by-state adoption and to the extent implemented, sets
minimum capitalization requirements for insurance and HMO companies. The NAIC recommendations for life
insurance companies were adopted in all states and the prescribed calculation for HMOs has been adopted in
most states in which we operate. The HMO rules may increase the minimum capital required for some of our
subsidiaries.

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, includes administrative
provisions directed at simplifying electronic data interchange through standardizing transactions, establishing
uniform health care provider, payer, and employer identifiers and seeking protections for confidentiality and
security of patient data. Under the new HIPAA standard transactions and code sets rules, we have made
significant systems enhancements and invest in new technological solutions. The compliance and enforcement
date for standard transactions and code sets rules was October 16, 2003. We have continued to be in compliance
with this regulation. However, as many providers indicated that they could not yet comply, CMS stated that
covered entities making a good faith effort to comply with HIPAA transactions and code-set standards would be
allowed to implement contingency plans to maintain their operations and cash flows. On October 15, 2003, we
announced implementation of a contingency plan to accept non-compliant electronic transactions from our
providers. We will continue to accept and process transactions sent in pre-HIPAA electronic formats from
providers who are showing a good-faith effort until all providers and clearinghouses are capable of transmitting
fully compliant standards transactions as defined in the HIPAA implementation guidelines or until CMS begins
enforcement of the HIPAA Electronic Data Interchange regulations. Management believes that the
implementation of our contingency plans has minimized any disruptions in our business operations during this
transition. However, if entities with which we do business do not ultimately comply with the HIPAA transactions
and code set standards, it could result in disruptions of certain of our business operations.

Additionally, under the new HIPAA privacy rules, which became effective on April 14, 2003, we must now
comply with a variety of requirements concerning the use and disclosure of individuals’ protected health
information, establish rigorous internal procedures to protect health information and enter into business associate
contracts with those companies to whom protected health information is disclosed. Regulations issued in
February 2003 set standards for the security of electronic health information requiring compliance by April 21,
2005. Violations of these rules will subject us to significant penalties. Compliance with HIPAA regulations
requires significant systems enhancements, training and administrative effort. The final rules do not provide for
complete federal preemption of state laws, but rather preempt all inconsistent state laws unless the state law is
more stringent. HIPAA could also expose us to additional liability for violations by our business associates.

Another area receiving increased focus is the time in which various laws require the payment of health care
claims. Many states already have legislation in place covering payment of claims within a specific number of
days. However, due to provider groups advocating for laws or regulations establishing even stricter standards,
procedures and penalties, we expect additional regulatory scrutiny and supplemental legislation with respect to
claims payment practices. The provider-sponsored bills are characterized by stiff penalties for late payment,
including high interest rates payable to providers and costly fines levied by state insurance departments and
attorneys general. This legislation and possible future regulation and oversight could expose our Company to
additional liability and penalties.

We are also subject to various governmental audits and investigations. These can include audits and
investigations by state attorneys general, CMS, the Office of the Inspector General of Health and Human
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Services, the Office of Personnel Management, the Department of Justice, the Department of Labor, and state
Departments of Insurance and Departments of Health. These activities could result in the loss of licensure or the
right to participate in various programs, or the imposition of fines, penalties and other sanctions. In addition,
disclosure of any adverse investigation or audit results or sanctions could negatively affect our reputation in
various markets and make it more difficult for us to sell our products and services.

If we fail to maintain satisfactory relationships with the providers of care to our members, our business
could be adversely affected.

We contract with physicians, hospitals and other providers to deliver health care to our members. Our
products encourage or require our customers to use these contracted providers. These providers may share
medical cost risk with us or have financial incentives to deliver quality medical services in a cost-effective
manner.

In any particular market, providers could refuse to contract with us, demand higher payments, or take other
actions that could result in higher health care costs for us, less desirable products for customers and members or
difficulty meeting regulatory or accreditation requirements. In some markets, some providers, particularly
hospitals, physician/hospital organizations or multi-specialty physician groups, may have significant market
positions and negotiating power. In addition, physician or practice management companies, which aggregate
physician practices for administrative efficiency and marketing leverage, may, in some cases, compete directly
with us. If these providers refuse to contract with us, use their market position to negotiate favorable contracts or
place us at a competitive disadvantage, our ability to market products or to be profitable in those areas could be
adversely affected.

In some situations, we have contracts with individual or groups of primary care physicians for an actuarially
determined, fixed, per-member-per-month fee under which physicians are paid an amount to provide all required
medical services to our members (i.e. capitation). The inability of providers to properly manage costs under these
capitation arrangements can result in the financial instability of these providers and the termination of their
relationship with us. In addition, payment or other disputes between a primary care provider and specialists with
whom the primary care provider contracts can result in a disruption in the provision of services to our members
or a reduction in the services available to our members. The financial instability or failure of a primary care
provider to pay other providers for services rendered could lead those other providers to demand payment from
us, even though we have made our regular fixed payments to the primary provider. There can be no assurance
that providers with whom we contract will properly manage the costs of services, maintain financial solvency or
avoid disputes with other providers. Any of these events could have an adverse effect on the provision of services
to our members and our operations.

Our ability to obtain funds from our subsidiaries is restricted.

Because we operate as a holding company, we are dependent upon dividends and administrative expense
reimbursements from our subsidiaries to fund the obligations of Humana Inc., the parent company. These
subsidiaries generally are regulated by states’ Departments of Insurance. In most states, we are required to seek
prior approval by these state regulatory authorities before we transfer money or pay dividends from these
subsidiaries that exceed specified amounts, or, in some states, any amount. In addition, we normally notify the
state Departments of Insurance prior to making payments that do not require approval. We are also required by
law to maintain specific prescribed minimum amounts of capital in these subsidiaries. One TRICARE subsidiary
under the Regions 3 and 4 contract with the Department of Defense is required to maintain assets at least
equivalent to its current liabilities.
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Increased litigation and negative publicity could increase our cost of doing business.

The health benefits industry continues to receive significant negative publicity reflecting the public
perception of the industry. This publicity and perception have been accompanied by increased litigation,
including some large jury awards, legislative activity, regulation and governmental review of industry practices.
These factors may adversely affect our ability to market our products or services, may require us to change our
products or services, may increase the regulatory burdens under which we operate and may require us to pay
large judgments or fines. Any combination of these factors could further increase our cost of doing business and
adversely affect our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

ITEM 7a. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The information required by this Item appears in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Item 7 herein, under the caption ‘“Market Risk-Sensitive Financial
Instruments and Positions.”
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Humana Inc.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2003 2002
(in thousands, except share
amounts)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cashequivalents .. ....... ... .. .. $ 931,404 $ 721,357
INVeStMENt SECUIILIES . . . . e e e e e e e e e e 1,676,642 1,395,068
Receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $40,400 in 2003 and
$30,178 in 2002
Premiums . . ... 452,404 321,135
Administrative Services fEeS . .. ... 13,583 68,316
O her . oo 247,298 250,857
Total current assets . . ... 3,321,331 2,756,733
Property and equipment, Nt .. ......... it 416,472 459,842
Other assets:
Long-term investment SECUTties . ... ..o vt ittt e enn 319,167 299,489
GoodWill . ... e 776,874 776,874
O T . oo 459,479 586,999
Total Other aSSEtS . . . v vttt 1,555,520 1,663,362
Total ASSELS . ..ottt $5,293,323 $4,879,937
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Medical and other expenses payable .. ..., $1,272,156  $1,142,131
Trade accounts payable and accrued expenses ............................ 440,340 552,689
Book overdraft . . ... ... 219,054 94,882
Unearned rEVENUES . . . e e e e e e 333,071 335,757
Short-term debt . ... ... — 265,000
Total current liabilities . ... ... ... . i 2,264,621 2,390,459
Long-term debt ... ... ... ... 642,638 339,913
Other long-term liabilities .. .......... .. 550,115 543,091
Total Habilities . ... ... ... . 3,457,374 3,273,463
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $1 par; 10,000,000 shares authorized; none issued ........... — —
Common stock, $0.16 2/3 par; 300,000,000 shares authorized; 173,909,127
shares issued in 2003 and 171,334,893 shares issued in 2002 .............. 28,984 28,556
Capital inexcessof parvalue ............ . . . i 974,975 931,089
Retained earnings ... .........iiiii i e 949,811 720,877
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ............ ... .. i ... 16,909 22,455
Unearned Stock compensation . .. .........utttetn e, (754) (6,516)
Treasury stock, at cost, 12,018,281 shares in 2003 and 8,362,537 shares in
200 . (133,976) (89,987)
Total stockholders’ equity . ... ... ..ot 1,835,949 1,606,474
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .............. .. .. .. ... ..... $5,293,323 $4,879,937

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Humana Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the year ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(in thousands, except per share results)

Revenues: . ... e
Premiums ... ... $11,825,283 $10,930,397 $ 9,938,961
Administrative services fees . . ... . 271,676 244,396 137,090
Investment and otherincome .......... ... ... ... ... 129,352 86,388 118,835
Totalrevenues . ........... i 12,226,311 11,261,181 10,194,886

OPErating EXPENSES: .« .« . vt vttt et et e e e e
Medical . ... .. 9,879,421 9,138,196 8,279,844
Selling, general and administrative .. ............. .. .. ... ...... 1,858,028 1,775,069 1,545,129
Depreciation and amortization . .................c.c.iiiia.... 126,779 120,730 161,531
Total operating eXpenses . ... .......oueuenenunnenenennns 11,864,228 11,033,995 9,986,504
Income from operations . ......... ... ... 362,083 227,186 208,382
INterest EXPense . . . ..ottt e 17,367 17,252 25,302
Income before income taxes .. ...t 344,716 209,934 183,080
Provision for inCOME taxes . ... ...ttt 115,782 67,179 65,909
NELINCOME .« . v vttt e e e e e e e e e e $ 228934 $ 142,755 $ 117,171
Basic earnings per common share ............... .. ... ... ... $ 144 $ 087 $ 0.71
Diluted earnings per common share ....................c.vuiu.... $ 141 $ 085 $ 0.70

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Humana Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumul
M Capital In cc?)thl:e: ted Unearned Total
Issued Excess of Retained Comprehensive Stock Treasury Stockholders’
Shares Amount Par Value Earnings Income (Loss) Compensation Stock Equity
(in thousands)
Balances, January 1,2001 ....... 170,889 $28,482 $922,621 $460,951 $(8,509) $(29,177)  $ (13,947) $1,360,421
Comprehensive income: .........
Netincome ................. — — — 117,171 — — — 117,171

Other comprehensive income: . .
Net unrealized investment

gains, net of $12,847 tax .. — — — — 20,179 — — 20,179
Comprehensive income .. ... 137,350
Common stock repurchases ... ... — — — — — — (1,867) (1,867)
Restricted stock grants
(forfeitures),net ............. (433) (72) (1,699) — — 815 956 —
Restricted stock amortization . . . .. — — — — — 9,492 — 9,492
Restricted stock market value
adjustment ................. — — (988) — — 988 — —
Stock option exercises .......... 237 39 1,776 — — — (81) 1,734
Stock option tax benefit ......... — — 261 — — — — 261
Other stock compensation ... .... — — 468 — — — 90 558
Balances, December 31, 2001 .... 170,693 28,449 922439 578,122 11,670 (17,882) (14,849) 1,507,949
Comprehensive income: .........
Netincome ................. — — — 142,755 — — — 142,755

Other comprehensive income: . .
Net unrealized investment

gains, net of $6,465 tax ... — — — — 10,785 — — 10,785
Comprehensive income .. ... 153,540
Common stock repurchases ... ... — — — — — — (74,035) (74,035)
Restricted stock forfeitures . . . . ... (331) (55) (2,317) — — 2,372 —
Restricted stock amortization . . . .. — — — — — 8,994 — 8,994
Stock option exercises .......... 973 162 8,370 — — — (1,206) 7,326
Stock option tax benefit ......... —_ —_ 2,204 —_ —_ —_ —_ 2,204
Other stock compensation ... .... — — 393 — — — 103 496
Balances, December 31,2002 .... 171,335 28,556 931,089 720,877 22,455 (6,516) (89,987) 1,606,474
Comprehensive income: .........
Netincome ................. — — — 228,934 — — — 228,934

Other comprehensive loss: .. ...
Net unrealized investment

losses, net of ($3,531) tax . . — — — — (5,546) — — (5,546)
Comprehensive income .. ... 223,388
Common stock repurchases ... ... — — — — — — (44,147) (44,147)
Restricted stock forfeitures . . .. ... (72) (13) (527) — — 540 — —
Restricted stock amortization . . . .. — — — — — 5,808 — 5,808
Stock option exercises .......... 2,646 441 27,598 — — — — 28,039
Stock option and restricted stock
tax benefit .................. — — 15,858 — — — — 15,858
Other stock compensation ....... — — 957 — — (586) 158 529
Balances, December 31,2003 .... 173,909 $28,984 $974,975 $949,811 $16,909 $ (754)  $(133,976) $1,835,949

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Humana Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities

NELINCOME - o v vvve e e et e e e e e e e e e e $ 228,934 $ 142,755 $ 117,171

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Writedown of property and equipment . .............. ... ... 17,233 2,448 —
Depreciation and amortization . .. ......... ...t e 126,779 120,730 161,531
Restricted stock and other stock compensation ........... ... ... ... ... ... .. 6,337 9,490 10,050
Loss on sale of property and equipment, net . ....................ooiiiiii... 298 3,168 686
(Gain) loss on sale of investment securities, net .....................cc.uiu.... (36,651) 10,077 (13,853)
Provision for deferred inCOME tAXES . ... oot vt ittt e e 32,251 49,561 56,104
Provision for doubtful accounts .. .............. ... . 7,416 5,990 4,039

Changes in operating assets and liabilities excluding the effects of acquisitions
and divestitures:

Receivables . ... .. (22,636) (183,071) (25,231)
Other @SSELS . o ottt et e e e e e 25,110 (2,464) 10,579
Medical and other expenses payable ............ ... ... .. ... 130,025 55,745 (179,539)
Other Habilities . . .. ... o e e e (107,432) 84,347 19,456
Unearned reVENUES . . . . ..ottt e e (2,686) 10,717 (13,397)
Other oot 8,162 11,915 1,362
Net cash provided by operating activities ................ ... . 413,140 321,408 148,958
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisitions, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired ............................. — — (29,359)
Divestitures, net of cash and cash equivalents disposed ............... ... ... ...... — — 1,470
Purchases of property and equipment . ............. ... i (101,268) (112,136) (115,536)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment . ................... i, 11,182 1,849 565
Purchases of investment SECUIILES . . . ... oottt e et e e (4,572,577)  (2,569,078)  (1,874,482)
Maturities of iINVEeStMENt SECULILIES . . ... oottt et e e e e e e e 769,436 492,935 626,369
Proceeds from sales of investment SECUIties . . .. ..ottt 3,520,064 2,058,273 1,272,166
Net cash used in investing activities . ................ou it .. (373,163) (128,157) (118,807)
Cash flows from financing activities
Revolving credit agreement repayments .. ................ooeiuuuniaerunnneeennn.. — — (520,000)
Net conduit commercial paper (repayments) borrowings . ............. ..o .. (265,000) 2,000 263,000
Net commercial paper repayments . . ... ...ttt unn ettt — — (79,952)
Proceeds from issuance of SENIOr NOtES . .. ... ..o\ttt 299,139 — 299,277
Proceeds from other borrowings . ......... ... — — 5,700
Proceeds from swap exchange . ........... ... 31,556 — —
DDt ISSUE COSES . vttt et et e e e e e e (3,331) (1,549) (7,116)
Change in book overdraft . . ... ... . . 124,172 (57,875) 4,194
Common Stock repurchases . ....... ... ... o (44,147) (74,035) (1,867)
Proceeds from stock option exercises and other . ......... ... ... ... i 27,681 8,145 471
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ... ...................... 170,070 (123,314) (36,293)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . ............ ... ... ... .. 210,047 69,937 (6,142)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ............... . ... ... . ... ... 721,357 651,420 657,562
Cash and cash equivalentsatend of year . . ........ ... .. i i i i i $ 931,404 $ 721,357 $ 651,420
Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
TNEETESE PAYMENLS .« . . v o e e ottt ettt e ettt e e e e e e $ 18,096 $ 14,691 $ 23,663
Income tax PaymMeNts, MEL . . . . oo vttt ettt e e e e et e e e $ 59,622 $ 43454 $ 11,413
Details of businesses acquired in purchase transactions:
Fair value of assets acquired, net of cash acquired ............ ... ... ... ........... $ 154,684
Less: liabilities assumed . . . . .. ... (125,325)
Cash paid for acquired businesses, net of cash acquired ............................. $ 29,359

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Humana Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. REPORTING ENTITY
Nature of Operations

Headquartered in Louisville, Kentucky, Humana Inc. is one of the nation’s largest publicly traded health
benefits companies, based on our 2003 revenues of $12.2 billion. References throughout this document to “we,”
“us,” “our,” “Company,” and “Humana,” mean Humana Inc. and all entities we own. We offer coordinated
health insurance coverage and related services through a variety of traditional and Internet-based plans for
employer groups, government-sponsored programs, and individuals. In 2003, approximately 70% of our
premiums and administrative services fees resulted from members located in Florida, Illinois, Texas, Kentucky
and Ohio. We derived approximately 42% of our premiums and administrative services fees from contracts with
the federal government in 2003. Under two federal government contracts with the Department of Defense, we
provide health insurance coverage to TRICARE members, accounting for approximately 20% of our total
premium and administrative services fees in 2003. Under one federal government contract with the Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS, we provide health insurance coverage for Medicare+Choice members
in Florida, accounting for approximately 15% of our total premiums and administrative services fees in 2003.

We manage our business with two segments: Commercial and Government. The Commercial segment
consists of members enrolled in products marketed to employer groups and individuals, and includes three lines
of business: fully insured medical, administrative services only, or ASO, and specialty. The Government segment
consists of members enrolled in government-sponsored programs, and includes three lines of business:
Medicare+Choice, Medicaid, and TRICARE. We identified our segments in accordance with the aggregation
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, Disclosures About Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information which is consistent with information used by our Chief Executive Officer in
managing our business. The segment information aggregates products with similar economic characteristics.
These characteristics include the nature of customer groups and pricing, benefits and underwriting requirements.

The accounting policies of each segment are the same and are described in Note 2. The results of each
segment are measured by income before income taxes. We allocate all selling, general and administrative
expenses, investment and other income, interest expense, and goodwill, but no other assets or liabilities, to our
segments. Members served by our two segments generally utilize the same medical provider networks, enabling
us to obtain more favorable contract terms with providers. Our segments also share overhead costs and assets. As
a result, the profitability of each segment is interdependent.

Pending Acquisition

In December 2003, we reached a definitive agreement to purchase a Louisiana health plan from Ochsner
Clinic Foundation. This transaction, which is subject to state regulatory approval, is expected to close in the
second quarter of 2004.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

Our financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
Humana Inc., and its majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have
been eliminated. Certain reclassifications have been made to our prior years’ consolidated financial statements to
conform with the current year presentation. These reclassifications, which primarily related to reinsurance
contracts as discussed in Note 16, had no effect on previously reported consolidated revenues, net income,
stockholders’ equity or cash flows.
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Humana Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires
us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. The areas involving the most significant use of estimates are the estimation of medical
expenses payable, the recognition of revenue related to our TRICARE contracts, the valuation and related
impairment recognition of investment securities, and the valuation and related impairment recognition of long-
lived assets, including goodwill. These estimates are based on knowledge of current events and anticipated future
events, and accordingly, actual results may ultimately differ materially from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, time deposits, money market funds, commercial paper, other money
market instruments, and certain U.S. Government securities with an original maturity of three months or less.
Carrying value approximates fair value due to the short-term maturity of the investments.

Investment Securities

Investment securities, which consist primarily of debt securities, have been categorized as available for sale
and, as a result, are stated at fair value. Fair value of publicly traded debt and equity securities are based on
quoted market prices. Non-traded debt securities are priced independently by a third party. Fair value of venture
capital debt securities that are privately held, or where an observable quoted market price does not exist, are
estimated using a variety of valuation methodologies. Such methodologies include reviewing the value ascribed
to the most recent financing, comparing the security with securities of publicly traded companies in a similar line
of business, and reviewing the underlying financial performance including estimating discounted cash flows.
Investment securities available for current operations are classified as current assets. Investment securities
available for our professional liability and long-term insurance product funding requirements, as well as statutory
deposits and venture capital investments, are classified as long-term assets. Unrealized holding gains and losses,
net of applicable deferred taxes, are included as a component of stockholders’ equity until realized from a sale or
impairment.

For the purpose of determining gross realized gains and losses, the cost of investment securities sold is
based upon specific identification. We regularly evaluate our investment securities for impairment. We consider
factors affecting the investee, factors affecting the industry the investee operates within, and general debt and
equity market trends. We consider the length of time an investment’s fair value has been below carrying value,
the near term prospects for recovery to carrying value, and our intent and ability to hold the investment until
maturity or market recovery is realized. If and when a determination is made that a decline in fair value below
the cost basis is other than temporary, the related investment is written down to its estimated fair value through
earnings.

We participate in a securities lending program to maximize investment income. We loan certain investment
securities for short periods of time in exchange for collateral, consisting of cash or U.S. Government securities,
equal to at least 102% of the fair value of the investment securities on loan. The fair value of the loaned
investment securities is monitored on a daily basis, with additional collateral obtained or refunded as the fair
value of the loaned investment securities fluctuates. The collateral is deposited by the borrower with an
independent lending agent, and retained and invested by the lending agent according to our investment guidelines
to generate additional investment income. Loaned securities continue to be carried as investment securities on the
consolidated balance sheets.
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Humana Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Premiums Receivable and Revenue Recognition

We generally establish one-year commercial membership contracts with employer groups, subject to
cancellation by a 30 day written notice. Our TRICARE contracts with the federal government and our contracts
with various state Medicaid programs generally are multi-year contracts subject to annual renewal provisions.
Our Medicare+Choice contracts with the federal government renew annually. We bill and collect premium and
administrative fee remittances from employer groups and some individual Medicare+Choice members monthly.
We receive monthly premiums and administrative fees from the federal government and various states according
to government specified reimbursement rates and various contractual terms.

Premium revenues are recognized as income in the period members are entitled to receive services, and are
net of estimated uncollectible amounts and retroactive membership adjustments. Retroactive membership
adjustments result from enrollment changes not yet processed, or not yet reported by an employer group or the
government. We routinely monitor the collectibility of specific accounts, the aging of receivables, historical
retroactivity trends, as well as prevailing and anticipated economic conditions, and reflect any required
adjustments in current operations. Revenues also may include change orders and bid price adjustments
attributable to our TRICARE contracts. Change orders represent equitable adjustments for services not originally
specified in the contracts. Bid price adjustments, or BPAs, represent adjustments defined in our contracts subject
to negotiations with the federal government. Revenues for these adjustments are recognized when a settlement
amount becomes determinable and the collectibility is reasonably assured.

Administrative services only fees, or ASO, are earned as services are performed. Administrative services
fees cover the processing of claims, offering access to our provider networks and clinical programs, and
responding to customer service inquiries from members of self-funded employers. Under ASO contracts, self-
funded employers and, for TRICARE ASO, the Department of Defense, retain the risk of financing the cost of
health benefits.

Premium and ASO receivables are shown net of allowances for estimated uncollectible accounts and
retroactive membership adjustments. Premiums and ASO fees received prior to the period members are entitled
to receive services are recorded as unearned revenues.

Policy Acquisition Costs

Policy acquisition costs are those costs that vary with and primarily are related to the acquisition of new and
renewal business. Such costs include broker commissions, costs of policy issuance and underwriting, and other
costs we incur to acquire new business or renew existing business. We expense policy acquisition costs related to
our employer-group prepaid health services policies as incurred in accordance with the Health Care
Organization Audit and Accounting Guide. Our short-duration employer-group prepaid health services policies
typically have a one-year term and may be cancelled upon 30 days notice.

Our health and life policies sold to individuals, when aggregated as a block of policies, are expected to
remain in force for an extended period beyond one year. We defer policy acquisition costs related to our
individual health and life insurance policies in accordance with the accounting for long-duration insurance
products under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 60, Accounting and Reporting by Insurance
Enterprises. Deferred policy acquisition costs are amortized over the estimated life of the policies in proportion
to premiums earned and are reviewed annually to determine if they are recoverable from future income.
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Long-Lived Assets

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Gains and losses on sales or disposals of property and
equipment are included in administrative expense. Certain costs related to the development or purchase of
internal-use software are capitalized in accordance with AICPA Statement of Position 98-1, Accounting for the
Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over estimated useful lives ranging from 3 to 10 years for equipment, 3 to 7 years for
computer software, and 20 to 40 years for buildings.

We periodically review long-lived assets, including property and equipment and other intangible assets, for
impairment whenever adverse events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of the asset may not
be recoverable. Losses are recognized for a long-lived asset to be held and used in our operations when the
undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset are less than its carrying value. We
recognize an impairment loss based on the excess of the carrying value over the fair value of the asset. A long-
lived asset held for sale is reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.
Depreciation expense is not recognized on assets held for sale. Losses are recognized for a long-lived asset to be
abandoned when the asset ceases to be used. In addition, we periodically review the estimated lives of all long-
lived assets for reasonableness. See Note 4 for a discussion related to our 2003 impairment.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the unamortized excess of cost over the fair value of the net tangible and other
intangible assets acquired. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets, or Statement 142, requires goodwill to no longer be amortized to earnings, but instead to be tested at least
annually for impairment at a level of reporting referred to as the reporting unit and more frequently if adverse
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset may be impaired. A reporting unit is one level below
our Commercial and Government segments. The Commercial segment’s two reporting units consist of health
insurance and specialty products. The Government segment’s three reporting units consist of Medicare+Choice,
TRICARE and Medicaid.

Goodwill was assigned to the reporting unit that was expected to benefit from a specific acquisition. If
goodwill was expected to benefit multiple reporting units, we allocated goodwill in connection with our
transitional impairment test as of January 1, 2002 based upon the reporting units’ relative fair value. This process
resulted in the allocation of $633.2 million of goodwill to the Commercial segment and $143.7 million of
goodwill to the Government segment.

We ceased amortizing goodwill upon adopting Statement 142 on January 1, 2002. Statement 142 requires a
two-step process to review goodwill for impairment. The first step is a screen for potential impairment, and the
second step measures the amount of impairment, if any. Impairment tests are performed, at a minimum, in the
fourth quarter of each year supported by our long-range business plan and annual planning process. Impairment
tests completed for 2002 and 2003 did not result in an impairment loss.

Medical and Other Expenses Payable and Medical Cost Recognition

Medical costs include claim payments, capitation payments, allocations of certain centralized expenses and
various other costs incurred to provide health insurance coverage to members, as well as estimates of future
payments to hospitals and others for medical care provided prior to the balance sheet date. Capitation payments
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represent monthly contractual fees disbursed to primary care physicians and other providers who are responsible
for providing medical care to members. We estimate the costs of our future medical claims and other medical
expense payments using actuarial methods and assumptions based upon claim payment patterns, medical cost
inflation, historical developments such as claim inventory levels and claim receipt patterns, and other relevant
factors, and record medical claims reserves for future payments. We continually review estimates of future
payments relating to medical claims costs for services incurred in the current and prior periods and make
necessary adjustments to our reserves.

We reassess the profitability of our contracts for providing health insurance coverage to our members when
current operating results or forecasts indicate probable future losses. We establish a premium deficiency liability
in current operations to the extent that the sum of a geographic market’s expected future medical costs, claim
adjustment expenses, and maintenance costs exceeds related future premiums under contract for all lines of
business. Anticipated investment income is not considered for purposes of computing the premium deficiency.
Losses recognized as a premium deficiency result in a beneficial effect in subsequent periods as operating losses
under these contracts are charged to the liability previously established. There were no premium deficiency
liabilities recorded at December 31, 2003 and 2002. Because the majority of our member contracts renew
annually, we do not anticipate recording a premium deficiency liability, except when unanticipated adverse
events or changes in circumstances indicate otherwise.

We believe our medical and other expenses payable are adequate to cover future claims payments required.
However, such estimates are based on knowledge of current events and anticipated future events. Therefore, the
actual liability could differ from the amounts provided.

Book Overdraft

Under our cash management system, checks issued but not yet presented to banks frequently result
in overdraft balances for accounting purposes and are classified as a current liability in the consolidated
balance sheets.

Income Taxes

We recognize an asset or liability for the deferred tax consequences of temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets or liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements. These temporary
differences will result in taxable or deductible amounts in future years when the reported amounts of the assets or
liabilities are recovered or settled. We also recognize the future tax benefits such as net operating and capital loss
carryforwards as deferred tax assets. A valuation allowance is provided against these deferred tax assets if it is
more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Future years tax
expense may be increased or decreased by adjustments to the valuation allowance or to the estimated accrual for
income taxes.

Professional Liability Risk

We bear general business risks associated with operating our Company such as professional and general
liability, employee workers’ compensation, and officer and director errors and omissions risks. Professional and
general liability risks may include, for example, medical malpractice claims and disputes with members
regarding benefit coverage. We retain these risks through our wholly-owned, consolidated insurance subsidiary.
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We reduce exposure to our own general business risks by insuring levels of coverage for losses in excess of our
retained limits with a number of third party insurance companies. We remain liable in the event these insurance
companies are unable to pay their portion of the losses. In an effort to minimize credit risk, we insure our risks
with a number of insurance companies having a long history of strong financial ratings.

We accrue for professional liability claims reported and outstanding and an estimate of claims incurred but
not reported (based on actuarial determinations using past experience, modified for current trends) and
corresponding loss adjustment expenses incurred to adjudicate such claims. We continually review these
estimated liabilities, and make necessary adjustments as warranted. Given the nature and degree of uncertainty
involved in projecting professional liability losses, the actual liability could differ significantly from the amounts
provided. We record provision for professional liability losses, including any necessary adjustments to the
estimated liability as well as the cost of third party insurance coverage, as an administrative expense. We record
estimated recoveries from third party insurers as a reduction of administrative expense. The recoverable
from third party insurers is included as an asset in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, as discussed
in Note 9.

Stock-Based Compensation

We have stock-based employee compensation plans, which are described more fully in Note 10. We account
for our stock option plans under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees and related interpretations, or APB No. 25. No employee compensation cost is reflected in net income
related to fixed-based stock option awards because these options had an exercise price equal to the market value
of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. Generally, if a fixed-based stock option award is
subsequently modified, compensation expense, if any, is recorded for the amount that the market price of
Humana common stock exceeds the option’s exercise price on the date the option is modified. Compensation
expense is recorded for restricted stock grants over their vesting periods based on fair value, which is equal to the
market price of Humana common stock on the date of the grant. The effect on net income and earnings per share
if we had applied the fair value recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to our fixed-based stock option awards was as follows for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001.

2003 2002 2001
(in thousands, except per share
results)
Net income, as reported .. ... ...t et i $228,934 $142,755 $117,171
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net
income, netof related tax . . ... 3,872 5,798 6,141
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under
fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax ............... (8,875) (9,787) (9,885)
Adjusted NEtINCOME . . ..o\ttt e $223,931 $138,766 $113,427
Earnings per share:
Basic, asreported .. ... ... $ 144 $ 087 $ 071
Basic, proforma . ........... .. $ 141 $ 085 $ 0.69
Diluted, asreported . ...t e $ 141 $ 08 $ 0.70
Diluted, pro forma ............. . $ 138 $ 083 $ 0.68
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Earnings Per Common Share

We compute basic earnings per common share on the basis of the weighted average number of unrestricted
common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per common share is computed on the basis of the weighted
average number of unrestricted common shares outstanding plus the dilutive effect of outstanding employee
stock options and restricted shares using the treasury stock method.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

On December 17, 2003, the Staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC” or the “Staff”) issued
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue Recognition, or SAB 104, which supercedes Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 101, Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements, or SAB 101. SAB 104’s primary purpose is to
rescind accounting guidance contained in SAB 101 related to multiple element revenue arrangements,
superceded as a result of the issuance of EITF 00-21, “Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables.” Additionally, SAB 104 rescinds the SEC’s Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements
Frequently Asked Questions and Answers, or the FAQ, issued with SAB 101 that had been codified in SEC Topic
13, Revenue Recognition. Selected portions of the FAQ have been incorporated into SAB 104. While the wording
of SAB 104 has changed to reflect the issuance of EITF 00-21, the revenue recognition principles of SAB 101
remain largely unchanged by the issuance of SAB 104. The provisions of SAB 104 do not have an impact on our
current revenue recognition policies.

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 46,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB 51, or FIN 46. The primary objectives of
FIN 46 are to provide guidance on the identification of entities for which control is achieved through means other
than through voting rights (variable interest entities, or VIEs) and how to determine when and which business
enterprise should consolidate the VIE (the primary beneficiary). In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46-R,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities—an interpretation of ARB 51 (revised December 2003), which
replaces FIN 46. FIN 46-R incorporates certain modifications to FIN 46 adopted by the FASB subsequent to the
issuance of FIN 46, including modifications to the scope of FIN 46. Additionally, FIN 46-R incorporates much of
the guidance previously issued in the form of FASB Staff Positions.

For all special purpose entities (“SPEs”) created prior to February 1, 2003, public entities must apply either
the provisions of FIN 46 or early adopt the provisions of FIN 46-R at the end of the first interim or annual
reporting period ending after December 15, 2003. If a public entity applies FIN 46 for such period, the provisions
of FIN 46-R must be applied as of the end of the first interim or annual reporting period ending after March 15,
2004. For all non-SPEs created prior to February 1, 2003, public entities will be required to adopt FIN 46-R at
the end of the first interim or annual reporting period ending after March 15, 2004. For all entities (regardless of
whether the entity is an SPE) that were created subsequent to January 31, 2003, public entities were already
required to apply the provisions of FIN 46, and should continue doing so unless they elect to early adopt the
provisions of FIN 46-R as of the first interim or annual reporting period ending after December 15, 2003. If they
do not elect to early adopt FIN 46-R, public entities would be required to apply FIN 46-R to those post-January
31, 2003 entities as of the end of the first interim or annual reporting period ending after March 15, 2004.

As part of our ongoing business, we do not participate or knowingly seek to participate in transactions that
generate relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as
structured finance or SPEs, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet
arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. As of December 31, 2003, we are not involved
in any SPE transactions. The adoption of FIN 46 or FIN 46-R is not expected to have a material impact on our
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.
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3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Investment securities classified as current assets were as follows at December 31, 2003 and 2002:

2003 2002
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value
(in thousands)
U.S. Government obligations . . . . . .. $ 455305 $ 2,121 $(2,024) $ 455402 $ 375,059 $ 6,232 $ — $ 381,291
Tax exempt municipal securities . . . . 686,552 14,056 (1,766) 698,842 586,834 16,249 (566) 602,517
Corporate and other securities . ... .. 374,568 8,649 (3,407) 379,810 312,667 12,070 (5,597) 319,140
Mortgage-backed securities . . ...... 84,399 811 (1,251) 83,959 23,606 661 — 24,267
Redeemable preferred stocks . ...... 27,686 95 (734) 27,047 19,886 61 (564) 19,383
Debt securities .............. 1,628,510 25,732 (9,182) 1,645,060 1,318,052 35,273 (6,727) 1,346,598
Non-redeemable preferred stocks . .. 31,171 683 272) 31,582 41,248 321 (1,900) 39,669
Common stocks ................. — — — — 10,813 106 (2,118) 8,801
Equity securities ............. 31,171 683 (272) 31,582 52,061 427 (4,018) 48,470
Investment securities ......... $1,659,681  $26,415 $(9,454) $1,676,642 $1,370,113  $35,700 $(10,745) $1,395,068
Investment securities classified as long-term assets were as follows at December 31, 2003 and 2002:
2003 2002
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value
(in thousands)
U.S. Government obligations . . . . . .. $137,512 $ 1,532 $(101) $138,943  $127,111 $ 3,556 $ — $130,667
Tax exempt municipal securities . . .. 65,535 1,014 (294) 66,255 55,510 1,350 (194) 56,666
Corporate and other securities . ... .. 57,994 1,365 (271) 59,088 57,496 1,277 (395) 58,378
Mortgage-backed securities ........ 11,155 116 (44) 11,227 6,122 27 — 6,149
Redeemable preferred stocks . ...... 32,625 7,390 — 40,015 31,625 7,377 — 39,002
Debt securities .............. 304,821 11,417 (710) 315,528 277,864 13,587 (589) 290,862
Non-redeemable preferred stocks . . . 2,233 19 (13) 2,239 3,721 35 (217) 3,539
Common Stocks . ................ 1,400 — — 1,400 6,108 — (1,020) 5,088
Equity securities ... .......... 3,633 19 (13) 3,639 9,829 35 (1,237) 8,627
Long-term investment
securities . ............... $308,454  $11,436 $(723) $319,167  $287,693 $13,622 $(1,826)  $299,489

Investment securities with a fair value of $95.4 million at December 31, 2003 and $100.7 million at
December 31, 2002 were on deposit at financial institutions in certain states pursuant to the respective states’

insurance regulations.
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Gross unrealized losses and fair value aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual
securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position were as follows at December 31, 2003:

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

(in thousands)

U.S. Government obligations . .. ..................o.... $251,218 $(2,125) $ — $ — $251,218 $ (2,125)
Tax exempt municipal securities ....................... 90,705 (1,566) 21,979 (494) 112,684 (2,060)
Corporate and other securities ......................... 121,184 (3,674) 714 4) 121,898 (3,678)
Mortgage-backed securities .. ............. ... .. 47,060 (1,295) — — 47,060 (1,295)
Redeemable preferred stocks ........... .. ... ... ... — — 21,348 (734) 21,348 (734)
Debtsecurities . ............oiiiiiiiii... 510,167 (8,660) 44,041 (1,232) 554,208 (9,892)
Equity securities ... ... — — 7,162 (285) 7,162 (285)
Total investment securities . . . ...........covvuen.... $510,167 $(8,660) $51,203 $(1,517) $561,370 $(10,177)

Unrealized losses at December 31, 2003 resulted from 96 positions. Less than 3% of the carrying value of
our consolidated investment securities have been in an unrealized loss position greater than one year. The
unrealized losses at December 31, 2003 generally can be attributed to changes in interest rates. All securities
trading at an unrealized loss remain current on all contractual payments and we believe it is probable that we will
be able to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the debt securities. After taking into
account these and other factors, including our ability and intent to hold these securities until recovery or maturity,
we determined the unrealized losses on these investment securities were temporary.

The contractual maturities of debt securities available for sale at December 31, 2003, regardless of their
balance sheet classification, are shown below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities
because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized
Cost Fair Value
(in thousands)
Due within ON€ Year .............c.uuuurunnnnnnnnnnnnns $ 117,485 $ 118,393
Due after one year through fiveyears ..................... 597,975 607,343
Due after five years through tenyears .................... 341,640 347,908
Due aftertenyears ... ..., 876,231 886,944
Total debt securities . ............ouuuneueennon... $1,933,331  $1,960,588

Gross realized investment gains were $52.8 million in 2003, $24.7 million in 2002, and $25.1 million in
2001. Gross realized gains in 2003 included a gain of $15.2 million related to the sale of one venture capital
investment in the second quarter of 2003.

Gross realized investment losses were $16.2 million in 2003, $34.8 million in 2002, and $11.2 million in
2001. Gross realized losses included impairment losses of $3.2 million in 2003, $27.2 million in 2002, and
$2.4 million in 2001 after an evaluation indicated that a decline in fair value below the cost basis was other
than temporary.

Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2002, we began participation in a securities lending program where we
loan certain investment securities for short periods of time in exchange for collateral, consisting of cash or U.S.

Government securities, equal to at least 102% of the fair value of the investment securities on loan. As of
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December 31, 2003, investment securities with a fair value of $119.8 million were on loan. Investment income
earned on security lending transactions was $0.2 million for 2003 and less than $0.1 million for 2002.

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment was comprised of the following at December 31, 2003 and 2002:

2003 2002
(in thousands)

Land ..o $ 20407 $ 30,798
Buildings . . . ..o 257,728 309,679
Equipment and computer software . ........ ... . ... 717,173 653,996
Assets held forsale . ... 27,517 5,294
1,022,825 999,767

Accumulated depreciation . ... ... ... ... (606,353) (539,925)
Property and equipment, Nt .. ... ..ottt $ 416,472 $ 459,842

Depreciation expense was $115.2 million in 2003, $105.0 million in 2002, and $92.9 million in 2001.
Depreciation expense in 2003 includes the impact of accelerating depreciation related to abandoned software
more fully described at the end of Note 4.

A decision to eliminate the Jacksonville, Florida, San Antonio, Texas and Madison, Wisconsin customer
service centers during the fourth quarter of 2002 prompted a review for the possible impairment of long-lived
assets associated with these centers. Assets under operating leases supported the Madison service center and,
therefore, were not applicable to our impairment analysis. Under a transition plan, we continued to use the long-
lived assets of the Jacksonville and San Antonio customer service centers until mid-2003, the completion date for
consolidating these two customer service centers. The long-lived assets of our customer service centers were
supported by the future cash flows expected to result from members serviced by those centers. Cash flows from
members serviced by each service center represented the lowest level of independently identifiable cash flows.
For example, cash flows from members located primarily in the state of Florida and serviced by the Jacksonville
service center supported the Jacksonville center’s long-lived assets until those members’ service was transitioned
elsewhere.

Our impairment review during the fourth quarter of 2002 indicated that estimated undiscounted cash flows
expected to result from the remaining use of the San Antonio, Texas customer service center long-lived assets,
primarily buildings, were insufficient to recover their carrying value. Accordingly, we reduced the carrying value
of these long-lived assets to their estimated fair value resulting in non-cash impairment expenses of $2.4 million
($1.5 million after tax) during the fourth quarter of 2002.

Unlike our San Antonio impairment review, a greater number of more profitable members in Florida caused
the estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the remaining use of the Jacksonville, Florida
customer service center’s long-lived assets, primarily a building, to exceed the carrying value as of the fourth
quarter of 2002 impairment review. However, impairment was triggered during the first quarter of 2003 with the
passage of time and the approaching date for closing the center. As members serviced by the Jacksonville,
Florida customer service center were transferred to other service centers during 2003, the undiscounted cash
flows expected from the remaining members serviced by the center fell during the first quarter of 2003 to a level
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no longer supporting the carrying value of the center’s long-lived assets. Accordingly, we reduced the carrying
value of these long-lived assets to their estimated fair value resulting in non-cash impairment expenses of
approximately $17.2 million ($10.5 million after tax) during the first quarter of 2003.

We used an independent third party appraisal to assist us in evaluating the fair value of the buildings. The
non-cash impairment expenses are included with selling, general and administrative expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Based upon our decision to sell some of the buildings previously used in our Jacksonville and San Antonio
customer service operations, we classified them as held for sale and ceased depreciating these buildings effective
July 1, 2003. The estimated costs to sell the building were not material to the estimated fair value. The impact of
ceasing depreciation of the buildings was not material to our results of operations.

Accelerated Depreciation

After finalizing plans during the first quarter of 2003 to abandon software used in our operations by March
2003, we reduced the estimated useful life of the software effective January 1, 2003. Accordingly, we accelerated
the depreciation of the remaining software balance of approximately $13.5 million ($8.3 million after tax) during
the first quarter of 2003.

The allocation of the non-cash pretax expenses related to the writedown and accelerated depreciation of
certain long-lived assets to our Commercial and Government segments was as follows for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002:

2003
Commercial Government Total

(in thousands)
Line item affected:

Selling, general and administrative .............. $ 4,325 $12,908 $17,233
Depreciation and amortization .................. 13,527 — 13,527
Total pretax impact ...................... $17,852 $12,908 $30,760
2002
Commercial Government Total

(in thousands)
Line item affected:
Selling, general and administrative .............. $ 1,755 $ 693 $ 2,448

Total pretax impact ...................... $ 1,755 $ 693 $ 2,448

73



Humana Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

We ceased amortizing goodwill upon adopting Statement 142 on January 1, 2002 as described in Note 2.
The following table adjusts net income and basic and diluted earnings per common share to reflect the non-
amortization of goodwill assuming the non-amortization provisions of Statement 142 were adopted as of January
1, 2001 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

2003 2002 2001
(in thousands, except per share
results)
Net income:
Reported Net iNCOME . .« ..ottt ettt e et $228,934 $142,755 $117,171
Add back: goodwill amortization expense, netof tax ................ — — 52,246
Adjusted NEtiNCOME . . ...\ v ittt e $228,934 $142,755 $169,417
Basic earnings per common share:
Reported basic earnings per common share .. .......................... $ 144 $ 087 $ 071
Add back: goodwill amortization expense, netof tax ................ — — 0.32
Adjusted basic earnings per common share . ........... ... .. ... .. .. ... $ 144 $ 087 $ 1.03
Diluted earnings per common share:
Reported diluted earnings per common share .......................... $ 141 $ 08 $ 0.70
Add back: goodwill amortization expense, netof tax ................ — — 0.31
Adjusted diluted earnings per common share .......................... $ 141 $ 08 $ 1.01

Amortization expense for other intangible assets was approximately $11.6 million in 2003, $15.7 million in
2002 and $13.5 million in 2001. The following table presents our estimate of amortization expense for each of
the five next succeeding fiscal years:

(in thousands)

For the years ending December 31:

2004 L $9,060
2005 L $5,440
2000 ... $ 352
2007 $ 352
2008 . $ 227

The following table presents details of other intangible assets included in other non-current assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2003 and 2002:

Weighted 2003 2002
Average Accumulated Accumulated
Useful Life Cost Amortization Net Cost Amortization Net
(years) (in thousands)
Other intangible assets:
Subscriber contracts .. ....... 9 $ 85,496 $75,194 $10,302 $ 85,496 $68,284 $17,212
Provider contracts ........... 5 12,128 8,075 4,053 12,128 5,644 6,484
Government contracts ........ 2 11,820 11,820 — 11,820 9,764 2,056
Licenses and other........... 26 5,065 1,376 3,689 5,065 1,161 3,904
Total other intangible
assets ..., 9 $114,509 $96,465 $18,044 $114,509 $84,853 $29,656
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6. MEDICAL AND OTHER EXPENSES PAYABLE

Activity in medical and other expenses payable was as follows for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001:

2003 2002 2001
(in thousands)
Balances at January 1 ................... $ 1,142,131  $ 1,086,386  $ 1,181,027
Acquisitions . ....... i — — 85,052
Incurred related to:
Currentyear . .........c.oeueunen... 9,955,491 9,125,915 8,303,256
Prioryears ............ ... ... ..... (76,070) 12,281 (23,412)
Totalincurred ................. 9,879,421 9,138,196 8,279,844
Paid related to:
Currentyear . .........cooueueenen .. (8,710,393) (8,002,610) (7,291,541)
Prioryears .......... ... ... ... .. .. (1,039,003) (1,079,841) (1,167,996)
Totalpaid . .................... (9,749,396) (9,082,451) (8,459,537)
Balances at December 31 ................ $ 1,272,156  $ 1,142,131 $ 1,086,386

Amounts incurred related to prior years vary from previously estimated liabilities as the claims ultimately
are settled. Negative amounts reported for incurred related to prior years result from claims being ultimately
settled for amounts less than originally estimated (favorable development). Positive amounts reported for
incurred related to prior years result from claims ultimately being settled for amounts greater than originally
estimated (unfavorable development).

As summarized in the previous table, claim reserve balances at December 31, 2000 ultimately settled during
2001 for $23.4 million less than the amounts originally estimated, representing 0.3% of medical claim expenses
incurred in 2000. During 2002, claim reserve balances at December 31, 2001 ultimately settled for $12.3 million
more than the amounts originally estimated, representing 0.1% of medical claim expenses incurred in 2001. This
$35.7 million increase in the amounts incurred related to prior years was substantially all attributable to our
TRICARE operations and resulted primarily from enhanced benefits enacted for TRICARE beneficiaries as a
result of Congressional legislation, the impact of which was not fully determinable at December 31, 2001. As
these additional medical expenses were recognized during 2002, we also recognized and received commensurate
revenues from the Department of Defense as a result of change orders.

During 2003, claim reserve balances at December 31, 2002 ultimately settled for $76.1 million less than the
amounts originally estimated, representing 0.8% of medical claim expenses incurred in 2002. This $88.4 million
decline in the amounts incurred related to prior years consists of $68.3 million attributable to our TRICARE
operations with the remaining $20.1 million primarily resulting from fourth quarter 2002 utilization in our
commercial medical products ultimately being lower than originally estimated. The $68.3 million increase in
TRICARE incurred related to prior years resulted from establishing the reserves resulting from the enhanced
benefits for TRICARE beneficiaries as discussed above as well as lower than originally estimated utilization of
medical services by TRICARE beneficiaries in the second half of 2002.

Our TRICARE contracts contain risk-sharing provisions with the Department of Defense and with
subcontractors which effectively limit profits and losses when actual claim experience varies from the medical
claim amounts included in our annual bids. Additionally, other factors impacting medical claim expenses such as
changes in the number of eligible beneficiaries and changes in the level of usage of military treatment facilities
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result in equitable revenue adjustments through the change order and bid price adjustment process. As a result of
the above contract provisions, the impact of changes in estimates for prior year TRICARE medical claims
payable on our results of operations is reduced substantially, whether positive or negative.

7. INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes consisted of the following for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001:

2003 2002 2001
(in thousands)

Current provision (benefit):

Federal ......... ... ... . . ... $ 69,643 $(5,157) $ 527
States and PuertoRico . ...................... 13,888 22,775 9,278
Total current provision . .................. 83,531 17,618 9,805
Deferred provision:
Federal ....... ... ... ... . . .. . . ... ... ... .... 29,025 44,605 50,494
States and PuertoRico ....................... 3,226 4,956 5,610
Total deferred provision .................. 32,251 49,561 56,104
Provision for income taxes . ............... $115,782  $67,179  $65,909

The provision for income taxes was different from the amount computed using the federal statutory rate for
the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 due to the following:

2003 2002 2001
(in thousands)

Income tax provision at federal statutory rate . ....... $120,650 $ 73,477 $ 64,078
States and Puerto Rico income taxes, net of federal

benefit ........ ... .. ... 13,365 10,666 1,225
Tax exempt investment income .. ................. (10,546) (10,460) (14,687)
AmOrtization eXpense . ..............oeuieiranan.. (641) (641) 17,960
Capital loss on sale of workers’ compensation

DUSINESS . ..ttt — — 3,545
Capital loss valuation allowance .................. (9,492) 24,528 (3,545)
Examination settlements ........................ — (32,610) —
Other,net . ... 2,446 2,219 (2,667)

Provision for income taxes .................. $115,782 $ 67,179  $ 65,909

Changes in the capital loss valuation allowance resulted as we reevaluated probable capital gain realization
in the allowable carryforward period given our recent and historical capital gain experience beginning in
2000 and consideration of alternative tax planning strategies. During 2002, the Internal Revenue Service
completed their audit of all open years prior to 2000 which resulted in an adjustment to the estimated accrual for
income taxes.
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Deferred income tax balances reflect the impact of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets or
liabilities and their reported amounts in our consolidated financial statements, and are stated at enacted tax rates
expected to be in effect when the reported amounts are actually recovered or settled. Principal components of our
net deferred tax balances at December 31, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

Assets (Liabilities)

2003 2002
(in thousands)
INVEStMENt SECUTILIES . . v o v vttt e e e e e e e e e e e $(10,765)  $(14,296)
Depreciable property and intangible assets .................... (80,255)  (79,177)
Medical and other expenses payable ......................... 31,780 33,806
Professional liability risks . ............ . ... ... ... .. . ... 12,386 9,941
Compensation, severance, and other accruals .................. 42,720 61,246
Alternative minimum tax credit . ......... .. ... ... — 8,506
Net operating loss carryforwards ............... ... ... .. .... 16,303 18,918
Capital loss carryforward ......... ... .. . .. i, 30,868 42,304
Valuation allowance—capital loss carryforward ................ (26,978) (36,470)
Total net deferred income tax assets ................. $ 16,059 $ 44,778
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets:
Other current assets .. ...........outie ... $ 56,527 $ 59,144
Other long-term liabilities ............... ... .. ... ..... (40,468) (14,366)
Total net deferred income tax assets . ................ $ 16,059 $44,778

At December 31, 2003, we had approximately $41.9 million of net operating losses to carryforward related
to prior acquisitions. These net operating loss carryforwards, if unused to offset future taxable income, will
expire in 2004 through 2019.

At December 31, 2003, we had approximately $79.4 million of capital losses to carryforward, primarily
related to the sale of our workers’ compensation business in 2000. These capital loss carryforwards, if unused to
offset future capital gains, will expire in 2005. A valuation allowance has been established for a portion of these
deferred tax assets.

Based on our historical record of producing taxable income and estimates of future capital gains and

profitability, we have concluded that future operating income and capital gains will be sufficient to give rise to
tax expense and capital gains to recover all deferred tax assets, net of the valuation allowance.
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8. DEBT

Short-term and long-term debt outstanding was as follows at December 31, 2003 and 2002:
2003 2002

(in thousands)

Short-term debt:
Conduit commercial paper financing program ............. $ — $265,000

Long-term debt:
6.30% senior, unsecured notes due 2018, net of unamortized
discount of $838 at December 31,2003 ................ $299,162 $ —
7.25% senior, unsecured notes due 2006, net of unamortized
discount of $376 at December 31, 2003 and $521 at

December 31,2002 . ... .. 299,624 299,479
Fair value of interest rate swap agreements ............... 12,754 34,889
Deferred gain from interest rate swap exchange . ........... 26,175 —

Total SENIOr NOLES . . v v v oo e 637,715 334,368
Other long-term borrowings . .............c.cvuvuvnen... 4,923 5,545
Total long-termdebt ............................. $642,638  $339,913

Senior Notes

In order to term-out our short-term debt and take advantage of historically low interest rates, we issued
$300 million 6.30% senior notes due August 1, 2018 on August 5, 2003. Our net proceeds, reduced for the cost
of the offering, were approximately $295.8 million. The net proceeds were used for general corporate purposes,
including the funding of our short term cash needs.

In order to hedge the risk of changes in the fair value of our $300 million 6.30% senior notes and our
$300 million 7.25% senior notes attributable to fluctuations in interest rates, we entered into interest rate swap
agreements. Interest rate swap agreements, which are considered derivatives, are contracts that exchange interest
payments on a specified principal amount, or notional amount, for a specified period. The interest rate swap
agreements have the same critical terms as our 6.30% senior notes and our 7.25% senior notes. Changes in the
fair value of the 6.30% or 7.25% senior notes and the swap agreements due to changing interest rates are
assumed to offset each other completely, resulting in no impact to earnings from hedge ineffectiveness. Our swap
agreements are recognized in our consolidated balance sheet at fair value with an equal and offsetting adjustment
to the carrying value of our senior notes. The fair value of our interest rate swap agreements are estimated based
on quoted market prices of comparable agreements, and reflect the amounts we would receive (or pay) to
terminate the agreements at the reporting date.

Our interest rate swap agreements exchange the fixed interest rate under our 6.30% and 7.25% senior notes
for a variable interest rate. At December 31, 2003, the variable interest rate was 2.03% for the 6.30% senior notes
and 6.26% for the 7.25% senior notes. The $300 million swap agreements for the 6.30% senior notes mature on
August 1, 2018, and the $300 million swap agreements for the 7.25% senior notes mature on August 1, 2006, and
each has the same critical terms as the related senior notes.

In June 2003, we recorded a deferred gain and received proceeds of $31.6 million in exchange for new swap
agreements discussed above related to our 7.25% senior notes. The corresponding deferred swap gain of

$31.6 million is being amortized to reduce interest expense over the remaining term of the 7.25% senior notes.
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The carrying value of our 7.25% senior notes has been increased $26.2 million by the remaining deferred swap
gain balance at December 31, 2003.

At December 31, 2003, the $12.8 million fair value of our swap agreements is included in other long-term
assets. Likewise, the carrying value of our senior notes has been increased $12.8 million to reflect its fair value.
The counterparties to our swap agreements are major financial institutions with which we also have other
financial relationships.

Credit Agreements

We maintain two unsecured revolving credit agreements consisting of a $265 million, 4-year revolving
credit agreement and a $265 million, 364-day revolving credit agreement with a one-year term-out option. A one-
year term-out option converts the outstanding borrowings, if any, under the credit agreement to a one-year term
loan upon expiration. The 4-year revolving credit agreement expires in October 2005. In October 2003, we
renewed the 364-day revolving credit agreement which expires in October 2004, unless extended.

There were no balances outstanding under either agreement at December 31, 2003 or 2002. Under these
agreements, at our option, we can borrow on either a competitive advance basis or a revolving credit basis. The
revolving credit portion of both agreements bear interest at either a fixed rate or floating rate based on LIBOR
plus a spread. The spread, which varies depending on our credit ratings, ranges from 80 to 125 basis points for
our 4-year agreement, and 85 to 137.5 basis points for our 364-day agreement. We also pay an annual facility fee
regardless of utilization. This facility fee, currently 25 basis points, may fluctuate between 15 and 50 basis
points, depending upon our credit ratings. The competitive advance portion of any borrowings under either credit
agreement will bear interest at market rates prevailing at the time of borrowing on either a fixed rate or a floating
rate basis, at our option.

These credit agreements, and the agreement relating to the conduit commercial paper program described
below, contain customary restrictive and financial covenants as well as customary events of default, including
financial covenants regarding the maintenance of net worth, minimum interest coverage, and maximum leverage
ratios. At December 31, 2003, we were in compliance with all applicable financial covenant requirements. The
terms of each of these credit agreements also include standard provisions related to conditions of borrowing,
including a customary material adverse effect clause which could limit our ability to borrow. We have not
experienced a material adverse effect and we know of no circumstances or events which would be reasonably
likely to result in a material adverse effect. We do not believe the material adverse effect clause poses a material
funding risk to Humana in the future.

Commercial Paper Programs

We maintain indirect access to the commercial paper market through our conduit commercial paper
financing program. Under this program, a third party issues commercial paper and loans the proceeds of those
issuances to us so that the interest and principal payments on the loans match those on the underlying commercial
paper. The $265 million, 364-day revolving credit agreement supports the conduit commercial paper financing
program of up to $265 million.

We also maintain and may issue short-term debt securities under a commercial paper program when market
conditions allow. The program is backed by our credit agreements described above. Under the terms of our credit
agreements, aggregate borrowings under both the credit agreements and commercial paper program cannot
exceed $530 million.
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At December 31, 2003, we had no direct or indirect (conduit) commercial paper borrowings outstanding.

Other Borrowings

Other borrowings of $4.9 million at December 31, 2003 and $5.5 million at December 31, 2002 represent
financing for the renovation of a building, bear interest at 2% per annum, are collateralized by the building, and
are payable in various installments through 2014.

Shelf Registration

On April 1, 2003, our universal shelf registration became effective with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. This allows us to register debt or equity securities, from time to time, with the amount, price and
terms to be determined at the time of the sale. After the issuance of our $300 million, 6.30% senior notes in
August 2003, we have up to $300 million remaining from a total of $600 million under the universal shelf
registration. The universal shelf registration allows us to use the net proceeds from any future sales of our
securities for our operations and for other general corporate purposes, including repayment or refinancing of
borrowings, working capital, capital expenditures, investments, acquisitions, or the repurchase of our outstanding
securities.

9. PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY RISKS

Activity in the reserve for professional liability risks was as follows for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001:

2003 2002 2001
(in thousands)

Gross reserve atJanuary 1 ....... ... oot $ 262,763 $ 301,518 $ 297,699

Less recoverables from insurance ......................c...... (142,595) (186,973) (170,774)
Netreserve atJanuary 1 . ... ... i 120,168 114,545 126,925
Incurred related to:

CUITENE YEAT . o . v ottt ettt e e e e e e 48,778 39,332 24,819

Prioryears . ........ ... — (15,868) (12,550)
Total incurred . ... ... 48,778 23,464 12,269
Paid related to:

CUITENE YEAT . o . v vttt e ettt e e e e et e (1,356) (659) (654)

Prior years .. ........i.iii (20,082) (17,182) (23,995)
Total paid . ... ..o (21,438) (17,841) (24,649)
Netreserve at December 31 ... ... 147,508 120,168 114,545

Plus recoverables from insurance . . ... 95,008 142,595 186,973
Gross reserve at December 31 . ... ... $ 242,516 $ 262,763 $ 301,518

While our total net estimate of incurred claims for prior years did not change during 2003, the individual
components of this liability did fluctuate. Favorable development associated with our professional and general
liability exposures was completely offset by the need for additional reserves for our director and officer errors
and omissions risks. Changes in estimates of incurred claims for prior years recognized in each of the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 were attributable to favorable loss development, primarily related to medical
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malpractice exposures. Since January 1, 2002, we have reduced the amount of coverage purchased from third
party insurance carriers, causing an increase in the provision for professional liability risks and a decrease in the
estimated recoverables from insurance. The total cost associated with our professional liabilities, including the
cost of purchasing insurance coverage from a number of third party insurance companies not included in the
table above, totaled $52.5 million in 2003, $33.6 million in 2002 and $31.4 million in 2001.

Amounts classified as current and non-current and their respective location in the consolidated balance
sheets were as follows at December 31, 2003 and 2002:

2003 2002
(in thousands)

Gross reserve included in:

Trade accounts payable and accrued expenses (current) ......... $ 49,594 $ 53,461
Other long-term liabilities (non-current) . ... .................. 192,922 209,302
Total EroSS TESETVE . . oot v ettt e e 242,516 262,763

Recoverables from insurance included in:
Other current assets (CUITent) . ...............oueuuiinrann . 25,248 34,290
Other assets (NON-CUITENT) . . ... ......outireieae e, 69,760 108,305
Total recoverables from insurance ...................... 95,008 142,595
Total net reServe ... ... $147,508  $120,168

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Employee Savings Plan

We have defined contribution retirement and savings plans covering eligible employees. Our contribution to
these plans is based on various percentages of compensation, and in some instances, on the amount of our
employees’ contributions to the plans. The cost of these plans amounted to approximately $37.9 million in 2003,
$34.8 million in 2002, and $30.2 million in 2001, all of which was funded currently to the extent it currently was
deductible for federal income tax purposes. Based on the year end closing stock price of $22.85, approximately
25% of the retirement and savings plan’s assets were invested in our common stock representing less than 5% of
the shares outstanding as of December 31, 2003. The Company match is invested in the Humana common stock
fund. However, a participant may reinvest any funds, including the Company match, in any other plan investment
option at any time.

Severance Benefits

We provide severance and related employee benefits based upon our existing employee benefit plans and
policies. Severance benefits are generally determined based on years of service and salary. We accrue severance
benefits when payment is probable and reasonably estimable in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 112, Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefits. The cost of this benefit
amounted to approximately $11.2 million in 2003, $40.2 million in 2002 and $4.2 million in 2001. Severance is
paid bi-weekly resulting in payments in periods subsequent to termination. Severance costs for 2002 included a
$32.1 million provision in connection with our decision to consolidate our customer service centers and our
enterprise-wide workforce reduction plan. The 2002 plan affected approximately 2,600 positions throughout the
entire organization, including customer service, claim administration, clinical operations, provider network
administration, as well as other corporate and field-based positions. We continually review estimates of future
payments for probable severance benefits and make necessary adjustments to our liability for severance benefits.
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Stock Based Compensation
We have plans under which restricted stock awards and options to purchase our common stock have been

granted to officers, directors, key employees and consultants.

Activity for our restricted stock awards was as follows for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001:

2003 2002 2001

Balance, January 1, ................. ... ..... 4,131,726 4,733,000 5,047,500

Granted—treasury issuance ................. — — 125,000

Granted—original issuance ................. — — 30,000

Total granted . .......... ... .. .. ... ..... — — 155,000
Vested ... (3,904,382)  (270,000) (6,000)
Forfeited .......... ... ... ... . ... . .. ... ... (72,344)  (331,274)  (463,500)

Balance, December 31, ...................... 155,000 4,131,726 4,733,000

Restricted stock awards generally vest three years from the date of grant. Unearned compensation under the
restricted stock award plans is amortized over the vesting periods. Compensation expense recognized related to
our restricted stock award plans was $5.8 million in 2003, $9.0 million in 2002, and $9.5 million in 2001. The
decrease in compensation expense in 2003 was due to the August 7, 2003 vesting of 3.9 million shares of
restricted stock.

Options are granted at the average market price on the date of grant. Exercise provisions vary, but most
options vest in whole or in part 1 to 5 years after grant and expire 10 years after grant. At December 31, 2003,
there were 17,710,572 shares reserved for employee and director stock option plans, including 8,016,595 shares
of common stock available for future grants. As of February 24, 2004, a total of 2,540,114 additional options and
awards were granted.

Activity for our option plans was as follows for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Weighted
Shares Average
Under Exercise Price Per Exercise
Option Share Price
Balance, January 1,2001 ......... ... ... ... ... .. ..., 11,390,017 $ 6.41 to $26.94 $13.41
Granted . ... 935,500 937 to 14.94 11.30
Exercised . ...... .. (236,878) 6.50 to 9.59 7.66
Canceledorlapsed ........... .. . .. (1,630,691) 650 to 2344 16.71
Balance, December 31,2001 . ....... ... .. . . . . ... ... 10,457,948 641 to 2694 12.84
Granted . ......... . ... . 1,588,000 11.55 to 15.40 12.99
Exercised ... ...... .. .. . . . (973,647) 6.50 to 15.59 8.76
Canceled orlapsed ........... .. . il (545,430) 6.50 to 20.16 15.36
Balance, December 31,2002 . ......... .. . ... ... 10,526,871 641 to 2694 13.11
Granted . ... 2,500,000 926 to 19.73 11.51
Exercised . . ... (2,646,578) 641 to 20.16 10.59
Canceled orlapsed .......... .. .. .. .. ... (686,316) 6.50 to 23.06 15.47
Balance, December 31,2003 ... ..o 9,693,977 $ 650 to $26.94 $13.22




Humana Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

A summary of our stock options outstanding and exercisable was as follows at December 31, 2003:
Stock Options Outstanding

Stock Options Exercisable

Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Exercise Average Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Shares Contractual Life Price Shares Price
$6.50 to $ 9.59 3,591,281 7.65 Years $ 8.69 1,682,533 $ 8.08
9.62 to 15.63 4,228,688 5.16 Years 14.26 2,957,256 14.98
16.46 to 20.16 1,736,208 6.25 Years 19.26 1,191,208 19.21
21.25 to 26.94 137,800 2.64 Years 22.98 137,800 22.98
$6.50 to $26.94 9,693,977 6.24 Years $13.22 5,968,797 $14.06

At December 31, 2002, there were 7,905,414 options exercisable with a weighted average exercise price

of $13.54.

Compensation expense related to variable-based stock option awards and to modifications to fixed-based
stock option awards was not material for 2003, 2002, and 2001. The effects on net income and earnings per share
if we had applied the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, to our fixed-based stock option awards is included in Note 2.

The weighted average fair value of each option granted during 2003, 2002 and 2001 is provided below. The
fair value was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes pricing model with the following weighted
average assumptions for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Weighted average fair value at grantdate . ..........

Dividend yield
Expected volatility

Risk-free interest rate

Expected option life (years)

11. EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE COMPUTATION

Detail supporting the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share was as follows for the
years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Net income available for common stockholders . . ...

Weighted average outstanding shares of common
stock used to compute basic earnings per

common share

Dilutive effect of:

Employee stock options
Restricted stock awards

Shares used to compute diluted earnings per

common share

Basic earnings per common share . . ..

Diluted earnings per common share . . .

2003 2002 2001

2003

$533 $626 $553

None None None
45% 449%  44.7%
3.4% 4.9% 4.9%

6.5 5.6 54

2002 2001

(in thousands, except per share results)

$228,934  $142,755  $117,171
158,968 163,489 164,071
1,240 999 811
1,752 3,313 2,426
161,960 167,801 167,308
$ 14 $ 08 $ 071
$ 141 $ 08 § 0.70
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Stock options to purchase 4,209,266 shares in 2003, 5,050,396 shares in 2002, and 5,993,473 shares
in 2001, were not dilutive and, therefore, were not included in the computations of diluted earnings per
common share.

12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Stock Repurchase Plan

For the year ended December 31, 2003, we acquired 3.7 million of our common shares at an aggregate cost
of $44.1 million, or an average of $12.03 per share. Of these shares, 1.4 million were acquired in connection with
employee stock plans at an aggregate cost of $23.3 million, or an average of $16.27 per share, and the remaining
2.3 million shares were acquired in open market transactions at an aggregate cost of $20.8 million, or an average
of $9.31 per share. In July 2003, the Board of Directors authorized an additional use of up to $100 million
for the repurchase of our common shares exclusive of shares repurchased in connection with employee stock
plans. The shares may be purchased from time to time at prevailing prices in the open market or in privately
negotiated transactions. As of February 24, 2004, $94.2 million of the July 2003 authorization remains available
for share repurchases.

Stockholders’ Rights Plan

We have a stockholders’ rights plan designed to deter takeover initiatives not considered to be in the best
interests of our stockholders. The rights are redeemable by action of the Board of Directors at a price of $0.01 per
right at any time prior to their becoming exercisable. Pursuant to the plan, under certain conditions, each share of
stock has a right to acquire 1/100th of a share of Series A Participating Preferred Stock at a price of $145 per
share. This plan expires in 2006.

Regulatory Requirements

Certain of our subsidiaries operate in states that regulate the payment of dividends, loans or other cash
transfers to Humana Inc., our parent company, require minimum levels of equity, and limit investments to
approved securities. The amount of dividends that may be paid to Humana Inc. by these subsidiaries, without
prior approval by state regulatory authorities, is limited based on the entity’s level of statutory income and
statutory capital and surplus. In most states, prior notification is provided before paying a dividend even if
approval is not required.

As of December 31, 2003, we maintained aggregate statutory capital and surplus of $1,086.5 million in our
state regulated health insurance subsidiaries. Each of these subsidiaries was in compliance with applicable
statutory requirements which aggregated $640.4 million. Although the minimum required levels of equity are
largely based on premium volume, product mix, and the quality of assets held, minimum requirements can vary
significantly at the state level. Certain states rely on risk-based capital requirements, or RBC, to define the
required levels of equity. RBC is a model developed by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners to
monitor an entity’s solvency. This calculation indicates recommended minimum levels of required capital and
surplus and signals regulatory measures should actual surplus fall below these recommended levels. If RBC were
adopted by all states at December 31, 2003, each of our subsidiaries would be in compliance and we would have
$381.9 million of aggregate capital and surplus above any of the levels that require corrective action under RBC.

One TRICARE subsidiary under the Regions 3 and 4 contract with the Department of Defense is required to
maintain current assets at least equivalent to its current liabilities. We were in compliance with this requirement

at December 31, 2003.
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13. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases

We lease facilities, computer hardware, and other equipment under long-term operating leases that are
noncancelable and expire on various dates through 2017. We sublease facilities or partial facilities to third party
tenants for space not used in our operations. Rent expense and sublease rental income for all operating leases was
as follows for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001:

2003 2002 2001
(in thousands)
Rentexpense ..............iiiiiniininennnn.. $ 70,815 $81,292 $ 80,124
Sublease rental income .. ........... ... . ... ... (12,007) (14,417) (16,035)
Netrent eXpense . .. ...ovvveineeunnennnn .. $ 58,808 $ 66,875 $ 64,089

Future annual minimum payments due subsequent to December 31, 2003 under all of our noncancelable
operating leases with initial terms in excess of one year are as follows:

Minimum Sublease
Lease Rental Net Lease
Payments Receipts Commitments

(in thousands)
For the years ending December 31:

2004 .. $ 63,392 $ (3,835) $ 59,557
2005 . 54,403 (3,443) 50,960
2000 ... 38,667 (2,521) 36,146
2007 31,643 (2,264) 29,379
2008 L 23,326 (863) 22,463
Thereafter ......... ... ... . .. ... 45,791 — 45,791

Total ........ .. ... ... .. ... $257,222  $(12,926) $244,296

Indemnifications and Guarantees

Our 5-year and 7-year airplane operating leases provide for a residual value payment of no more than
$9.2 million at the end of the lease terms, which expire December 29, 2004 for the 5-year lease and January 1,
2010 for the 7-year lease. We have the right to exercise a purchase option with respect to the leased airplanes or
the airplanes can be sold to a third party. If we decide not to exercise our purchase option at the end of the lease,
we must pay the lessor a maximum amount of $4.4 million related to the 5-year lease and $4.8 million related to
the 7-year lease. The amount will be reduced by the net sales proceeds of the airplanes to a third party. After
considering the current fair value of the airplanes, we recorded a $1.5 million provision during 2003 for the
exposure from the residual value guarantee. During 2003, we terminated two 5-year airplane leases early. The
impact of these transactions was not material.

Through indemnity agreements approved by the state regulatory authorities, certain of our regulated
subsidiaries generally are guaranteed by Humana Inc., our parent company, in the event of insolvency for
(1), member coverage for which premium payment has been made prior to insolvency; (2), benefits for members
then hospitalized until discharged; and (3), payment to providers for services rendered prior to insolvency. Our
parent also has guaranteed the obligations of our TRICARE subsidiaries.

In the ordinary course of business, we enter into contractual arrangements under which we may agree to
indemnify a third party to such arrangement from any losses incurred relating to the services they perform on
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behalf of us, or for losses arising from certain events as defined within the particular contract, which may
include, for example, litigation or claims relating to past performance. Such indemnification obligations may
not be subject to maximum loss clauses. Historically, payments made related to these indemnifications have
been immaterial.

Government Contracts

Our MedicareAdvantage contracts with the federal government are renewed for a one-year term each
December 31 unless notice of termination is received at least 90 days prior thereto. In December 2003, the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act, or DIMA, was signed into law. DIMA
includes provisions that require the 2004 stabilization funding to be directed toward increased reimbursement for
providers, increased benefits or access for members, or decreased member premiums. We believe DIMA will
open new opportunities for us. However, we do not believe that the benefit to our 2004 financial position, results
of operations, or cash flows will be material.

Our current TRICARE contract with the Department of Defense will be in effect until April 30, 2004 for
Regions 2 and 5 and until June 30, 2004 for Regions 3 and 4. Each of the contracts is subject to a one-year
renewal at the Government’s option. We believe these contracts will continue until the TRICARE transition
described below.

On August 21, 2003, the Department of Defense notified us that we were awarded the contract for the South
Region, one of three newly-created regions under the government’s revised TRICARE Program. The current
TRICARE Regions 3 and 4 will become part of the new South Region along with Region 6, which is currently
administered by another contractor. The current Regions 2 and 5 will become part of the North Region, which
was awarded to another contractor.

Pursuant to the Department of Defense’s bid process, each of the three awards was subject to protests by
unsuccessful bidders of prime contracts, however, none of the protests were successful.

Under the Department of Defense’s current schedule for implementation of the new TRICARE contracts,
Regions 2 and 5 will transition to the new North Region for the start of healthcare delivery on July 1, 2004.
Regions 3 and 4 will become part of the new South Region for the start of healthcare delivery on August 1, 2004
and Region 6 will become part of our new South Region for the start of healthcare delivery on November 1,
2004.

In addition, retail pharmacy benefits for TRICARE beneficiaries will be administered separately under
the new Department of Defense TRICARE Retail Pharmacy Program. On September 26, 2003, we were
notified that we were not awarded the retail pharmacy contract and, later, that our protest of this award decision
was not upheld.

We currently have Medicaid contracts with the Puerto Rico Health Insurance Administration through
June 30, 2005, subject to each party agreeing upon annual rates. In July 2003, we signed amendments to the
Puerto Rico Medicaid contracts regarding a premium rate increase for the annual period ending June 30, 2004.
Our other Medicaid contracts are in Florida and Illinois, and are annual contracts. As of December 31, 2003,
Puerto Rico accounted for approximately 84% of our total Medicaid membership.

Other than as described herein, the loss of any of our existing or pending government contracts or
significant changes in these programs as a result of legislative action, including reductions in premium payments
to us, or increases in member benefits without corresponding increases in premium payments to us, may have a
material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations, and cash flows.

86



Humana Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Legal Proceedings
Securities Litigation

In late 1997, three purported class action complaints were filed in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of Florida by former stockholders of Physician Corporation of America, or PCA, against PCA
and certain of its former directors and officers. We acquired PCA by a merger that became effective on
September 8, 1997. The three actions were consolidated into a single action entitled /n re Physician Corporation
of America Securities Litigation. The consolidated complaint alleged that PCA and the individual defendants
knowingly or recklessly made false and misleading statements in press releases and public filings with respect to
the financial and regulatory difficulties of PCA’s workers’ compensation business. The Court certified a class on
May 20, 2003. On August 25, 2003, the parties entered into an agreement to settle the case for the amount of
$10.2 million. On November 26, 2003, the settlement received final approval by the Court. A provision for the
settlement was previously made in our financial statements during the fourth quarter of 2002. The Company had
pursued insurance coverage for this matter from two insurers and has settled the matter with one of the insurers
who will pursue coverage against the other insurer.

Managed Care Industry Purported Class Action Litigation

We have been involved in several purported class action lawsuits that are part of a wave of generally similar
actions that target the health care payer industry and particularly target managed care companies. These include a
lawsuit against us and nine of our competitors that purports to be brought on behalf of physicians who have
treated our members. As a result of action by the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation (“JPML”), the case
was consolidated in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida, and has been styled In re
Managed Care Litigation.

The plaintiffs assert that we and other defendants improperly paid providers’ claims and “downcoded” their
claims by paying lesser amounts than they submitted. The complaint alleges, among other things, multiple
violations under the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act, or RICO, as well as various breaches
of contract and violations of regulations governing the timeliness of claim payments. We moved to dismiss the
complaint on September 8, 2000, and the other defendants filed similar motions thereafter. On March 2, 2001,
the Court dismissed certain of the plaintiffs’ claims pursuant to the defendants’ several motions to dismiss.
However, the Court allowed the plaintiffs to attempt to correct the deficiencies in their complaint with an
amended pleading with respect to all of the allegations except a claim under the federal Medicare regulations,
which was dismissed with prejudice. The Court also left undisturbed the plaintiffs’ claims for breach of contract.
On March 26, 2001, the plaintiffs filed their amended complaint, which, among other things, added four state or
county medical associations as additional plaintiffs. Two of those, the Denton County Medical Society and the
Texas Medical Association, purport to bring their actions against us, as well as against several other defendant
companies. The Medical Association of Georgia and the California Medical Association purport to bring their
actions against various other defendant companies. The associations seek injunctive relief only. The defendants
filed a motion to dismiss the amended complaint on April 30, 2001.

On September 26, 2002, the Court granted the plaintiffs’ request to file a second amended complaint, adding
additional plaintiffs, including the Florida Medical Association, which purports to bring its action against all
defendants. On October 21, 2002, the defendants moved to dismiss the second amended complaint. On
December 8, 2003, the Court denied the motion.

Also on September 26, 2002, the Court certified a global class consisting of all medical doctors who
provided services to any person insured by any defendant from August 4, 1990, to September 26, 2002. The class
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includes two subclasses. A national subclass consists of medical doctors who provided services to any person
insured by a defendant when the doctor has a claim against such defendant and is not required to arbitrate that
claim. A California subclass consists of medical doctors who provided services to any person insured in
California by any defendant when the doctor was not bound to arbitrate the claim.

On October 10, 2002, the defendants asked the Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit to review the class
certification decision. On November 20, 2002, the Court of Appeals agreed to review the class issue. The
appellate court heard oral argument on September 11, 2003, but no ruling has been issued. Discovery is ongoing,
and the Court has set a trial date of September 13, 2004. Also, on January 15, 2004, the Court filed a notice with
the JPML that will permit the JPML to decide whether the case should remain in Miami, Florida for trial or be
separately remanded for trial to the courts in which the actions were filed prior to their transfer to and
consolidation in Miami, Florida. In the case of the Company, that would be the United States District Court for
the Western District of Kentucky. In the meantime, two of the defendants, Aetna Inc. and Cigna Corporation,
have entered into settlement agreements which have been approved by the Court.

We intend to continue to defend this action vigorously.

Other

The Academy of Medicine of Cincinnati, the Butler County Medical Society, the Northern Kentucky
Medical Society, and several physicians filed antitrust suits in state courts in Ohio and Kentucky against Aetna
Health, Inc., Humana Health Plan of Ohio, Inc., Anthem Blue Cross Blue Shield, and United Healthcare of Ohio,
Inc., alleging that the defendants violated the Ohio and Kentucky antitrust laws by conspiring to fix the
reimbursement rates paid to physicians in the Greater Cincinnati and Northern Kentucky region. Each suit sought
class certification, damages and injunctive relief. Plaintiffs cited no evidence that any such conspiracy existed,
but based their allegations on assertions that physicians in the Greater Cincinnati region are paid less than
physicians in other major cities in Ohio and Kentucky.

On October 23, 2003, we entered into a settlement agreement with the plaintiffs that specified an increase in
future reimbursement we pay to a class consisting of physicians in a 12-county area in Southern Ohio and
Northern Kentucky over the next three years. We agreed to increase the reimbursement, in the aggregate, subject
to certain contingencies, that will increase the amounts paid for physician services over the amounts paid in 2003
as follows: $20 million in 2004, an additional $15 million in 2005 and an additional $10 million in 2006. The
agreement also provides for a committee to monitor our contracting practices for the period 2007 through 2010,
with reporting to us if any anticompetitive behavior is believed to have occurred. The agreement was approved
by the courts on December 30, 2003.

Government Audits and Other Litigation and Proceedings

In July 2000, the Office of the Florida Attorney General initiated an investigation, apparently relating to
some of the same matters that are involved in the managed care industry purported class action litigation
described above. On September 21, 2001, the Texas Attorney General initiated a similar investigation. No actions
have been filed against us by either state. These investigations are ongoing, and we have cooperated with the
regulators in both states.

On May 31, 2000, we entered into a five-year Corporate Integrity Agreement, or CIA, with the Office of
Inspector General, or OIG, of the Department of Health and Human Services. Under the CIA, we are obligated
to, among other things, provide training, conduct periodic audits and make periodic reports to the OIG.

88



Humana Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

In addition, our business practices are subject to review by various state insurance and health care regulatory
authorities and federal regulatory authorities. There has been increased scrutiny by these regulators of the
managed health care companies’ business practices, including claims payment practices and utilization
management practices. We have been and continue to be subject to such reviews. Some of these have resulted in
fines and could require changes in some of our practices and could also result in additional fines or other
sanctions.

We also are involved in other lawsuits that arise in the ordinary course of our business operations, including
claims of medical malpractice, bad faith, nonacceptance or termination of providers, failure to disclose network
discounts, and various other provider arrangements, as well as challenges to subrogation practices. We also are
subject to claims relating to performance of contractual obligations to providers, members, and others, including
failure to properly pay claims and challenges to the use of certain software products in processing claims.
Pending state and federal legislative activity may increase our exposure for any of these types of claims.

In addition, several courts, including several federal appellate courts, recently have issued decisions which
have the effect of eroding the scope of ERISA preemption for employer-sponsored health plans, thereby
exposing us to greater liability for medical negligence claims. This includes decisions which hold that plans may
be liable for medical negligence claims in some situations based solely on medical necessity decisions made in
the course of adjudicating claims. In addition, some courts have issued rulings which make it easier to hold plans
liable for medical negligence on the part of network providers on the theory that providers are agents of the plans
and that the plans are therefore vicariously liable for the injuries to members by providers.

Personal injury claims and claims for extracontractual damages arising from medical benefit denials are
covered by insurance from our wholly owned captive insurance subsidiary and excess carriers, except to the
extent that claimants seek punitive damages, which may not be covered by insurance in certain states in which
insurance coverage for punitive damages is not permitted. In addition, insurance coverage for all or certain forms
of liability has become increasingly costly and may become unavailable or prohibitively expensive in the future.
On January 1, 2002 and again on January 1, 2003, we reduced the amount of coverage purchased from third party
insurance carriers and increased the amount of risk we retain due to substantially higher insurance rates.

We do not believe that any pending or threatened legal actions against us or any pending or threatened audits
or investigations by state or federal regulatory agencies will have a material adverse effect on our financial
position, results of operations, or cash flows. However, the likelihood or outcome of current or future suits, like
the purported class action lawsuits described above, or governmental investigations, cannot be accurately
predicted with certainty. In addition, the potential for increased liability for medical negligence arising from
claims adjudication, along with the increased litigation that has accompanied the negative publicity and public
perception of our industry, adds to this uncertainty. Therefore, such legal actions and government audits and
investigations could have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations, and cash flows.

14. ACQUISITION

On May 31, 2001, we acquired the outstanding shares of common stock of a newly-formed Anthem Health
Insurance Company subsidiary responsible for administering TRICARE benefits in Regions 2 and 5 for
$43.5 million in cash, net of direct transaction costs. We accounted for this acquisition under the purchase
method of accounting and accordingly, our consolidated results of operations include the results of the acquired
business from the date of acquisition. We allocated the purchase price to net tangible and other intangible assets
based upon fair value. Any remaining value not assigned to net tangible or other intangible assets was then
allocated to goodwill. Other intangible assets of $11.8 million relate to the acquired government contract and
were amortized over the contract’s life assuming no extension, or approximately 2 years. Goodwill recorded in
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connection with the acquisition was $32.9 million. Unaudited pro forma results of operations information have
not been presented because the effect of the acquisition was not significant to our results of operations or
financial position.

15. SEGMENT INFORMATION

We manage our business with two segments: Commercial and Government. The Commercial segment
consists of members enrolled in products marketed to employer groups and individuals, and includes three lines
of business: fully insured medical, administrative services only, or ASO, and specialty. The Government segment
consists of members enrolled in government-sponsored programs, and includes three lines of business:
Medicare+Choice, Medicaid, and TRICARE. We identified our segments in accordance with the aggregation
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, Disclosures About Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information which is consistent with information used by our Chief Executive Officer in
managing our business. The segment information aggregates products with similar economic characteristics.
These characteristics include the nature of customer groups and pricing, benefits and underwriting requirements.

The accounting policies of each segment are the same and are described in Note 2. The results of each
segment are measured by income before income taxes. We allocate all selling, general and administrative
expenses, investment and other income, interest expense, and goodwill, but no other assets or liabilities, to our
segments. Members served by our two segments generally utilize the same medical provider networks, enabling
us to obtain more favorable contract terms with providers. Our segments also share overhead costs and assets. As
a result, the profitability of each segment is interdependent.

Our segment results were as follows for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001:

Commercial Segment
2003 2002 2001

(in thousands)

Revenues:
Premiums:
Fully insured:
HMO .. e $2,871,697 $2,610,926 $2,165,031
PPO ... 3,369,109 2,888,107 2,776,857
Total fully insured ........................... 6,240,806 5,499,033 4,941,888
Specialty . ... 320,206 337,295 304,714
Total premiums . ... 6,561,012 5,836,328 5,246,602
Administrative services fees .. .......... . . 122,846 103,203 84,204
Investment and otherincome ............ ... .. .. ... ... 106,513 67,947 75,846
Totalrevenues . .............oiiiiinn. .. 6,790,371 6,007,478 5,406,652
Operating expenses:
Medical . ... .. 5,440,414 4,871,792 4,358,488
Selling, general and administrative . ......................... 1,131,843 1,066,216 936,539
Depreciation and amortization .............. ..., 82,948 71,243 97,964
Total operating eXpenses . .. ................... 6,655,205 6,009,251 5,392,991
Income (loss) from operations . .............. ..o, 135,166 (1,773) 13,661
INEEIESt EXPEISE - . . o v vttt e e et 14,156 13,401 15,674
Income (loss) before income taxes ...............ccovuiinninn.... $ 121,010 $ (15,174) $ (2,013)
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Government Segment
2003 2002 2001
(in thousands)

Revenues:
Premiums:
Medicare+ChoiCe ... ... ...t $2,527,446  $2,629,597 $2,909,478
TRICARE . ... 2,249,725 2,001,474 1,341,557
Medicaid . ...... ... .. 487,100 462,998 441,324
Total premiums . .......vu it 5,264,271 5,094,069 4,692,359
Administrative services fees .. .......... . . . 148,830 141,193 52,886
Investment and otherincome . ............................. 22,839 18,441 42,989
Total reVenues . ...t 5,435,940 5,253,703 4,788,234
Operating expenses:
Medical . ... .. 4,439,007 4,266,404 3,921,356
Selling, general and administrative . ......................... 726,185 708,853 608,590
Depreciation and amortization ............. ... ... .. ... 43,831 49,487 63,567
Total operating eXpenses . .. .. .....veerenenennenn. 5,209,023 5,024,744 4,593,513
Income from operations . ................iuiiiiiiiii 226,917 228,959 194,721
Interest EXpense . . . ...t 3,211 3,851 9,628
Income before iNCOME taXes .. ... vttt $ 223,706 $ 225,108 $ 185,093

Premium and administrative services revenues derived from our contracts with the federal government, as
a percentage of our total premium and ASO revenues, were approximately 42% for 2003 and 44% for 2002
and 2001.

16. REINSURANCE

Certain old blocks of run-off insurance assumed in acquisitions, primarily life insurance and annuities, are
subject to 100% coinsurance agreements where the entire risk and all administrative functions, including
premium collections and claim payments, related to these policies has been ceded to a third-party. Coinsurance is
a form of reinsurance. We acquired these policies and the related reinsurance agreements with the purchase of the
stock of the companies in which the policies were originally written. We acquired these companies for business
reasons unrelated to these policies, including the companies’ licenses necessary to fulfill strategic plans.

A reinsurance agreement between two entities transfers the underwriting risk of policyholder liabilities to a
reinsurer; while the primary insurer retains the contractual relationship with the ultimate insured. As such, these
reinsurance agreements do not completely relieve us of our potential liability to the ultimate insured. However,
given the transfer of underwriting risk, our potential liability is limited to the credit exposure which exists should
the reinsurer be unable to meet their obligations assumed under these reinsurance agreements.

Given that all policies are 100% reinsured by third parties, the following amounts pertaining to the
reinsurance agreements had no effect on our results of operations. Premiums ceded were $45.3 million in 2003,
$59.3 million in 2002, and $70.8 million in 2001. Liabilities, included in “Other long-term liabilities,” and
related reinsurance recoverables, included in “Other long-term assets,” in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets under these coinsurance agreements were $272.1 million at December 31, 2003 and $279.9 million at
December 31, 2002.
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We evaluate the financial condition of these reinsurers on a regular basis. These reinsurers are well-known
and well-established, as evidenced by the strong financial ratings at December 31, 2003 presented below:

Total
Reinsurer Recoverable Rating (a)
(in thousands)
Protective Life Insurance Company ............. $234,123 A+ (superior)
Allothers ....... ... .. 37,964 A to A— (excellent)
$272,087

(a) Ratings are published by A.M. Best Company Inc.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Humana Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
income, of stockholders’ equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Humana Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the
financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) on page 99 presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated
financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the
Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial
statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company ceased amortizing goodwill

effective January 1, 2002.

/s/  PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
February 24, 2004
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A summary of our quarterly unaudited results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002 follows:

2003
First(a) Second(b) Third Fourth
(in thousands, except per share results)
Total TEeVENUES . . ... oot $2,931,716  $3,029,958 $3,111,765 $3,152,872
Income before income taxes ...............oiiun... 47,402 104,190 93,412 99,712
NetinCome . ......ouiiutii it e 31,230 69,276 62,119 66,309
Basic earnings per common share . ................... 0.20 0.44 0.39 0.41
Diluted earnings per common share .................. 0.19 0.43 0.38 0.41
2002
First Second Third Fourth(c)
(in thousands, except per share results)
TOtal TEVENUES . . . . oo e e e e e e e e e e $2,732,582 $2,831,940 $2,841,627 $2,855,032
Income (loss) before income taxes ................... 68,779 66,705 76,957 (2,507)
Netincome (10SS) . ...... ..., 46,770 45,359 52,331 (1,705)
Basic earnings (loss) per common share . .............. 0.28 0.28 0.32 (0.01)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share ............. 0.28 0.27 0.31 (0.01)

(a) Includes expenses of $30.8 million pretax ($18.8 million after tax, or $0.12 per diluted share) for the
writedown of building and equipment and software abandonment expenses due to the elimination of three
customer service centers. See Note 4 for the impact on the individual expense categories.

(b) Includes a gain on the sale of a venture capital investment of $15.2 million ($10.1 million after tax, or
$0.06 per diluted share), included in investment and other income.

(c) Includes expenses of $85.6 million pretax ($58.2 million after tax, or $0.35 per diluted share) for severance
and facility costs related to reducing our administrative cost structure with the elimination of three customer
service centers and an enterprise-wide workforce reduction, reserves for liabilities related to a previous
acquisition, and the impairment in the fair value of certain private debt and equity investments. Of the total
amount, $66.0 million was included in administrative expense and $19.6 million was included in investment
and other income.

94



ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9a. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive
Officer, or CEO and Chief Financial Officer, or CFO, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures including our internal controls over financial reporting for the quarter ended
December 31, 2003.

The Company’s management, including the CEO and CFO, does not expect that our disclosure controls and
procedures including our internal controls over financial reporting will prevent all error and all fraud. However,
they have been designed to give reasonable assurance about the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures including our internal controls over financial reporting. A control system, no
matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives
of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource
constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Control system limitations
include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of
simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by
collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control. The design of any system of controls
also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events. Over time, controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Based on this evaluation, our CEO and CFO concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures
including our internal controls over financial reporting are effective in timely alerting them to material
information required to be included in our periodic SEC reports. There have been no significant changes in our
internal controls over financial reporting or in other factors that are reasonably likely to affect those controls over
financial reporting during the Company’s quarter ended December 31, 2003.

In this regard, our CEO and CFO have signed the certifications required by Sections 302 and 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act. These certifications are filed as Exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Additionally, our CEO will sign the certificate as to compliance with the Corporate Governance Listing
Standards adopted by the New York Stock Exchange.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Directors

The information required by this Item is herein incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statement for the

Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held on April 22, 2004 appearing under the captions “Election
of Directors” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” of such Proxy Statement.

Executive Officers

Set forth below are names and ages of all of our current executive officers as of March 1, 2004, their

positions, and the date first elected an officer:

First
Elected
Name % Position Officer
Michael B. McCallister . . . .. 51 President and Chief Executive Officer 09/89(1)
James E. Murray .......... 50  Chief Operating Officer—Market and Business Segment 08/90(2)
Operations
John M. Bertko ........... 54 Vice President—Chief Actuary 03/00(3)
James H. Bloem .......... 53  Senior Vice President—Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer  02/01(4)
Bruce J. Goodman ........ 62  Senior Vice President—Chief Service and Information Officer  04/99(5)
Bonita C. Hathcock . ....... 55 Senior Vice President—Chief Human Resources Officer 05/99(6)
Arthur P. Hipwell ......... 55 Senior Vice President—General Counsel 08/90(7)
Thomas J. Liston . ......... 42  Senior Vice President—Strategy and Corporate Development ~ 01/97(8)
Jonathan T. Lord, M.D. .... 49 Senior Vice President—Chief Innovation Officer 04/00(9)
Heidi S. Margulis ......... 50  Senior Vice President—Government Relations 12/95(10)
Steven O.Moya .......... 54 Senior Vice President—Chief Marketing Officer 01/01(11)
R. Eugene Shields ......... 56  Senior Vice President—Government Programs 09/94(12)

&)

2

3)

“4)

®)

Mr. McCallister was elected President, Chief Executive Officer and a member of the Board of Directors in
February 2000. Prior to that, Mr. McCallister served as Senior Vice President—Health System
Management from January 1998 to February 2000 and as Division I President from July 1996 to January
1998. Mr. McCallister joined the Company in June 1974.

Mr. Murray currently serves as Chief Operating Officer—Market and Business Segment Operations,
having held this position since September 2002. Prior to that, Mr. Murray held the position of Chief
Operating Officer—Service Operations from February 2001 to September 2002, Chief Operating Officer—
Health Plan Division and Interim Chief Financial Officer from February 2000 to February 2001, and
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from November 1998 to February 2000. Mr. Murray
joined the Company in October 1989.

Mr. Bertko currently serves as Vice President—Chief Actuary and joined the Company in October 1999 as
Vice President—Actuarial Consulting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Bertko was a Principal with
Reden & Anders/PM Squared in San Francisco, California from September 1996 to October 1999.

Mr. Bloem currently serves as Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, having held
this position since July 2002. Prior to that, Mr. Bloem served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer from February 2001, when he joined the company, through July 2002. Prior to joining the
company, Mr. Bloem served as an independent financial and business consultant in Grand Rapids,
Michigan from September 1999 to January 2001. From March 1998 to August 1999, Mr. Bloem served as
President—Personal Care Division of Perrigo Company in Allegan, Michigan.

Mr. Goodman currently serves as Senior Vice President—Chief Service and Information Officer having
held this position since September 2002. Mr. Goodman joined the Company in April 1999 as Senior Vice
President and Chief Information Officer. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Goodman served as Chief
Executive Officer of C2K Technology Partners, Inc. in Livingston, New Jersey from 1998 to April 1999.
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(6) Ms. Hathcock currently serves as Senior Vice President—Chief Human Resources Officer having held this
position since May 1999. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Hathcock served as Vice President of Human
Resources & Development for US Airways Group in Crystal City, Virginia from 1997 to 1999.

(7) Mr. Hipwell currently serves as Senior Vice President—General Counsel having held this position since
September 1999. Prior to that, Mr. Hipwell served in the same capacity from June 1994 until his retirement
in January 1999. Mr. Hipwell joined the Company in 1979 and was originally elected an officer in 1990.

(8) Mr. Liston currently serves as Senior Vice President—Strategy & Corporate Development having held this
position since July 2000. Prior to that, Mr. Liston served as Vice President—Corporate Development from
January 1998 to July 2000. Mr. Liston joined the Company in 1995.

(9) Dr. Lord currently serves as Senior Vice President—Chief Innovation Officer having held this position
since September 2002. Prior to that, he served as Senior Vice President and Chief Clinical Strategy and
Innovation Officer from February 2001 to September 2002. Dr. Lord joined the Company in April 2000 as
Senior Vice President and Chief Medical Officer. Prior to joining the Company, Dr. Lord was President of
Health Dialog in Boston, Massachusetts from December 1999 to April 2000 and Chief Operating Officer
of the American Hospital Association in Washington, D.C. from November 1995 to November 1999.

(10) Ms. Margulis currently serves as Senior Vice President—Government Relations having held this position
since January 2000. Prior to that, she served as Vice President—Government Affairs from May 1996 to
January 2000. Ms. Margulis joined the Company in November 1985.

(11) Mr. Moya currently serves as Senior Vice President—Chief Marketing Officer having held this position
since January 2001. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Moya was Vice President—Strategic Planning for
Latin Works Marketing in Los Angeles, California from January 1999 to December 2000.

(12) Mr. Shields currently serves as Senior Vice President—Government Programs (TRICARE) and Puerto
Rico having held this position since February 2001. Mr. Shields previously served as Senior Vice
President—Development from February 2001 to June 2001 and Senior Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer—Emphesys, Inc. (a subsidiary of Humana Inc.) from February 2000 to February 2001. Prior to
that, Mr. Shields served as President of Humana Military Health Services Division from July 1994 to
February 2000. Mr. Shields joined the Company in 1994.

Executive officers are elected annually by the Company’s Board of Directors and serve until their
successors are elected or until resignation or removal. There are no family relationships among any of the
executive officers of the Company.

Corporate Goverance Items
Audit Committee Financial Expert

The information required by this Item is herein incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held on April 22, 2004 appearing under the caption “Corporate
Governance—Audit Committee” of such Proxy Statement.

Audit Committee Composition and Independence

The information required by this Item is herein incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held on April 22, 2004 appearing under the caption “Corporate
Governance—Committee Composition” of such Proxy Statement.

Code of Ethics for Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers,
violations of which should be reported to the Audit Committee. The code is attached as Exhibit 14 to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K and may also be viewed on our web site at www.humana.com. Any amendment to or
waiver of the application of the Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers will
be promptly disclosed on the Company’s web site at www.humana.com.
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Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Since 1995, the Company has operated under an omnibus Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, known as
the Humana Inc. Principles of Business Ethics, which includes provisions ranging from restrictions on gifts to
conflicts of interest. All employees are required to affirm in writing their acceptance of the code. The Humana
Inc. Principles of Business Ethics was adopted by our Board of Directors as the document to comply with the
New York Stock Exchange Corporate Governance Standard 303A.10. The Humana Inc. Principles of Business
Ethics may be viewed on our web site at www.humana.com. The Humana Inc. Principles of Business Ethics are
also available upon a written request addressed to Humana Inc. Corporate Secretary at 500 West Main Street,
27th Floor, Louisville, Kentucky 40202. Any waiver of the application of the Humana Inc. Principles of Business
Ethics to directors or executive officers must be made by the Board of Directors and will be promptly disclosed
on our web site at www.humana.com.

Committee Charters

Charters governing the Audit Committee, Executive Committee, Investment Committee, Medical Affairs
Committee, Nominating & Governance Committee and Organization & Compensation Committee of the Board
of Directors are available on our web site at www.humana.com and are also available upon a written request
addressed to Humana Inc. Corporate Secretary at 500 West Main Street, 27t Floor, Louisville, Kentucky 40202.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

The Board of Directors has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines, which are intended to comply with
the requirements of Section 303A.09 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual. The code is attached as Appendix A
to our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held on April 22, 2004. The
Corporate Governance Guidelines may be viewed on our web site at www.humana.com and are also available
upon a written request addressed to Humana Inc. Corporate Secretary at 500 West Main Street, 27t Floor,
Louisville, Kentucky 40202.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held on April 22, 2004 appearing under the caption “Executive
Compensation of the Company” of such Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this Item is herein incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held on April 22, 2004 appearing under the caption “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners of Company Common Stock™ of such Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this Item is herein incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held on April 22, 2004 appearing under the caption “Certain
Transactions with Management and Others” of such Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. AUDITOR FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is herein incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held on April 22, 2004 appearing under the caption “Audit
Committee Report” of such Proxy Statement.

Audit Committee Pre-approval Policies and Procedures

The information required by this Item is herein incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held on April 22, 2004 appearing under the caption “Audit
Committee” and under the caption “Audit Committee Report” of such Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) The financial statements, financial statement schedule and exhibits set forth below are filed as part of this
report

(1) Financial Statements—The response to this portion of Item 15 is submitted as Item 8 of Part II of this
report.

(2) The following Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule is included herein:
Schedule I  Parent Company Financial Information

All other schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable.

(3) Exhibits:

3(a) Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware on
November 9, 1989, as restated to incorporate the amendment of January 9, 1992, and the
correction of March 23, 1992. Exhibit 4(i) to the Company’s Post-Effective Amendment
No.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 33-49305) filed February 2, 1994,
is incorporated by reference herein.

(b) By-laws, as amended. Exhibit 3(b) to the Company’s Annual Report for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1997, is incorporated by reference herein.

4(a) Form of Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated February 14, 1996, between
Humana Inc. and Mid-America Bank of Louisville and Trust Company. Exhibit 1.3 to the
Registration Statement (File No. 1-5975) on Form 8-A/A dated February 14, 1996, is
incorporated by reference herein.

(b) Amendment No. 2 to the Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated February 14, 1996.
Exhibit 4.3 to the Registration Statement (File No. 1-5975) on Form 8-A12B/A filed March
1, 1999, is incorporated by reference herein.

(c) Indenture dated as of August 2001 covering the Company’s 71/4% Senior Notes due 2006.
Exhibit 4.1 to Registration Statement No. 333-63384 is incorporated by reference herein.

(d) Indenture dated August 5, 2003 covering the Company’s Senior Debt Securities. Exhibit 4.1
to the Company’s Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003, is
incorporated by reference herein.

(e) First Supplemental Indenture dated August 5, 2003 covering the Company’s 6.30% Senior
Notes due 2018. Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2003, is incorporated by reference herein.

® There are no instruments defining the rights of holders with respect to long-term debt in
excess of 10 percent of the total assets of the Company on a consolidated basis. Other long-
term indebtedness of the Company is described herein in Note 8 to Consolidated Financial
Statements. The Company agrees to furnish copies of all such instruments defining the rights
of the holders of such indebtedness to the Commission upon request.

10(a)* 1989 Stock Option Plan for Employees. Exhibit A to the Company’s Proxy Statement
covering the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on January 11, 1990, is incorporated by
reference herein.

(b)*  Amendment No. 1 to the 1989 Stock Option Plan for Employees. Annex B to the Company’s
Proxy Statement covering the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on February 18, 1993, is
incorporated by reference herein.

(c)*  Amendment No. 2 to the 1989 Stock Option Plan for Employees. Exhibit 10(e) to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993, is
incorporated by reference herein.
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1989 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors. Exhibit B to the Company’s Proxy
Statement covering the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on January 11, 1990, is
incorporated by reference herein.

Amendment No. 1 to the 1989 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors. Annex C to
the Company’s Proxy Statement covering the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on
February 18, 1993, is incorporated by reference herein.

Amendment No. 2 to the 1989 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors. Exhibit 10(h)
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993,
is incorporated by reference herein.

1989 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors, as amended and restated in 1998.
Exhibit A to the Company’s Proxy Statement covering the Annual Meeting of Stockholders
held on May 14, 1998, is incorporated by reference herein.

1996 Stock Incentive Plan for Employees. Annex A to the Company’s Proxy Statement
covering the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on May 9, 1996, is incorporated by
reference herein.

1996 Stock Incentive Plan for Employees as amended in 1998. Exhibit C to the Company’s
Proxy Statement covering the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on May 14, 1998, is
incorporated by reference herein.

Humana Inc. Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Employees. Exhibit 99 to the Company’s
Form S-8 Registration Statement (333-86801) filed on September 9, 1999, is incorporated by
reference herein.

Humana Inc. Restricted Stock Plan for Officers and Directors. Exhibit 99.5 to the Company’s
Form S-8 Registration Statement (No. 333-41408) filed on July 14, 2000, is incorporated by
reference herein.

Humana Inc. Restricted Stock Plan for Employees. Exhibit 99.4 to the Company’s Form S-8
Registration Statement (No. 333-41408) filed on July 14, 2000, is incorporated by reference
herein.

Humana Inc. 2003 Stock Incentive Plan. Appendix B to the Company’s Proxy Statement
filed on March 28, 2003, is incorporated by reference herein.

Humana Inc. 2003 Executive Management Incentive Compensation Plan. Appendix C to the
Company’s Proxy Statement covering the Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed on
March 28, 2003 is incorporated by reference herein.

Restated agreement providing for termination benefits in the event of a change of control.
Exhibit 10(m) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1997, is incorporated by reference herein.

Employment Agreement—Michael B. McCallister. Exhibit 10 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000, is incorporated by reference
herein.

Agreement—David A. Jones, dated December 15, 1999. Exhibit 10(r) to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999, is incorporated
by reference herein.

Trust under Humana Inc. Deferred Compensation Plans. Exhibit 10(p) to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999, is incorporated
by reference herein.

The Humana Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors, filed herewith.
Severance policy. Exhibit 10 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 1999, is incorporated by reference herein.

Humana Officers’ Target Retirement Plan, as amended. Exhibit 10(p) to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997, is incorporated
by reference herein.
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Summary of Changes to Humana Inc. Retirement Plans, as amended. Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003, is
incorporated by reference herein.

Humana Supplemental Executive Retirement and Savings Plan, as amended and restated on
December 31, 2003, filed herewith.

Letter agreement with Company officers concerning health insurance availability.
Exhibit 10(mm) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1994, is incorporated by reference herein.

Indemnity Agreement. Appendix B to the Company’s Proxy Statement covering the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on January 8, 1987, is incorporated by reference
herein.

Agreement between the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services and
Humana Medical Plan, Inc. Exhibit 10(w) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993, is incorporated by reference herein.

Second Amended and Restated 364-Day Credit Agreement. Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed for the quarter ended September 30, 2003 is
incorporated by reference herein.

The Four-Year Credit Agreement. Exhibit 10(b) to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001, is incorporated by reference herein.

Second Amended and Restated RFC Loan Agreement. Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003, is incorporated
by reference herein.

Agreement between the United States Department of Defense and Humana Military
Healthcare Services, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Exhibit 10(dd) to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995, is
incorporated by reference herein.

Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges, filed herewith.

Code of Conduct for Chief Executive Officer & Senior Financial Officers, filed herewith.
List of subsidiaries, filed herewith.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, filed herewith.

CEO certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/(15d-14(a), filed herewith.

CFO certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/(15d-14(a), filed herewith.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewith.

* Exhibits 10(a) through and including 10(x) are compensatory plans or management contracts.

Reports on Form 8-K:

(1) On October 15, 2003, we filed a report concerning our contingency plans related to the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.

(2) On October 23, 2003, we filed a report regarding the settlement of litigation in Cincinnati, Ohio.

(3) On October 27, 2003, we furnished a report regarding our third quarter of 2003 earnings release.

(4) On December 8, 2003, we filed a report regarding the announcement of Medicare modernization.

(5) On December 19, 2003, we filed a report regarding the pending acquisition of Ochsner Health Plan.

(6) On February 2, 2004, we furnished a report regarding our fourth quarter of 2003 earnings release.
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Humana Inc.

SCHEDULE I—PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2003 2002
(in thousands, except share
amounts)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cashequivalents .. ............ . .. $ 321,676 $ 187,008
INVeStmMENt SECUTILIES . . . . . e e e e e e e e e 77,717 —
Receivable from operating subsidiaries ............... .. ... . ... 78,834 206,182
Other CUITENt @SSELS . . o ot vttt et e e e e et et e e e 79,531 36,798
Total Current asSetsS . ... oo e 557,758 429,988
Property and equipment, Net ... ... ...ttt 281,168 272,880
Investments in sUbSIAIAIIES . . . ...ttt 2,384,709 2,226,245
Notes receivable from operating subsidiaries ............... ... ..., 17,000 52,000
OtheT ..o 66,180 88,455
TOtal @SSEES . . ot ottt $3,306,815 $3,069,568
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Payable to operating subsidiaries . ................ i $ 379,583 $ 458,092
Current portion of notes payable to operating subsidiaries . .................. — 31,500
Book overdraft . . ... .. 130,948 57,485
Other current liabilitieS . .. ... ... e e 164,716 202,853
Short-term debt . ... ... ... . . . e — 265,000
Total current liabilities . ... ... ... . ... 675,247 1,014,930
Long-term debt . ... ... .. . 642,638 339,913
Notes payable to operating subsidiaries ............. .. .. .. ... 45,600 45,600
OthET . .o 107,381 62,651
Total liabilities .. ... e 1,470,866 1,463,094
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $1 par; 10,000,000 shares authorized; none issued ........... — —
Common stock, $0.16 2/3 par; 300,000,000 shares authorized,;
173,909,127 shares issued in 2003, and 171,334,893 shares issued in 2002 . .. 28,984 28,556
Treasury stock, at cost, 12,018,281 shares in 2003, and 8,362,537 shares
N 2002 . (133,976) (89,987)
Other stockholders’ equity . ....... ... ...t 1,940,941 1,667,905
Total stockholders’ equity . ... .. ... ..ot 1,835,949 1,606,474
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ............. ... .. ... ...... $3,306,815 $3,069,568

See accompanying notes to the parent company financial statements.
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Humana Inc.

SCHEDULE I—PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the year ended December 31,

2002 2001

(in thousands)

$428,426  $397,075
6279) 7,225

422,147 404,300

342,572 308,717
69,384 57,783
21,480 30,456

433,436 396,956

(11,289) 7,344
(25,475)  (18,571)

14,186 25,915
128,569 91,256

2003

Revenues:
Management fees charged to operating subsidiaries ................. $458,373
Investment income (loss) and other income, net .................... 19,883
478,256

Expenses:
Selling, general and administrative ................ .. ............ 357,041
Depreciation .. ... ... 82,478
Interest ... 21,229
460,748

Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in net earnings of

SUDSIAIATIES . . . v e e e e 17,508
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ............ .. .. .. 10,944
Income before equity in net earnings of subsidiaries . .................... 6,564
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries ............. ... .. .. .. .. . ... 222,370
NELINCOME . . . v vt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e i $228.934

$142,755 $117,171

See accompanying notes to the parent company financial statements.
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Humana Inc.

SCHEDULE I—PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(in thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities ......................... $ 200,011 $ 325,893 $ 268,534
Cash flows from investing activities:
ACQUISTLIONS .« o\ttt e — — (43,490)
Purchases of investment securities . .. .......... ... (78,303) (7,470) (10,937)
Proceeds from sale of investment securities ..................... — 12,553 —
Purchases of property and equipment,net ....................... (90,765)  (94,505)  (84,487)
Capital contributions to operating subsidiaries ................... (17,000) (11,000) (32,304)
Surplus note redemption from operating subsidiaries .............. 35,000 12,000 22,500
Other . .o 70 1,030 1,222
Net cash used in investing activities ....................... (150,998) (87,392) (147,496)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Revolving credit agreement repayments . ....................... — — (520,000)
Net conduit commercial paper borrowings . ..................... (265,000) 2,000 263,000
Net commercial paper repayments .. ...............uoeuueen.n... — — (79,952)
Proceeds from issuance of seniornotes . ...............c......... 299,139 — 299,277
Proceeds from other borrowings ........... .. .. ... ... .. ... — — 5,700
Proceeds from swapexchange ............. ... .. .. ... .. .. ..., 31,556 — —
Debt iSSUE COSES .+ v vttt ettt e e e (3,331) (1,549) (7,116)
Change in book overdraft . ........... .. .. ... .. .. .. . .., 73,463 (46,084) (17,709)
Repayment of notes issued to operating subsidiaries . .............. (31,500) — (20,000)
Common stock repurchases ................c.oiiiiin.. (44,147) (74,035) (1,867)
Proceeds from stock option exercises and other .................. 25,475 9,577 1,928
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ............ 85,655  (110,091) (76,739)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents ............. .. ... ... .. ...... 134,668 128,410 44,299
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . . . .................... 187,008 58,598 14,299
Cash and cash equivalents atendof year ............................ $ 321,676 $ 187,008 $ 58,598

See accompanying notes to the parent company financial statements.
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Humana Inc.

SCHEDULE I—PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Parent company financial information has been derived from our consolidated financial statements and
excludes the accounts of all operating subsidiaries. This information should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements.

2. TRANSACTIONS WITH SUBSIDIARIES
Management Fee

Through intercompany service agreements approved, if required, by state regulatory authorities, Humana
Inc., our parent company, charges a management fee for reimbursement of certain centralized services provided
to its subsidiaries including information systems, disbursement, investment and cash administration, marketing,
legal, finance, and medical and executive management oversight.

Dividends

Cash dividends received from subsidiaries and included as a component of net cash provided by operating
activities were $131.0 million in 2003 and $198.0 million in 2002. No cash dividends from subsidiaries were
received in 2001.

Guarantee

Through indemnity agreements approved by state regulatory authorities, certain of our regulated
subsidiaries generally are guaranteed by our parent company in the event of insolvency for; (1), member
coverage for which premium payment has been made prior to insolvency; (2), benefits for members then
hospitalized until discharged; and (3), payment to providers for services rendered prior to insolvency. Our parent
has also guaranteed the obligations of our TRICARE subsidiaries.

Notes Receivables from Operating Subsidiaries

We funded certain subsidiaries with surplus note agreements. These notes are generally non-interest bearing
and may not be repaid without the prior approval of the Departments of Insurance.

Notes Payable to Operating Subsidiaries

We borrowed funds from certain subsidiaries with notes generally collateralized by real estate. These notes,
which have various payment and maturity terms, bear interest ranging from 6.65% to 6.75% and are payable
between 2004 and 2009. We recorded interest expense of $3.9 million, $4.2 million and $5.2 million related to
these notes for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

3. REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Certain other subsidiaries operate in states that regulate the payment of dividends, loans or other cash
transfers to Humana Inc., require minimum levels of equity, and limit investments to approved securities. The
amount of dividends that may be paid to Humana Inc. by these subsidiaries, without prior approval by state
regulatory authorities, is limited based on the entity’s level of statutory income and statutory capital and surplus.
In most states, prior notification is provided before paying a dividend even if approval is not required.

As of December 31, 2003, we maintained aggregate statutory capital and surplus of an estimated $1,086.5
million in our state regulated health insurance subsidiaries. Each of these subsidiaries was in compliance with
applicable statutory requirements, which aggregated approximately $640.4 million.
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Humana Inc.

SCHEDULE I—PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Although the minimum required levels of equity are largely based on premium volume, product mix, and
the quality of assets held, minimum requirements can vary significantly at the state level. Certain states rely on
risk-based capital requirements, or RBC, to define the required levels of equity. RBC is a model developed by the
National Association of Insurance Commissioners to monitor an entity’s solvency. This calculation indicates
recommended minimum levels of required capital and surplus and signals regulatory measures should actual
surplus fall below these recommended levels. If RBC were adopted by all states at December 31, 2003, each of
our subsidiaries would be in compliance, and we would have $381.9 million of aggregate capital and surplus
above any of the levels that require corrective action under RBC.

One TRICARE subsidiary under the Regions 3 and 4 contract with the Department of Defense is required to

maintain current assets at least equivalent to its current liabilities. We were in compliance with this requirement
at December 31, 2003.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereto duly authorized.

HuMmANA INC.

By: /s/  JAMES H. BLOEM

James H. Bloem
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 5, 2004

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Company and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature % m
/s/  JAMES H. BLOEM Senior Vice President and Chief March 5, 2004
James H. Bloem Financial Officer (Principal

Accounting Officer)

/s/  DAVID A. JONES Chairman of the Board March 5, 2004
David A. Jones

/s/  DAVID A. JONES, JR. Vice Chairman of the Board March 5, 2004
David A. Jones, Jr.

/s/ FRANK A. D’ AMELIO Director March 5, 2004
Frank A. D’Amelio

/s/  MICHAEL E. GELLERT Director March 5, 2004
Michael E. Gellert

/s/  JOHN R. HALL Director March 5, 2004
John R. Hall
/s/  KURT J. HILZINGER Director March 5, 2004

Kurt J. Hilzinger

/s/  IRWIN LERNER Director March 5, 2004

Irwin Lerner

/s/  MICHAEL B. MCCALLISTER Director, President and Chief March 5, 2004
Michael B. McCallister Executive Officer
/s/  W.ANN REYNOLDS, PH.D. Director March 5, 2004

W. Ann Reynolds, Ph.D.
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Board of Directors

David A. Jones

Chairman of the Board — Humana Inc.

David A. Jones, Jr.

Vice Chairman of the Board — Humana Inc.

Chairman and Managing Director — Chrysalis Ventures, LLC

Frank A. D’Amelio

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer — Lucent Technologies Inc.
Michael E. Gellert

General Partner — Windcrest Partners private investment partnership

John R. Hall

Retired Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer — Ashland Inc.
Kurt J. Hilzinger

President and Chief Operating Officer — AmerisourceBergen Corporation
Irwin Lerner

Retired Chairman of the Board, Chairman of the Executive Committee, and former President
and Chief Executive Officer — Hoffmann-La Roche Inc.

Michael B. McCallister

President and Chief Executive Officer — Humana Inc.

W. Ann Reynolds, Ph.D.

Former Director of the Center for Community Outreach and Development —
The University of Alabama at Birmingham

Corporate Headquarters

The Humana Building

500 West Main Street
Louisville, Kentucky 40202
(502) 580-1000

More Information About Humana Inc.

Copies of the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission may be
obtained without charge either via the Investor Relations page of the Company’s Internet web
site at www.humana.com, or by writing:

Regina C. Nethery

Vice President of Investor Relations

Humana Inc.

Post Office Box 1438

Louisville, Kentucky 40201-1438

Transfer Agent

National City Bank

Shareholder Services — LOC 5352

Post Office Box 92301

Cleveland, Ohio 44193-0900

(800) 622-6757

shareholder.inquiries @nationalcity.com







